
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	

Application: New Visions AIM Charter High
School I 
Melissa Wass - mwass@newvisions.org 
2021-2022 Annual Report 

Summary 

ID: 0000000010 
Last submitted: Oct 31 2022 03:46 PM (EDT) 
Labels: SUNY Trustees 

Entry 1 School Info and Cover Page 

Completed Jul 27 2022 

Instructions 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

Each Annual Report begins with a completed School Information and Cover Page. The information is 
collected in a survey format within Annual Report portal. When entering information in the portal, some 
of the following items may not appear, depending on your authorizer and/or your responses to related 
items. 

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for the 2021-2022 school year are not required 

to complete or submit an annual report this year). 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your school's authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this 

cover page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2022) or you may 

not be assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 
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a. SCHOOL NAME 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 800000070533 

a1. Popular School Name 

AIM I 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of June 30th, 2021) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of June 30, 2022 or you may not be assigned the correct tasks. 

SUNY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

d. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION 

CSD #17 - BROOKLYN 

e. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 

10/2017 

f. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR INSTRUCTION 

8/2017 
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250 

165 

c. School Unionized 

Is your charter school unionized? 

No 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

http://www.newvisions.org/aim1 

i. Total Approved Charter Enrollment for 2021-2022 School Year (exclude Pre-K program 

enrollment) 

j. Total Enrollment on June 30, 2022 (exclude Pre-K program enrollment) 

k. Grades Served during the 2021-2022 School Year (exclude Pre-K program students) 

Check all that apply 

Grades Served 9, 10, 11, 12 
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l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT WITH A CHARTER OR EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

Yes 

l2. NAME OF CMO/EMO AND ADDRESS 

NAME OF CMO/EMO New Visions for Public Schools 

PHYSICAL STREET ADDRESS 205 E. 42nd Street 

CITY New York 

STATE NY 

ZIP CODE 10017 

EMAIL ADDRESS mwass@newvisions.org 

CONTACT PERSON NAME Melissa Wass 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2022-2023? 

No, just one site. 

NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 800000070533 

School Site 1 (Primary) 

4 / 37 



	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	
	

	

	 	
	

	 	 	

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical 
Address 

Phone Number District/CSD Grades to be 

Served at Site 

for coming 

year (K-5, 6-9, 
etc.) 

Receives 

Rental 
Assistance for 
Which Grades 

(If yes, enter 
the appropriate 

grades. If no, 
enter No). 

1150 East New 

York Avenue 

Brooklyn, NY 

11212 

718-269-7090 NYC CSD 17 9-12 No Site 1 
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m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

Work Phone Alternate Email Address Title 

Phone 

kgreer1@chart 
Principal 718-269-7090 er.newvisions.o 

rg 

Deputy jsmith11@char Director of 718-269-7090 ter.newvisions. School org Operations 

Director of 
Operations, mgill@newvisio 212-645-5110 Charter ns.org 

Schools 

Director of 
Operations, mgill@newvisio 212-645-5110 Charter ns.org 

Schools 

Deputy jsmith11@char Director of 718-269-7090 ter.newvisions. School org Operations 

Deputy jsmith11@char Director of 718-269-7090 ter.newvisions. School org Operations 

Name 

School Leader Kristin Greer 

Operational Janice Smith Leader 

Compliance Matt Gill Contact 

Complaint Matt Gill Contact 

DASA Janice Smith Coordinator 

Phone Contact 
for After Hours Janice Smith 

Emergencies 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co-located) space or in private space? 

Co-located Space 

6 / 37 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	

	
	
	
	

	 	

	

	
	
	

	

	 	 	

	
	

	

	
	

	

	

	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

m1c. Please list the terms of your current co-location. 

Date school 
will leave 

current co-
location 

Is school 
working with 

NYCDOE to 

expand into 

current 
space? 

If so, list 
year 
expansion 

will occur. 

Is school 
working with 

NYCDOE to 

move to 

separate 

space? 

If so, list the 

proposed 

space and 

year planned 

for move 

School at 
Full Capacity 

at Site 

Site 1 

No plans to 

leave 

current co-
location 

space 

No No Yes 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report 

for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection. Provide a copy of a current and non-expired 

certificate of occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in 

district space (NYC co-locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of 

occupancy, and a copy of the current annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on 

or after July 1, 2021. 

Fire inspection certificates must be updated annually. For the upcoming school year 

2022-2023, the fire inspection certificate must be dated after July 1, 2021. 

If the fire inspection certificate is dated after the August 1, 2022 submission of the 

Annual Report, please submit the new certificate with the Annual Report entries due on 

November 1, 2022. 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2021-2022 SCHOOL YEAR 
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n1. Were there any revisions to the school’s charter during the 2021-2022 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending material and non-material charter revisions). 

No 

o. Has your school's Board of Trustee's approved a budget for the 2021-2022 FY? 

Yes 

ATTESTATIONS 

p. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. (To write type in a phone 

number with an extension, please use this format: 123-456-7890-3. The dash and number 3 at 

the end of the phone number refers to the individual's phone extension. Do not type in the 

work extension or the abbreviation for it - just the dash and the extension number after the 

phone number). 

Name Melissa Wass 

Position Senior Program Officer, Charter 

Phone/Extension 646-486-6316 

Email mwass@newvisions.org 

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President) 

below attest that our school has reviewed, understands and will comply with the employee 

clearance and fingerprint requirements as outlined in Entry 10 and found in the NYSED CSO 

Fingerprint Clearance Oct 2019 Memo. Click YES to agree. 

Responses Selected: 

Yes 
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q. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President) 

below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and accurate and that this 

charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, and with all pertinent Federal, 

State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We understand that if any information in any part 

of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds 

for the revocation of our charter. Click YES to agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the 

stylus on your mobile device to sign your name). 

Responses Selected: 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 
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Date 

Jul 8 2022 

Thank you. 

Entry 3 Accountability Plan Progress Reports 

Completed Oct 31 2022 

Instructions 
SUNY-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY- Complete Template and Upload to Epicenter 

SUNY-authorized charter schools must download an Accountability Plan Progress Report template at 
Accountability Plan Progress Report. After completing, SUNY-authorized charter schools must upload the 
document into the SUNY Epicenter system by September 15, 2022. SUNY CSI will forward to NYSED 
CSO. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

2021-22-Accountability-Plan-Progress-Report-AIM I_Final 

Filename: 2021 22 Accountability Plan Progre NVAnmSu.pdf Size: 3.3 MB 

Entry 4 - Audited Financial Statements 

Completed Oct 31 2022 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

ALL SUNY-authorized charter schools must upload the financial statements and related documents in 
PDF format into the SUNY Epicenter system no later than November 1, 2022. SUNY CSI will forward to 
NYSED CSO. SUNY-authorized charter schools are asked to ensure that security features such as 
password protection are turned off. 

ALL Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized charter schools must upload final, audited 
financial statements to the Annual Report Portal no later than November 1, 2022. Upload the 
independent auditor’s report, any advisory and/or management letter, and the internal controls report as 
one submission, combined into a PDF file, ensuring that security features such as password protections 
are removed from all school uploaded documents. 

PLEASE NOTE: This task appears as visible and optional task in the online portal until August 1 
2022 but will be identified as a required task thereafter and due on November 1, 2022. This is a 
required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only. 

NV AIM Charter High School I - June 30 2022 - Financial Statements 

10 / 37 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

					

Filename: NV AIM Charter High School I Jun TwOZIxD.pdf Size: 419.3 kB 

Entry 4a – Audited Financial Report Template (SUNY) 
Completed Oct 31 2022 

Instructions - SUNY-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

SUNY-authorized schools must download the Excel spreadsheet entitled “Audited Financial Report 
Template” at http://www.newyorkcharters.org/fiscal/. After completing, schools must upload the 
document into the SUNY Epicenter system no later than November 1, 2022. SUNY CSI will forward to 
NYSED CSO. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

2021-22-Audited-Financial-Statement-Template-AIM1 

Filename: 2021 22 Audited Financial Stateme 5XJu4Rg.xlsx Size: 312.3 kB 

Entry 4c – Additional Financial Documents 

Incomplete Hidden from applicant 

Instructions - Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must upload financial 
documents and submit by November 1, 2022. The items listed below should be uploaded, with an 
explanation if not applicable or available. For example, a “federal Single Audit was not required because 
the school did not expend federal funds of more than the $750,000 Threshold.” 

1. Advisory and/or Management letter 
2. Federal Single Audit 
3. CSP Agreed-Upon Procedure Report 
4. Evidence of Required Escrow Account for each school[1] 
5. Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations 

[1] Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the escrow account per 
school is $100,000. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

Entry 4d - Financial Services Contact Information 

Incomplete Hidden from applicant 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter financial contact information 
directly into the form within the portal by November 1, 2022. 

Form for "Financial Services Contact Information" 
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1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information 

School Based Fiscal School Based Fiscal School Based Fiscal 
Contact Name Contact Email Contact Phone 

2. Audit Firm Contact Information 

School Audit 
Contact Name 

School Audit 
Contact Email 

School Audit 
Contact Phone 

Years Working With 

This Audit Firm 

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced financial 

services firm. 

Firm Name Contact Mailing Email Phone Years With 

Person Address Firm 

Entry 5 – Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget 
Completed Sep 14 2022 

SUNY-authorized charter schools should download the 2022-23 Budget and Quarterly Report 
Template and the 2022-23 Budget Narrative Questionnaire from the SUNY website and upload the 
completed template into Epicenter. SUNY CSI will forward to NYSED CSO. Due November 1, 2022. 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools should upload a copy of the 
school’s FY22 Budget using the 2022-2023 Budget Template in the portal or from the Annual Report 
website. Due November 1, 2022. 

The assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is self-
explanatory. Where applicable, reference the page number or section in the application narrative that 
indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would reference the applicable 
page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

AIM1-2022-23-Budget-and-Quarterly-Report 

Filename: AIM1 2022 23 Budget and Quarterly Report.xlsx Size: 509.3 kB 

Entry 6 – Board of Trustees Disclosure of Financial Interest 
Form 

Completed Sep 14 2022 
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Due on August 1, 2022, each member of the charter school’s Board of Trustees who served on a charter 
school education corporation governing one or more charter schools for any period during the 2021-2022 
school year must complete and sign a Trustee Disclosure of Financial Interest Form. Acceptable signature 
formats include: 

Digitally certified PDF signature (i.e., DocuSign) 
Manual signature (1. download to print, 2. manually sign, 3. scan signed document to PDF, and 4. 
upload into portal) 

All completed forms must be collected and uploaded in .PDF format for each individual member. The 
education corporation is responsible for completing the form for trustees who left the board 
during the reporting year. 

Forms completed from past years will not be accepted. Only the latest version of the form (updated in 
April, 2022) is acceptable.). 

Trustees serving on an education corporation that governs more than one school are not required to 
complete a separate disclosure for each school governed by the education corporation. In the Disclosure 
of Financial Interest Form, trustees must disclose information relevant to any of the schools served by the 
governing education corporation. 

Chu, Liz_2022-SUNY-Financial-Disclosure-Form-AIM I 

Filename: Chu Liz 2022 SUNY Financial Disclo V0VU1yD.pdf Size: 1.2 MB 

Hayes, Sharon 2022 Financial Disclosure form AIM I 

Filename: Hayes Sharon 2022 Financial Disclo RUPTxr4.pdf Size: 210.1 kB 

Lajara, Chabeli_AIM I Disclosure of Financial Interest 

Filename: Lajara Chabeli AIM I Disclosure of NDVitSs.pdf Size: 150.8 kB 

Lynch, Garrett AIM I financial disclosure 

Filename: Lynch Garrett AIM I financial disclosure.pdf Size: 236.5 kB 

Rodriguez, Edgar_ Disclosure of Financial Interest Form AIM I 

Filename: Rodriguez Edgar Disclosure of Fin dWsOTgv.pdf Size: 113.6 kB 

Shama_Ali 2022-SUNY-Financial-Disclosure-Form-AIM I 

Filename: Shama Ali 2022 SUNY Financial Disc 9aDU1VW.pdf Size: 427.6 kB 

SHOOR_Vikas 2022-SUNY-Financial-Disclosure-Form-AIM I 

Filename: SHOOR Vikas 2022 SUNY Financial Di HYQmnn2.pdf Size: 816.1 kB 

Skolaski, Renee 2022-SUNY-Financial-Disclosure-Form-AIM I (1) 

Filename: Skolaski Renee 2022 SUNY Financial jBd4z1n.pdf Size: 456.9 kB 

Voloch, Daniel _AIM I Disclosure of Financial Interest 

Filename: Voloch Daniel AIM I Disclosure of spX4SBI.pdf Size: 63.6 kB 
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Entry 7 BOT Membership Table 

Completed Jul 27 2022 

Instructions 

Required of ALL charter schools 
ALL charter schools or education corporations governing multiple schools must complete the Board of 
Trustees Membership Table within the online portal. Please be sure to include and identify parents who 
are members of the Board of Trustees and indicate whether parents are voting or non-voting members. 

Entry 7 BOT Table 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all --VOTING and NON-VOTING-- trustees. 

NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 800000070533 

Authorizer: 

Who is the authorizer of your charter school? 

SUNY 

1. 2021-2022 Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

Trustee 

Email 
Address 

Trustee Position Commit 
Name on the tee 

Board Affiliatio 

ns 

Voting Number 
Member of Terms 

Per By- Served 

Laws 

(Y/N) 

Start 
Date of 
Current 
Term 

(MM/DD 

/YYYY) 

End 

Date of 
Current 
Term 

(MM/DD 

/YYYY) 

Board 

Meeting 

s 

Attende 

d 

During 

2021-
2022 

Finance Elizabet 06/22/2 12/31/2 
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1 h Chu 

2 
Sharon 

Hayes 

3 
Chabeli 
Lajara 

4 
Garret 
Lynch 

5 

6 

Edgar 
Rodrigu 

ez 

Vikas 

Shoor 

7 
Daniel 
Voloch 

8 

9 

Chair 

Trustee/ 
Member 

Trustee/ 
Member 

Trustee/ 
Member 

Secretar 
y 

Treasure 

r 

Trustee/ 
Member 

Commit 
tee 

Educati 
on 

Commit 
ee 

N/A 

Finance 

Commit 
tee 

Educati 
on 

Commit 
ee 

Finance 

Commit 
tee 

Educati 
on 

Commit 
ee 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

1 

1 

1 

2 

1 

1 

1 

017 

01/31/2 

019 

03/28/2 

022 

4/30/20 

18 

10/22/2 

021 

05/05/2 

020 

09/01/2 

021 

022 12 

12/31/2 11 022 

12/31/2 5 or less 025 

12/31/2 12 024 

12/31/2 8 024 

12/31/2 7 023 

12/31/2 9 024 

1a. Are there more than 9 members of the Board of Trustees? 

No 
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13 

12 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response relative to 

all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on June 30, 2022 

b.Total Number of Members Added During 2021-
2022 

c. Total Number of Members who Departed during 

2021-2022 

d.Total Number of members, as set in Bylaws, 
Resolution or Minutes 

7 

2 

2 

7 

3. Number of Board meetings held during 2021-2022 

4. Number of Board meetings scheduled for 2022-2023 

Total number of Voting Members on June 30, 2022: 

Total number of Voting Members added during the 2021-2022 school year: 

16 / 37 
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2 

7 

Total number of Voting Members who departed during the 2021-2022 school year: 

Total Maximum Number of Voting members in 2021-2022, as set by the board in bylaws, 

resolution, or minutes: 

Thank you. 

Entry 8 Board Meeting Minutes 

Incomplete Hidden from applicant 

Instructions - Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Schools ONLY 

Schools must upload a complete set of monthly board meeting minutes (July 2021-June 2022), which 
should match the number of meetings held during the 2021-2022 school year, as indicated in the above 
table. The minutes provided must be the final version approved by the school’s Board of Trustees and 
may be uploaded individually or as one single combined file. Board meeting minutes must be submitted 
by August 1, 2022. 

Entry 9 Enrollment & Retention 

Completed Jul 27 2022 

Instructions for submitting Enrollment and Retention Efforts 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

Describe the good faith efforts the charter school has made in 2021-2022 toward meeting targets to 
attract and retain the enrollment of Students with Disabilities (SWDs), English Language Learners 
(ELLs), and students who are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for 
meeting or making progress toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2022-2023. 

Entry 9 Enrollment and Retention of Special
Populations 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 
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Describe Recruitment Efforts in 

2021-2022 

AIM I executed comprehensive 

recruitment strategies in 2021-
2022 to meet its enrollment 
targets for economically 

disadvantaged students. The 

school focuses on 3 areas of 
recruitment efforts 1). Feeder 
Schools, 2.) Key Partners, 3). 
Community Involvement. The 

school has conducted data 

analysis to identify key feeder 
schools of students who have 

enrolled at AIM I. In addition, AIM 

I focused on building program 

partners for recruitment that 
target at-risk barriers such as 

foster care agencies, shelters, 
and probation division offices of 
Brooklyn. 

Our efforts included targeting 

Community School District (CSD) 
17 along with the surrounding 

districts to conduct outreach to 

agencies and community-based 

organizations that serve our 
target populations. AIM I worked 

specifically with key and targeted 

partners to establish/re-establish 

connections to serve and meet 
the needs of economically 

disadvantaged students. These 

outreach efforts included the 

following agencies: Children’s 

Village/U Gotta Believe (Foster 
Care), Esperanza (Court-
Involvement, Brownsville NEON 

Partnership (Community Based 

Justice & Mentoring Initiative), 
the Archers Group, ACE (OSHA, 
Food Handlers, etc.), Crossroads 

Describe Recruitment Plans in 

2022-2023 
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(ACS/Court-involvement), NYPD & 

Probation, and many more. 

AIM I staff connected with middle 

and high schools and key 

community-based organizations 

in the surrounding areas and 

feeder areas of the current 
student population. This included 

outreach and connections with 

staff at various sites located in 

Districts 16, 17 18,19, and 23. 
Additionally, AIM I also attended 

school events, enrollment 
conferences, and high school 
fairs hosted at a number of 
feeder schools. During these 

visits, AIM I connected with 

middle school staff and in some 

cases parents, to introduce the 

AIM High School model. 

With the support of New Visions, 
AIM I admissions information and 

eligibility was shared with over 
300 community partners, middle 

schools, and key city agencies. 
Additional recruitment strategies 

included: disseminating 

information at community-based 

meetings like the Community 

Partnership Program meetings for 
the East New York community, 
where social service agencies 

and staff gather to share 

resources and post flyers in the 

community, such as local 
businesses, community centers, 
and other high traffic areas. 

AIM I also hosted in-person 

information sessions and open 

houses to further inform families 

and the community about the 

school and the admissions 

AIM I plans to continue to 

execute similar strategies as last 
year while also deepening its 

recruitment efforts in its 

relatively new location in 

Brownsville, post-pandemic era. 
The following plans reflect the 

recruitment and enrollment goals 

and efforts for the 2022-23 

school year: 
1. AIM I will deploy a street team 

to engage in weekly recruitment, 
marketing, and advertising of all 
businesses, religious 

organizations, and community-
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Economically Disadvantaged 

process. All information sessions 

and open houses included the 

dissemination of recruitment 
materials, enrollment 
applications, a question and 

answer period, a school tour, and 

individual consultations with 

families who are interested. 

AIM I attended, presented, and 

conducted outreach at 
community and district board 

meetings, back-to-school events 

hosted by different foster care 

agencies (ACS), community-
based organizations, NYPD, 
conferences, and high school 
fairs to share information about 
the school. In addition, this past 
year AIM I hosted a career and 

resource summit with over 25 

partners to establish 

partnerships for recruitment 
purposes and beyond. Partners 

were invited to come into our 
school to share their services 

with students and families. 

AIM I also outsourced a 

marketing and recruiting 

company to support the school in 

developing a strategic plan for 
recruiting, engagement, 
retention, and branding. The 

strategic plan included a 

marketing/engagement timeline, 
a community survey to identify 

the overall perception of the 

school, student interests, and 

recruitment suggestions. This 

process also included an audit of 
current practices, community 

resources, and actionable next 
steps. The school began working 

with the company on the next 

based organizations within 

Brownsville, Brooklyn, NY 

throughout the school year. 
2. AIM I will execute an enhanced 

strategic plan to foster 
relationships with community 

members, key partners, and 

community-based organizations 

to provide a thorough 

recruitment and enrollment 
campaign. 
3. AIM I will provide weekly open 

houses to recruit families of 
diverse backgrounds. 
4. AIM I will commit to attending 

events within the community for 
networking and partnership 

purposes 

5. AIM I will host weekly 

recruitment (pop-shop) events at 
our local malls and parks. 
6. AIM I will facilitate partnership 

presentation at organizations 

within the community such as 

homeless shelters, youth 

development centers and local 
government agencies 

7. AIM I will focus on landing 1-3 

Key Partnerships that can funnel 
high potential for students. 
8. AIM I will maximize using the 

Engagement Pathways to peak 

more student and family interest. 
9. AIM I will maximize using the 

certification programs to peak 

family and student interest. 
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steps to further meet the needs 

of students and best recruit 
economically disadvantaged 

students to the AIM I community. 

Additionally, AIM I partnered with 

AIM II to align recruitment and 

enrollment efforts for students 

that the schools serve. In doing 

so, AIM II shared resources, 
insight, and key partners that the 

school found most beneficial. AIM 

I & II aligned on enrollment 
practices thus speedily serving 

new students and families. 

In addition, New Visions sent out 
a survey to our current parents 

and students that allowed the 

network to better understand 

what qualities our families look 

for in a high school and where 

they typically do research during 

the application process. This has 

informed our strategy and 

allowed us to be more targeted 

with where we place 

advertisements as well as what 
messaging is included. With this 

information, New Visions 

promoted the network through a 

variety of media channels and 

partnerships. These paid 

promotions spanned across 

channels such as digital, social, 
print, email, and search. 

Digital and social marketing 

efforts consisted of 
programmatic online 

advertisements through a third-
party vendor partnership. These 

advertisements were shown on 

Facebook and Instagram as well 
as on hundreds of different 

21 / 37 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

online sites such as New York 

Post, Yahoo, Fox News, and more. 
The network also partnered with 

Niche, the #1 global school 
rating and ranking website that 
allowed us to add premium 

details to our school profiles, 
advertise on competitor school 
profiles, show up higher in search 

lists, and retarget families on 

social and digital channels after 
they leave the Niche site. 

New Visions also hosted its own 

Virtual High School Fair and 

participated in the NYC Charter 
Center Virtual Fair. 

In addition to the recruitment 
strategies referenced above, AIM 

I, with the support of New 

Visions, shared bilingual 
information with community 

organizations that work with 

immigrant communities. This 

information promoted the school 
model and the population we 

serve. Our website offers families 

the opportunity to apply online or 
download the application, which 

in the past was only available in 

English and Spanish. We have 

since made our application and 

registration forms available in 7 

additional languages! The 

additional languages are Haitian 

Creole, French, Bengali, Arabic, 
Chinese Traditional (Mandarin), 
Russian, and Urdu. 

The application is also available 

at the school and community 

outreach events where interested 

families are able to apply directly 

at the school or event. Interested 

AIM I plans to continue to 

execute similar strategies as last 
year while also deepening its 

recruitment efforts in its 

relatively new location in 

Brownsville, post-pandemic era. 
The following plans reflect the 

recruitment and enrollment goals 

and efforts of ELL/ML students for 
the 2022-23 school year: 

1. We will ensure that bilingual 
AIM I staff engage with students 

and families during the 
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English Language Learners 

families also have the 

opportunity to call the New 

Visions main network office to 

apply over the phone, where 

there is a designated staff 
member who is bilingual in 

Spanish and able to assist 
families who are Spanish 

speaking. 

New Visions has an extensive 

network of community partners 

that we leveraged in our 
outreach efforts that supports 

families throughout Brooklyn and 

New York City, including 

organizations that provide social 
services to high-need families 

such as those in the foster care 

and shelter systems. These 

included local community-based 

organizations, elected officials, 
faith-based groups, higher 
education institutions, and other 
community institutions such as 

libraries, public housing 

complexes, and local businesses. 
We connected with them via 

mailings, presentations at 
community meetings, and phone 

calls, and emails to promote AIM 

I’s application and information 

about our recruitment process. 

In addition to the recruitment 
strategies referenced above, AIM 

I made efforts to recruit and 

enroll students with disabilities 

as evidenced by the number of 
students currently enrolled, 
through intentional partnerships 

with feeder schools and 

community-based organizations. 
We were intentional in making 

enrollment and intake process. 
2. AIM I’s ENL Specialist is part of 
the recruitment process. Once a 

student has been identified as 

needing ENL services or has 

been identified as an ELL/ML 

student, the ENL Specialist 
interviews the student and 

makes an initial assessment of 
the supports the student may 

need in his/her classes. 
3. AIM I will utilize DOE 

translation services for 
community events when 

recruiting occurs so non-English 

speaking families feel more 

welcomed 

4. AIM I will create events that 
consist of cultural inclusion that 
will innovate new student 
enrollment for 22-23. 

AIM I plans to continue to 

execute similar strategies as last 
year while also deepening its 

recruitment efforts in its 

relatively new location in 
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Students with Disabilities 

sure the schools, CBOs and other 
organizations we connected with 

knew that we support students 

with disabilities, and had a 

plethora of services to 

accommodate students within 

this demographic. We also 

obtained referrals from the New 

York City Department of 
Education’s District 79 and its 

Referral Centers for High School 
Alternatives, centers with a 

mission to reconnect 
disconnected youth with schools. 

AIM I’s ADSPED is also part of the 

recruitment process. She initially 

reviews the IEP and lets the 

recruitment team know if the 

school is able to provide the 

services and support the student 
needs. She meets with students 

and families and answers any 

questions they may have about 
their special education services 

and also informs them what the 

school can provide for them and 

what alternatives are available. 

Brownsville, post-pandemic era. 
The following plans reflect the 

recruitment and enrollment goals 

and efforts of students with 

disabilities for the 2022-23 

school year: 

1. AIM I will build multiple 

pathways to recruit students with 

different learning barriers 

2. AIM I will develop strong 

relationships with District schools 

to recruit students and the 

nearby Committee of Special 
Education 

3. AIM I will reach out to major 
organizations with students with 

disabilities to ensure a better 
quality of learning 

4. AIM I will commit to providing 

strong family relationships for 
students with special needs. 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 

2021-2022 

AIM I is committed to attracting 

and retaining at-risk students 

including economically 

disadvantaged students. We 

make every effort to ensure the 

success and retention of our 
most vulnerable students by 

employing multiple strategies 

and designing specific 

programmatic elements to 
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provide academic and social 
support. AIM I establishes a 

warm, welcoming, and highly 

motivating learning environment 
for all students. Through 

intentional planning, AIM I aims 

to create a strong culture where 

learning thrives and the whole 

child is supported through 

trauma-informed approaches and 

social-emotional learning (SEL). 
The school employs a primary 

person model, where each 

student has a Student Advisor 
who supports them on their path 

toward a high school diploma 

and postsecondary path. Each 

student also has opportunities to 

connect with the school through 

the schools’ key model, the 

Engagement Pathways program. 
This multiple pathway 

opportunity gives students 

choice in selecting the types of 
postsecondary paths that they 

would like to experience during 

and after the school day. In 

addition, we utilize the AIM 

House Model consisting of Base 

Camp, Peak, and Summit where 

credit needs and academic needs 

are balanced when planning for 
graduation. This year, AIM I 
initiated “Literacy Across the 

Disciplines (LAD)”, a cross-
curricular literacy initiative 

whose main goal is to develop 

and strengthen the literacy skills 

of all students through the use of 
a literacy intervention across all 
content areas. 

The school uses the Response to 

Intervention (RtI) framework to 

monitor student progress in all 

AIM I plans to utilize the same 

strategies to retain economically 

disadvantaged students in the 

coming year. The following plans 

reflect the retention goals and 

efforts for economically 

disadvantaged students in the 

2022-23 school year: 

1. AIM I will enhance the 

restorative platform to build a 

positive school culture where 

students can earn points for 
engagement, attendance, and 

completion of work. Students can 

redeem points at the school store 

to obtain gift cards and school 
swag as rewards. In addition, 
students can earn points as a 

house and there are “house 

competitions” to earn points and 

obtain prizes. Also as AIM I 
returns back to school in the fall 
we intend to continue to have 

incentivized field trips and 

events to promote community 

and building relationships. 
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Economically Disadvantaged 

grades, not only incoming 

students. Using this framework, 
the school used multiple data 

points to identify areas of need in 

four domains: number of Regents 

passed and credit accumulation, 
social-emotional support 
(measured by average daily 

attendance), and literacy and 

numeracy needs. For example, 
student attendance was closely 

monitored as it is a well-
established predictor of student 
outcomes. New Visions’ data 

tools provided up-to-date daily 

attendance data for individual 
students which allowed the 

school to monitor and intervene 

quickly with individualized 

support plans. 

This year, AIM I hosted a career 
and resource summit with over 
25 partners to establish 

partnerships for student 
retention purposes and alumni 
support. Each student had 

access to jobs, career resources, 
social services, mentorship, and 

much more. 

In addition, the AIM I certification 

program included many industry 

standard certifications, including, 
OSHA, barbering, security guard 

training, CPR/first aid, and CDOS. 
This certification program 

supported the retention of 
students and their postsecondary 

planning. 

Throughout the school year, AIM I 
embedded many social services 

for students from economically 

disadvantaged backgrounds, 

2. AIM I will utilize restorative 

justice approaches, therapeutic 

crisis intervention training, and 

suicide prevention training as a 

means to meet our most 
vulnerable students. 
3. AIM I will continue to conduct 
internship programs that will 
allow students to receive extra 

income. 
4. AIM I will continue to provide 

students for the 2022-23 school 
year with certifications in 

different postsecondary fields 

5. AIM I will continue for the 

2022-23 school year the 

McKinnley Vento liaison training 

to provide services to students 

who are economically 

disadvantaged. 
6. AIM I will continue to provide 

parent events that will provide 

gift cards, free training, free 

resources to families in need. 
7. AIM I will begin to host back to 

school family events and 

community events once a month 

to engage and get better 
understanding of parents needs 

and wants 

8. AIM will continue to host 
career and resource summits 

with different partnerships 

9. AIM I will continue to support 
student engagement through 

different services to engage 

students and families back into 

the school community 

10. AIM I will create a focus 

group of students for progress 

monitoring of the LAD initiative. 
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including: job resources, housing 

supports, gang diversion, 
male/female empowerment 
courses, life skills courses, 
financial literacy courses, 
entrepreneurship courses and 

curriculum, industry certification 

programs, and anti-violence 

supports. Additionally, any 

student in crisis received the 

option of crisis counseling, 
through a referral process. 
Finally, any family in need, 
received a plan for wellness, 
safety, grief, and/or any related 

crisis, as needed. 

AIM I also connects economically 

disadvantaged students and their 
families with services (e.g. 
mental health, employment, 
social services, etc.) outside the 

school that can serve as valuable 

resources to meet their needs. 

The school worked to identify 

ELL/ML students at the time of 
enrollment so that a support plan 

was put in place immediately. 
Families also completed a Home 

Language Identification Survey 

(HLIS) at this time to determine if 
a student should be administered 

AIM I plan to utilize the same 

strategies to retain English 

Language Learners/Multilingual 
Learners in the coming year. The 

following plans reflect the 

retention goals and efforts for 
ELL/ML students in the 2022-23 

school year: 
This year, AIM I designated an 

ENL/Bilingual Coordinator to 

support ELL/ML students. The 

ENL/Bilingual Coordinator 
provides a push-in or a stand-
alone ENL class depending on 

the student’s English proficiency 

level. 
Progress monitoring of ELL/ML 

students will be done through the 

use of the RtI framework and the 

results of the annual NYSESLAT 
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English Language Learners 

the New York State Identification 

Test for English Language 

Learners (NYSITELL). The results 

from the NYSITELL determined 

the student’s eligibility for 
English as a Second 

Language/English as a New 

Language (ESL/ENL) services. 
AIM I instructional staff provide 

ELL/ML students with extensive 

one-on-one/small group sessions 

during class. 

AIM I is committed to retaining 

students with disabilities. The 

school works to identify special 
needs students at the time of 
enrollment so that a support plan 

is put in place immediately. If a 

student is identified as having an 

IEP, the ADSPED meets with the 

family to review the student’s IEP 

and to make sure the family 

understands the support being 

offered to their child. 
Furthermore, students with 

disabilities are provided direct 
support services through 

integrated co-taught classrooms 

(ICT), special education teacher 
support service (SETSS) classes, 
reading interventions, mandated 

assessment will be used to 

determine the effectiveness of 
the supports used in push-in 

sessions and stand-alone 

sessions. 
New Visions will provide regular 
professional development 
opportunities for this new 

ENL/Bilingual Coordinator as well 
as the entire AIM I instructional 
staff. 
A cohort of AIM I staff will be 

participating in New Visions 

Multilingual Learner Project that 
prepares instructional staff to 

support the needs of multilingual 
learners by providing the cohort 
an opportunity to earn New York 

State certification in TESOL. 
AIM I provided a separate 

progress report to parents of 
ELL/ML students in conjunction 

with the end of term academic 

report cards. 

In addition to the strategies AIM I 
used last school, the following 

strategies will also be utilized in 

the SY 22-23: 
1. AIM I will implement a case 

managing system, where each 

SPED teacher is assigned a 

caseload of students to monitor 
and support during the school 
year. Caseload managers/SPED 

teachers will also create a 

support plan not only for each 

student with disabilities but also 
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Students with Disabilities 

counseling, and any related 

services, as outlined on the IEP. 
With regards to ICT, AIM I has 

ensured that there is a special 
education teacher for each 

content area, which guarantees 

students with disabilities have in-
class supports for academic 

success. 

Students are identified as at-risk 

via Performance Series 

assessment through the AIM I 
intake process. The intake 

process also includes an Intake 

Survey, Intake Interview, Socio-
Emotional Assessment, Success 

Plan, and progress updates. 
Assessments are used to support 
students who are deficient in 

various subject areas and in 

terms of SEL needs. 

All teachers are provided 

assistance with strategies to 

support growth in the areas of 
co-planning, co-teaching, and 

differentiation. 

Finally, AIM I provides parents 

with an end-of-term progress 

report in conjunction with the 

academic report card. 

will create, modify and utilize an 

AIM I RtI Framework for progress 

monitoring students with 

statuses of“not yet” and “off 
track”. 
2. Caseloads for Caseload 

Managers will be in conjunction 

with an Advisor’s caseload. 
3. The Advisor and Caseload 

Manager, the student’s sped 

team, (SST) will meet with the 

family to review the student’s IEP 

and to make sure the family 

understands the support being 

offered to their child. 
4. The SST will meet once a term 

to discuss and review the 

student’s current IEP. 
5. Caseload Managers will create 

Instructional/Behavioral Student 
Plan for each student in their 
caseload. 
6. The SST will meet with the 

student’s parent/guardian before 

the student’s annual IEP 

meeting. 

Entry 10 – Teacher and Administrator Attrition 

Completed Jul 27 2022 

Form for "Entry 10 – Teacher and Administrator
Attrition" Revised to Employee Fingerprint
Requirements Attestation 
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A. TEACH System – Employee Clearance 

Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees[1] receive clearance through the NYSED Office 

of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) prior to employment. This includes 

paraprofessionals and other school personnel who are provided or assigned by the district of 

location, or related/contracted service providers. After an employee has been cleared, schools are 

required to maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all students, 
charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of individuals who have been 

denied clearance. Once the employees have been terminated, the school must terminate the request for 
clearance in the TEACH system. 

In the Annual Report, charter schools are asked to confirm that all employees have been cleared through 

the NYSED TEACH system; and, if denied clearance, confirm that the individual or employee has been 

removed from the TEACH system, and is not employed by the school. 

[1] Employees who must be cleared include, but are not limited to, teachers, administrative staff, janitors, 
security personnel and cafeteria workers, and other staff who are present when children are in the school 
building. This includes paraprofessionals and other school personnel that are provided or 

assigned by the district of location, as well as related/contracted service providers. See NYSED 

memorandum dated October 1, 2019 at http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/programs/charter-
schools/employeefingerprintoct19.pdf or visit the NYSED website at: 
http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/fingerprintingcharts.html for more information regarding who 

must be fingerprinted. Also see, 8 NYCRR §87.2. 
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B. Emergency Conditional Clearances 

Emergency Conditional Clearances 

Charter schools are strongly discouraged from using the emergency conditional clearance provisions for 
prospective employees. This is because the school must request clearance through NYSED TEACH, and the 

school’s emergency conditional clearance of the employee terminates automatically once the school 
receives notification from NYSED regarding the clearance request. Status notification is provided for all 
prospective employees through the NYSED TEACH portal within 48 hours after the clearance request is 

submitted. Therefore, at most, a school’s emergency conditional clearance will be valid for only 48 hours 

after approval by the board. 

Schools are not permitted to renew or in any way re-establish a prospective employee’s emergency 

conditional clearance after status notification is sent by NYSED through the TEACH portal. 

Schools are asked to attest that they have reviewed and understand these requirements. More information 

can be found in the memo at NYSED CSO Employee Clearance and Fingerprint Memo 10-2019. 

Attestation 

Responses Selected: 

I hereby attest that the school has reviewed, understands, and will comply with these requirements. 

Entry 11 Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

Incomplete Hidden from applicant 

Instructions 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance with New 
York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications. Uncertified teachers are those 
not certified pursuant to the State Certification Requirements established by the NYSED Commissioner of 
Education. 

Enter the relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each column. For example, a school 
with 20 full-time teachers and 5 half-time teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5. 

Entry 11 Uncertified Teachers 

School Name: 

31 / 37 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified
Teachers 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools 

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance 

with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications. Uncertified 

teachers are those not certified pursuant to the State Certification Requirements established 

by the NYSED Commissioner of Education. Enter the relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count 

of teachers in each column. For example, a school with 20 full-time teachers and 5 half-time 

teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5. 

If more than one line applies to a teacher, please include in only one FTE uncertified category. Please do 

not include paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides. 

CATEGORY A. 30% OR 5 UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS WHICHEVER IS LESS 

FTE Count 

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 

classroom teaching experience (as of June 30, 
2022) 

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are 

tenured or tenure track college faculty (as of June 

30, 2022) 

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years 

of Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 
2022) 

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with 

exceptional business, professional, artistic, 
athletic, or military experience (as June 30, 2022) 

Total Category A: 5 or 30% whichever is less 0 
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CATEGORY B. PLUS FIVE UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS IN MATHEMATICS, SCIENCE, COMPUTER 

SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY OR CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION. 

FTE Count 

i. Mathematics 

0 Total Category B: not to exceed 5 

ii. Science 

iii. Computer Science 

iv. Technology 

v. Career and Technical Education 

CATEGORY C: PLUS 5 ADDITIONAL UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS 

FTE Count 

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 

classroom teaching experience (as of June 30, 
2022) 

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are 

tenured or tenure track college faculty (as of June 

30, 2022) 

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years 

of Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 
2022) 

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with 

exceptional business, professional, artistic, 
athletic, or military experience (as June 30, 2022) 

Total Category C: not to exceed 5 0 
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TOTAL FTE COUNT OF UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS (Sum of Categories A, B AND C) 

(Include teachers who do not fit in one of these categories or if did fit would exceed the numerical limits for 
that category) 

FTE Count 

Total 

CATEGORY D: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF UNCATEGORIZED, UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS 

(Include teachers who do not fit in one of these categories or if did fit would exceed the numerical limits for 
that category) 

FTE Count 

Total Category D 

CATEGORY E: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF CERTIFIED TEACHERS 

FTE Count 

Total Category E 

CATEGORY F: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF ALL TEACHERS 

Please do not include paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides. 

FTE Count 

Total Category F 

Thank you. 

Entry 12 Organization Chart 
Incomplete Hidden from applicant 
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Instructions 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Upload the 2021-2022 Organization Chart. The organization chart should include position titles and 
reporting relationships. Employee names should not appear on the chart. 

Entry 13 School Calendar 

Completed Jul 27 2022 

Instructions for submitting School Calendar 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

If the charter school has a tentative calendar based on available information and guidance at the time, 
please submit with the August 1, 2022 submission. Charter schools must upload a final school calendar 
into the portal and may do so at any time but no later than September 15, 2022. 

School calendars must meet the minimum instructional requirements as required of other public schools 
“… unless the school’s charter requires more instructional time than is required under the regulations.” 

Board of Regents-authorized charter schools also are required to submit school calendars that clearly 
indicate the start and end date of the instructional year AND the number of instructional hours and/or 
instructional days for each month. See an example of a calendar showing the requested information. 
Schools are encouraged to use a calendar template and ensure there is a monthly tally of instructional 
days. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

NVCHS 2022-2023 TRIMESTER Calendar 

Filename: NVCHS 2022 2023 TRIMESTER Calendar rOiIwe3.pdf Size: 200.3 kB 

Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on School Website 

Completed Jul 27 2022 

Instructions 

Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required 
to submit item 5: Authorizer-approved DASA policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline 
Policy 

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website. 
Please insert the link from the school’s website for each of the items: 

1. Current Annual Report (i.e., 2021-2022 Annual Report);[1] 
2. Board meeting notices, agendas and documents; 
3. New York State School Report Card; 
4. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline Policy (For Regents, 

NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY); 
5. District-wide safety plan, not a building level safety plan (as per the September 2021 Emergency 

Response Plan Memo; 
6. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy; and 
7. Subject matter list of FOIL records. (Example: See NYSED Subject Matter List) 

35 / 37 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 			 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	

[1] Each charter school is required to make the Annual Report publicly available by August 1 and to post 
on their respective charter school website. Each school should post an updated and complete version to 
include accountability data and financial statements that are not or may not be available until after the 
August deadline (i.e., Repost when financials have been submitted in November.) 

Form for Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on
School Website 

School Name: New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required 

to submit item 4: Authorizer-approved DASA policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline 

Policy 

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its 

website. Please insert the link from the school’s website for each of the items: 

Link to Documents 

https://www.newvisions.org/aim1 

https://www.newvisions.org/aim1 

https://www.newvisions.org/aim1 

https://www.newvisions.org/aim1 

https://www.newvisions.org/aim1 

https://www.newvisions.org/aim1 

https://www.newvisions.org/aim1 

1. Current Annual Report (i.e., 2021-2022 Annual 
Report) 

2. Board meeting notices, agendas and documents 

3. New York State School Report Card 

4. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy and NYSED-
Approved School Discipline Policy (For Regents, 
NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter 
Schools ONLY) 

5. District-wide safety plan, not a building level 
safety plan (as per the September 2021 

Emergency Response Plan Memo 

6. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy 

7. Subject matter list of FOIL records. (Example: 
See NYSED Subject Matter List) 

Thank you. 
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Entry 15 Staff Roster 

Incomplete Hidden from applicant 

INSTRUCTIONS 

Required of Regents and NYCDOE-authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Please click on the MS Excel Faculty/Staff Roster Template and provide the following information for ANY 
and ALL instructional and non-instructional employees. 

Use of the 2021-2022 Annual Report Faculty/Staff roster template is required. Each of the data 
elements, with the exception of the Notes, are required, and use of the drop-down options, 
when provided, is also required. Reminders: Please use the notes section provided to add any 
additional information as deemed necessary. Failure to adhere to the guidelines and validations in the 
Staff Roster Template will result in a resubmission of a fully corrected roster. 

Please note the roster should include all staff employed any point from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022, 
including those employed on June 30th. 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

The following individuals prepared this 2021-22 Accountability Progress Report on behalf of the Board of 
Trustees for New Visions AIM Charter High School I: 

● Kristin Greer, Principal 
● Melissa Wass, New Visions Senior Program Officer 
● Allison Cohen, New Visions Director - Data Analytics 
● Isabella Zuco, New Visions Data Analyst 

Trustee’s Name 
Board Position 

Office (e.g. chair, treasurer, 
secretary) 

Committees (e.g. finance, 
executive) 

Elizabeth Chu Chair Finance Committee 

Sharon Hayes Member Education Committee 

Chabeli Lajara Member N/A 

Garrett Lynch Member Finance Committee 

Edgar Rodriguez Secretary Education Committee 

Vikas Shoor Treasurer Finance Commitee 

Daniel Voloch Member FInance Committee 

Kristin Greer has served as Principal of New Visions AIM Charter High School I since 2015. 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

SCHOOL OVERVIEW 
New Visions AIM Charter High School I, formerly ROADS Charter School I, was relaunched in August 2017 
by a restructured Board of Trustees in partnership with charter management organization, New Visions. 

MISSION 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I provides youth who face the greatest obstacles to successful high 
school completion with the supports, experiences and opportunities they need to graduate high school 
prepared for a successful transition into a post-secondary academic or work preparatory program. 

STUDENT POPULATION 

Located in East New York Brooklyn, AIM I serves over-aged and under-credited youth defined as students 
who are at least one grade behind based on age and credit attainment. Students are at least 15 years of 
age when they enroll, have completed 7 grade, and have been retained at least once. The school gives 
admissions priority to students who have been involved with the criminal justice, foster care system, 
and/or child welfare systems, and those who are homeless or runaway youth. As of BEDS Day 2021, 180 
students were enrolled in AIM I. 

KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS 

AIM I offers an intentionally engineered, tightly organized, and highly personalized set of academic 
experiences complemented by robust and integrated social and emotional supports. The core elements 
of the school model are designed to enable high levels of student engagement, timely progress towards 
meeting New York State graduation requirements, and successful planning and transition into 
postsecondary academic or work preparatory programs. More specifically, AIM I’s key design elements 
include: 

1. Evidence-based and technology enabled administrative systems 
2. Defined postsecondary pathways comprised of: 

1. Direct partnerships with postsecondary programs 
2. Postsecondary planning 
3. Academic and career pathway postsecondary preparation 
4. Student outcomes tracking 
5. Alumni support 

3. Intensive and personalized academic supports, including: 
1. Personalize education program assignment based on comprehensive diagnostic assessments 
2. Evidence-based instructional design and delivery 
3. Extended-day academic supports 

4. Flexible and personalized academic programming: 
1. Targeted blended mastery learning 
2. Asynchronous digital learning opportunities 

5. Student advisors who: 
1. Serve as the single point of contact with families 
2. Facilitate productive behavior management 
3. Support students in achieving regular attendance 

6. Provide intensive and integrated social and emotional supports 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 2021-22 Accountability Plan Progress Report Page 3 of 66 



                

          

                              
                                  
                                
                                
                            
                              
  

                          
                                  
                      
                        
                              
                              
                                
                                  
                                  
                                
                                      
                            
  

  

    
  

    
  

    
    

    
  

    
  

                              
  

    
                            

  
                      

  
                              

  
                      

  

          

2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

MODALITIES OF INSTRUCTION 

During the 2021-2022 school year, AIM I leveraged a fully in-person instructional model, with the 
exception of a brief remote learning period from 12/20/21 to 1/14/22 as a proactive response to the 
increase in COVID-19 cases at that time. During the remote period of instruction, the instructional model 
included one day of synchronized live instruction via Zoom for each core subject area and asynchronous 
independent mastery assignments provided via Google Classroom. AIM I followed the tenets of the 
learning model, but shifted from blended learning to remote learning, thus allowing students to still 
work at their own pace and demonstrate mastery of learning standards. 

In addition, AIM I enhanced the blended, self-paced, mastery instructional model to innovatively 
mitigate learning loss based on the disruptions to learning caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. In AIM I’s 
model, blended instruction integrates technology and digital media with traditional instructor-led 
classroom activities, giving students more flexibility to customize their learning experiences. The 
self-paced component provides students with learning tasks that they complete at a speed that is 
customized to their personal levels of mastery. Thus, students can progress through the material based 
on their learning needs. Students may take longer with material they might struggle with, review topics 
that cover material they already know, or repeat topics as needed. The Mastery component to the model 
ensures that students exhibit a certain threshold of competence with a task before moving on to the 
next. In contrast with more traditional forms of instruction where all students are provided the same 
amount of time to achieve competence with a given skill before the teacher moves to the next topic, in 
mastery-based approaches, each student continues to spend time on a skill until they achieve 
proficiency. 

There are four key components to the AIM I Blended Self-Paced Mastery Model: 

1. Students access new content in modules which include teacher created videos, mini lessons, 
peer collaborative work, other teaching resources. 

2. Students develop mastery through practice of classwork embedded in the learning modules, 
class discussion, labs, reading and other activities. 

3. Students submit practice for teacher feedback and then revises practice as needed. 
4. Students demonstrate mastery via a mastery check. 

a. If the mastery check shows mastery of concept, then the student moves to the next 
module. 

b. If the mastery shows a lack of mastery, then the teacher provides feedback and support 
for the student to revise. 

The goal of the instructional model is to help students achieve authentic understanding of academic 
content and skills. Thus, reaching mastery typically involves two stages: 

1. Stage 1: Developing Mastery through Practice 
a. Involves Application: Students take what they've seen in an instructional video and apply 

it to new tasks. 
b. Encourages Collaboration: Students should work together to understand new content 

through peer discourse, feedback, and revision. 
c. Can be Revised: When students make mistakes, they should have the chance to revisit 

and improve their work. 
d. Many Ways of Practice Towards Mastery: Classwork, discussions, labs, readings, 

worksheets, and other types of activities. 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

2. Stage 2: Demonstrating Mastery through Mastery Checks & Assessments 
a. Requires Assessment: Students complete tasks aligned to learning objectives which 

measure whether or not they've learned. 
b. Is Individual: Students should demonstrate mastery on their own, without external 

support. 
c. Can be Reassessed: When students fail to show mastery, they should reassess with a 

new question or task. 

Additionally, as in previous years, AIM I continues to utilize a more clearly defined instructional practice, 
including a standardized lesson format involving teaching videos, guided notes, Mastery Assignments, 
Mastery Checks, and Mastery Assessments. As students embark on the road to mastery, teachers classify 
each lesson to ensure that students are properly grouped to engage in the Mastery Learning Process. 
The Mastery Learning Process involves revision, reassessment, reflection, and mastery. Throughout each 
phase of mastery, teachers focus on a mastery-based grading process to classify students’ self-pacing in 
each lesson/module. 

Teachers utilize the New Visions curriculum, however they conduct a process of modification to identify 
the key standards for each course and then create five performance targets aligned to these standards 
and skills that are necessary for students to be successful within the course. Teachers modify the New 
Visions curriculum to correspond with these units. Furthermore, teachers are able to differentiate for the 
variety of skill levels within the classroom, by providing content/activities that every student “Must Do”, 
higher skill level that students “Should Do” and the highest level of skill that students “Aspire To Do”. 

AIM I provided training, coaching and support to all teachers around the blended, self-paced, mastery 
learning model, in order to effectively structure a virtual classroom, instructional materials, and provide 
students access to lessons (differentiated based on student needs), models, resources, and tasks to 
supplement. AIM I also aligned to the Modern Classroom Projects’ course to ensure all teachers received 
proper training, enrichment, and exemplars for implementation. The adoption of the Modern Classroom 
Project, helped further deepen the school’s mastery model, developed in years past, to a more refined 
learning experience. Additionally, ten teachers were selected to receive one-to-one coaching through the 
Modern Classroom’s scholarship program to further learn about their innovative blended, self-paced, 
mastery-based approach to teaching and learning, designed to support students with a high diversity of 
learning levels and social emotional needs. 

SOCIAL, MENTAL, AND EMOTIONAL HEALTH SUPPORTS 

AIM I’s social emotional support plan for school year 2021-22 is linked here that outlines the various 
supports provided to students and families. 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

ENROLLMENT SUMMARY 
In the table below, we provide AIM I’s BEDS Day enrollment for each school year of this charter term. 

School Enrollment by Grade Level and School Year 
School Year 9 10 11 12 Total 

2017-18 70 40 26 29 165 

2018-19 72 56 30 28 186 

2019-20 67 28 43 34 172 

2020-21 61 40 31 49 181 

2021-22 92 54 23 11 180 

HIGH SCHOOL COHORTS 

ACCOUNTABILITY COHORT 

The Accountability Cohort consists specifically of students who are in their sixth year of high school after 
entering the 9 grade. For example, the 2016 Accountability Cohort consists of students who entered the 
9 grade anywhere in the 2016-17 school year, were enrolled in the school on the state’s annual 
enrollment-determination day (i.e., BEDS day) in the 2021-22 school year or graduated from the school 
prior to their sixth year, and either remained in the school for the rest of the year or left for an 
acceptable reason. 

The following table indicates the number of students in the Accountability Cohorts who are in their sixth 
year of high school anywhere and were enrolled at the school on BEDS Day in October and remained in 
the school until June 30 of that year. 

Sixth-Year High School Accountability Cohorts 

Sixth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year Entered 
9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of Students 
Enrolled on BEDS Day in 
October of the Cohort’s 

Sixth Year 

Number 
Leaving 

During the 
School Year 
(Not nc ud ng 

ear y graduates) 

Number in 
Accountability 
Cohort as of 

June 30th 

2017-18 2012-13 2012 19 2 17 
2018-19 2013-14 2013 29 0 29 
2019-20 2014-15 2014 43 0 43 
2020-21 2015-16 2015 50 0 50 
2021-22 2016-17 2016 51 0 51 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

TOTAL COHORT FOR GRADUATION 

Students are also included in the Total Cohort for Graduation (referred to as the Graduation Cohort, Total 
Graduation Cohort, or Total Cohort interchangeably throughout this report) based on the year they first 
enter the 9 grade. Students enrolled for at least one day in the school after entering the 9 grade are 
part of the school’s Graduation Cohort. The school may remove students from the Graduation Cohort if 
the school has discharged those students for an acceptable reason listed in the SIRS manual, including 
but not limited to the following: if they transfer to another public or private diploma-granting program 
with documentation, transfer to home schooling by a parent or guardian, transfer to another district or 
school, transfer by court order, leave the U.S., or are deceased. 

Sixth Year Total Cohort for Graduation 
Number of Students No Longer 

Sixth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year 
Entered 

9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of 
Students Enrolled 
on June 30th of the 
Cohort’s Sixth Year 

(a) 

at the School Who Had Been 
Enrolled for at Least One Day 

Prior to Leaving the School and 
Who Were Not Discharged for 

an Acceptable Reason 

Total 
Graduation 

Cohort 
(a) + (b) 

(b) 
2017-18 2012-13 2012 17 81 98 
2018-19 2013-14 2013 28 44 72 
2019-20 2014-15 2014 44 55 99 
2020-21 2015-16 2015 47 37 84 
2021-22 2016-17 2016 36 44 80 

PROMOTION POLICY 

At AIM I, we offer students a variety of academic courses to meet NYS graduation requirements. 
Course sequences follow the AIM House model. Please note that any student that enters our school 
generally has gaps in meeting the ninth grade requirements in any content area and is eligible to 
take the tenth grade requirements as a ninth grader. Students’ Regents assessment schedule will 
depend on the course sequence the student is enrolled in. 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

Students will graduate via multiple pathways equipped with the academic, social, emotional, and 
navigation skills to pursue postsecondary education and employment. 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 80 percent of students in their first year at AIM I who were enrolled as of BEDS day will be 
retained through June 30th of the reporting year. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of the high school cohort and examines 
students’ progress toward graduation based on sustained enrollment. The measure requires that, based 
on the school’s enrollment requirements, 80 percent of students in their first year at AIM I, and who 
were enrolled on BEDS day, remained enrolled on June 30 of the reporting year. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Eighty percent of students in their first year at AIM I who were enrolled as of BEDS day were retained 
through June 30, 2022 and therefore met this measure. 

AIM I achieved this measure by establishing strong rapport and utilizing the primary person model. At 
AIM I each first year student is assigned to either a student advisor, a counselor, or a social worker as a 
primary person, for targeted and mandated support. In addition, each staff member was an 
accountability coach to at least 5 to 7 students to provide additional social, emotional, and academic 
support. 

At AIM I, we create a warm, welcoming, and highly motivating learning environment for first year 
students. Additional supports and programming for first year students are below. 

● This year, AIM I expanded our certification program to include additional industry-specific 
certifications to further students within their postsecondary pathways. These certifications 
included: OSHA, Security Guard License, Career Development Occupational Studies, First 
Aid/Health Safety, Barbering, and Lash Technician. Thus creating more attraction and retention 
of new students. 

● AIM I continued to provide and expand upon trauma-informed approaches and social emotional 
learning (SEL), through empowerment and strategic partnerships with community-based 
organizations. 

● AIM I’s first year students also engaged in daily advisory classes that focused on our school’s four 
social emotional competencies: Social Management, Self Management, Social Awareness, and 
Self Awareness. These skills were taught, sustained, and transferred to other contexts/settings. 
Content for advisory was aligned to our school’s SEL partner, Urban Assembly. 

● AIM I embedded SEL empowerment groups to support first year students’ emotional well-being 
and provide skills for our four social emotional competencies that included CARES Wellness 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Circle, Black Boy Leadership, Pure Legacee (Female Empowerment), Sexual Health, and Future 
Life-Skills Planning. 

● AIM I social workers and interns provided at-risk individual and group in-person counseling 
services for students who qualified, were referred, or requested counseling services. 

● Community referrals for services were also provided if first-year students exceeded the social 
emotional capacity for AIM I counseling services. 

● AIM I offered student events and workshops to promote student culture and community 
building, including award ceremonies, supporting families with basic needs, providing 
opportunities for games/competitions, and female and male empowerment workshops. 

● At the end of the school year, students that completed certification programs, CDOS hours, 
and/or empowerment workshops, were provided with a graduation ceremony and an 
appreciation event. 

● AIM I continued implementing and introducing new students to the Engagement Pathways 
(postsecondary pathways), which include college, arts, vocational, 21st century workforce, and 
the alternate pathway. These pathways help support students to be prepared after they 
graduate aligned to a postsecondary portfolio. In addition, this year, AIM I enhanced our 
advisory model, to ensure that first year students had clear postsecondary milestones as goals to 
focus on for their postsecondary future. 

● AIM I students participated in a Career & Community Resource Fair. Representatives and 
agencies from the community support job skills training and postsecondary readiness. 
Participating organizations included: 

○ Coop Tech, Brownsville Jobs Plus, Brooklyn Workforce Innovations, Rebound, 
Comprehensive Youth Development, Inc., Youth Stand United, St Nicks Alliance, 
Housingworks, The Door - A Center of Alternatives, Building Beats, Medgar Evers College 
- CUNY, SUNY Brooklyn Educational Opportunity Center, INCLUDEnyc, New York City 
Teens Connection, Pure Legacee, SCO Family of Service, Opportunities for a Better 
Tomorrow, Destiny Helpers Outreach Inc, and Brooklyn TCAC - Transition & College 
Access Center 

● AIM I also shifted the instructional model upon returning to in-person learning to a blended 
self-paced model. This model not only provided students with the opportunity to work at their 
own pace, but also incorporated personalized learning through small group instruction with 
teachers. 

● AIM I continued to implement Mastery Make-up Week, where students were led by their 
accountability coach to focus on remediation and mitigating learning loss. Each accountability 
coach had a tracker with three priorities each day for students to complete. New students were 
introduced to this process, and were provided with an action plan to support them in their 
journey. 

● For new students that struggled to academically demonstrate mastery, a credit recovery hour 
was placed on their schedule to ensure they completed course work and mitigated their learning 
loss. 

● AIM I also hosted Saturday school Regents prep to support new students with tutoring for the 
Regent exams. 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Retention Rate for Students in Their First Year at AIM I 

School Year 
Retention Rate for First 
Year Students at AIM I 

2017-18 97% 
2018-19 87% 
2019-20 95% 
2020-21 90% 
2021-22 80% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

AIM I continues to meet this goal, however, this year, we noticed a drop in retention, which we attribute 
to the return to in-person learning from a year and half of remote learning. This past year we also 
enrolled an additional 65 new students after BEDs day and 51 of those students remained enrolled 
through June 30th. 

AIM I has maintained a high level of performance in meeting this goal due to our enrollment and intake 
process, primary person model, at-risk/barriers RtI model, Engagement Pathways, trauma-informed 
practices, blended, mastery, self-paced learning model, and the accountability model (individualized 
development plan process). All of these efforts of which the school will continue to implement and 
enhance each year to make progress towards this goal. 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 70 percent of all students at AIM I who were enrolled as of BEDS day will be retained through 
June 30 of the reporting year. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of the high school cohort and examines 
students’ progress toward graduation based on sustained enrollment. The measure requires that, based 
on the school’s enrollment requirements, 70 percent of all AIM I students who were enrolled on BEDS 
day, remained enrolled on June 30 of the reporting year. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Fifty-seven percent of students who were enrolled as of BEDS day were retained through June 30, 2022. 
AIM I fell short of meeting this measure by 13 percentage points. 

The transition from remote to in-person learning had a direct impact on achieving this measure. AIM I 
determined that there were a number of long term absent students during remote learning that also 
struggled to re-engage upon returning to in-person learning. After a data analysis process, ongoing home 
visits and attendance outreach, we discovered that many students, due to COVID, had major life shifts, 
resulting in their transition from AIM I. Students that re-engaged were reintegrated back into the 
community. Unfortunately, there were a significant number of students who did not re-engage and 
become long-term absences and were subsequently discharged, which impacted the school’s overall 
enrollment and retention rate. The following are reasons why students disengaged with the school: 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

● Relocation to another state 
● Need to work to support family 
● GED 
● Parenting, pregnant, expecting 
● Baby-sitting siblings due to COVID or children unable to attend school 
● No response 
● Court-involvement 
● Hospitalizations 
● Bereavement 
● Mental health (social anxiety, clinical and debilitating depression, etc.) 
● Working during school hours 
● Requesting virtual school option 

In addition, we have experienced consistent challenges with attendance since transitioning from remote 
to in-person learning. AIM I has shifted the attendance outreach focus towards in-person supports, 
attendance events, family counseling referrals, truancy intervention plans, and re-defining the 
attendance plan. Each truant students’ attendance plan included elements of interventions and 
incentives, as listed below: 

● Attendance display board: communication of attendance goals and monthly averages 
● Student recognition for perfect attendance 
● Attendance award certificates (Award Nights) 
● Principal’s Breakfast 
● First period breakfast competition 
● School attendance trips 
● Positive phone calls 
● Ice cream socials 
● Pizza parties 
● Class competitions 
● Raffles for prizes 
● Use of social media to post incentives and high engagement 

Retention Rate for All Students 
School Year Retention Rate 

2017-18 93% 
2018-19 81% 
2019-20 87% 
2020-21 92% 
2021-22 57% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

After returning from a year and a half of remote learning, AIM I experienced several barriers which 
impacted their ability to meet this retention target, unlike years prior. Similar to NYC schools in Brooklyn, 
there have been observable and reported declines in enrollment and retention affecting many schools 
since COVID-19. There are three factors impeding AIM I’s ability to meet its retention targets, which 
include: the complexities of re-engaging students, relocation to a new community six months prior to 
transitioning to remote learning due to COVID-19, and the after effects of COVID-19 in returning to 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

in-person learning. All of the retention efforts that were put in place during our first six months in a new 
community back in school year 2019-20 and when we returned back to in-person learning led to 
improvement but fell short of the retention targets. 

The school has been primarily focused on re-engaging students through personalized partners, 
establishing new partnerships, and revising our discharge process. Due to the overwhelming number of 
students not returning post-COVID, AIM I engaged community partnerships to support with outreach, 
specifically our partnership with Advocates for Children (ACS). Each week the attendance coordinator 
met with ACS interns, assigned at AIM I, through our National Cares Mentoring partnership, to visit the 
homes of each student that did not return to AIM I, or deemed LTA. In this process, the aforementioned 
reasons why students did not return were collected and tracked, thus leading to the discharge of 
students that were no longer engaged post-BEDS day. Throughout the year, the attendance team met 
frequently to discuss plans of action, LTA progress, and discharge needs to support the school, students, 
and families. 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 65 percent of students will show significant improvement in their Self-Management Skills as 
measured by their change in T-score from pre to post-DESSA assessment. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its SEL program by enabling students to improve their Self 
Management Skills from fall to spring. To achieve this measure, 65 percent of students who were 
enrolled during both the fall and spring testing window will show significant improvement in their 
Self-Management T-score from pre to post-DESSA assessment. Significant improvement (statistically 
significant improvement) between pre and post-test is determined using the standard error of prediction 
to calculate posttest confidence ranges. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Fifteen percent of students with both fall and spring DESSA scores showed significant improvement in 
their Self-Management Skills T-Score, therefore not meeting this measure. The school fell short of 
meeting this measure by 50 percentage points. 

AIM I faced several barriers, which impacted meeting this new goal. We experienced staffing challenges 
this past year that impacted the SEL program and the DESSA administration, as we utilized the staff-rated 
DESSA assessment. More specifically, the youth development director role was not consistently filled 
throughout the entire school year, which left gaps in training staff on how to administer the DESSA and 
led to inconsistency in which staff rated students. In addition, while vacant the role was unable to 
support advisory lesson planning and feedback. Further we did not have two advisors for the majority of 
the school year. Of the 125 students who were enrolled during the fall and spring testing window only 71 
were assessed twice, due to staffing and attendance challenges. 

1 Standard error of pred ct on s used to ca cu ate the va ues needed to assess the s gn f cance of the pretest-posttests score 
d fference. Posttest conf dence ranges were ca cu ated for each DESSA sca e by Aperture and used to determ ne f a stat st ca y 
s gn f cant change had occurred for each student. 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Percent of Students with Fall to Spring Significant Improvement in 

Their Self-Management Skills T-Score 

School Year 

Number of students 
Enrolled During Fall 
and Spring Testing 

Window 

Number of 
Students with Fall 
and Spring Testing 

Scores 

Percent of Students who 
SHowed Significant 

Improvement in Their 
Self-Management Skills T-Score 

2021-22 125 71 15% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

In the upcoming year AIM I will be moving towards utilizing the student self-rated DESSA which will 
mitigate the consistency issues that we experienced this year. 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 65 percent of students in their first year at AIM I who were enrolled as of BEDS day and 
remain enrolled through June 30 of the reporting year will earn at least ten credits. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of students in their first year at AIM I and 
examines students’ progress toward graduation based on annual credit accumulation. The measure 
requires that 65 percent of students in their first year at AIM I who were enrolled as of BEDS day and 
remain enrolled through June 30 in the reporting year earn at least ten credits. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Fifty percent of students in their first year at AIM I who were enrolled as of BEDS day and remained 
enrolled through June 30, 2022 earned at least ten credits, therefore not meeting this measure. 

Although this measure was not met, there was a drastic improvement from the previous year, with a 35 
percentage point increase. We believe that the refinement and enhancement of the following AIM I 
programs/initiatives led to this improvement: 

● Blended Self-Paced Mastery Model: The return to in-person learning allowed us to add the 
blended component, which gave students the opportunity to engage with teachers in small 
instruction groups and/or individual conferencing 

● Accountability Model: Ensured that for each accountability meeting there was a focus and a 
tracker to support the coaches in achieving this focus 

● Engagement Pathways & Advisory Model: Streamlined the engagement pathways to the advisory 
model and added one to address students with significant barriers to graduation 

● Mastery Make-up Week: Gave students the opportunity at the end of each trimester to 
complete unfinished coursework to ensure they earned all credits for the trimester 

● Community Based Partnerships for Engagement Pathways: One such partnership was specifically 
engaged around PSAT & SAT prep, resulting in increased engagement with academic materials 

● IDPs: Provided students with an opportunity to create goals and also occasions to revisit these 
goals, including academic goals 

● Itutor: a virtual tutor in the highest need classrooms to provide one-on-one supports 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Percent of Students in their First Year at AIM I Earning at least Ten Credits in 2021-22 

School Year 
Number of 

Students in Their 
First Year at AIM I 

Percent Earning 
Ten Credits 

2017-18 38 37% 
2018-19 58 40% 
2019-20 41 59% 
2020-21 27 15% 
2021-22 36 50% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

While AIM I did not achieve this goal, we are back to trending upwards - we were at 59% in SY 2019-20 
(after previously being on an upwards trajectory), then down to 15% during SY 2020-21 while fully 
remote for the year, and are now at 50% which is close to where we were in SY 2019-20. 

The tabel below provides a further breakdown of the number of credits earned by first year students 
enrolled at AIM I for school year 2021-22. 

Credits Earned by First Year Students at AIM I for 
School Year 2021-2022 

Number of Credits Earned # % 
Less Than 5 Credits 12 33% 

Between 5-9 Credits 6 17% 
10+ Credits 18 50% 

One consideration is that AIM I continues to enroll students (and graduate, after one term) throughout 
the school year. This means that students who are enrolled after BEDs day and earned ten or more 
credits are not captured in the data above. There were 51 new students who enrolled after BEDS and 
remained enrolled through June 30th and of those students four earned at least ten credits (8% of new 
students enrolled after BEDS day earned 10+ credits). 

The transition from remote learning to in-person instruction proved to have an impact on first-year 
students, enrolling after BEDS day, and past the half-way mark in the trimester, specifically for students 
coming from a school that may not have had a fully digital learning model. Thus the AIM I instructional 
team worked diligently to make sure Performance Targets were aligned to priority standards, specifically 
in Regents culminating courses, to support gaps in first-year students' learning. Mastery Checks for 
Google Classroom modules and Mastery Assessments for Performance Targets consisted of personalized 
and self-paced problems/questions/tasks from previously disseminated Regents. This allowed new 
students enrolling past BEDS day an opportunity to earn credits. The team also continues to improve on 
the AIM I Blended, Mastery, Self-Paced Learning Model: implementing public-facing trackers that help 
first-year students to keep focus on their pace; module completion so that students are getting the 
appropriate “bite-sized”, targeted, and personalized content; incorporating ANET data analysis to ensure 
that teachers are grouping students effectively for revision and reassessment. 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 65 percent of students enrolled as of BEDS day and remain enrolled through June 30 of the 
reporting year, who have been at AIM I for more than one year will earn at least 8 credits. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of students who have been at AIM I for 
more than one year and examines students’ progress toward graduation based on annual credit 
accumulation. The measure requires that 65 percent of students who were enrolled as of BEDS day and 
remain enrolled through June 30 of the reporting year who have been at AIM I for more than one year 
earn at least eight credits. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Forty-five percent of students who have been at AIM I for more than one year and were enrolled as of 
BEDS day and remained enrolled through June 30, 2022 earned at least eight credits. 

Although this measure was not met, similar to credit accumulation for first year students there was also 
a drastic improvement from the previous year for credit accumulation for returning students, with a 22 
percentage point increase. We believe that in conjunction with the aforementioned retention efforts 
AIM I instituted the following credit accumulation supports also helped to improve our progress towards 
reaching this measure: 

● Blended Self-Paced Mastery Model: The return to in-person learning allowed us to add the 
blended component, which gave students the opportunity to engage with teacher in small 
instruction groups and/or individual conferencing 

● Accountability Model: Ensured that for each accountability meeting there was a focus and a 
tracker to support the coaches in achieving this focus 

● Engagement Pathways & Advisory Model: Streamlined the engagement pathways to the advisory 
model and added one to address students with significant barriers to graduation 

● Mastery Make-up Week: Gave students the opportunity at the end of each trimester to 
complete unfinished coursework to ensure earning of all credits for the trimester 

● Community Based Partnerships for Engagement Pathways: One such partnership was specifically 
engaged around PSAT & SAT prep, resulting in increased engagement with academic materials 

● IDPs: Provided students with an opportunity to create goals and also occasions to revisit these 
goals, including academic goals 

● Itutor: a virtual tutor in the highest need classrooms to provide one-on-one supports 

Percent of Students Who Have Been at AIM I for More Than One Year 
Earning at least Eight Credits in 2021-22 

School Year 
Number of students 

who have been at AIM I 
more than one year 

Percent earning at 
least eight credits 

2017-18 155 34% 
2018-19 92 50% 
2019-20 109 48% 
2020-21 140 23% 
2021-22 66 45% 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

While the school’s credit attainment goal was not met during this school year, the percentage of AIM I 
students enrolled for more than one year who earned at least eight credits is once again on an upward 
trend. Based on the data we discovered that the under credited students that we serve have significant 
credit gaps so through our efforts to mitigate this learning loss we have made a sizable increase. We are 
getting closer to having returning students earning eight or more credits. Upon further inspection of the 
data we note that there is a considerable number of students that earned 4 to 7 credits (30%). This will 
be our target population for this upcoming school year - we will focus on pushing these students towards 
the goal of earning at least the eight credits as this would potentially lead to us achieving and even 
surpassing this goal (75%). 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

By Year 5 (2025-26) of the accountability period, 67% of students will meet 67% of their goals outlined in 
their Individualized Development Plans (IDPs) for the current year. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of students meeting individualized goals around academics, 
SEL, and postsecondary planning as documented in their Individualized Development Plans (IDPs). The 
measure requires that 67% of students will meet 67% of their goals for the current year, as outlined in 
their IDP. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Individualized Development Plan is a new Key Design Element for AIM I for the 2023-2027 charter 
term, and it is a new measure on the accountability plan. Therefore, there is no data to report on for the 
2021-22 school year. We anticipate reporting out on this measure in fall 2023. 

Percent of Students Who Have Met 67% of Their Goals Outlined In Their IDP for 2021-22 

School Year 
Total Number of 

Students 
Percent of students 

meeting 67% of IDP goals 
2021-22 N/A N/A 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

As stated above, the IDP is a new Key Design Element and IDP goals completion is a new measure on the 
school’s accountability plan. However, in order to lay the foundation for an effective IDP system that 
enables us to monitor progress and utilize data for continuous improvement, AIM I has been working 
throughout school year 2021-22 to develop structures, practices, and staff capacity around the IDP 
process. AIM I currently has systems in place for enrollment and intake; creation of the IDP and 
academic, attendance, SEL, and postsecondary goals with the accountability coach using clear and 
consistent processes; selection of an engagement pathway; sharing the IDP and progress monitoring 
with school stakeholders; monthly check-ins and support conversations with students; family 
communication; and processes for school teams to review IDP data, touching on each student at 
minimum once per trimester to follow up around next steps. For school year 2022-23, AIM I will be 
working with the CMO to implement a tracker system to enable school teams to review trends and 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

patterns in data to examine the effectiveness of supports provided and focus on action planning for 
interventions for particular subgroups. 

Goal 1: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students enrolled at AIM I for at least one year will score at or above proficiency, 
or at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on at least one of the five exams required 
for graduation, which may include one of the NYSED-Approved Pathway Assessments in CDOS. 

METHOD 

This measure examines the performance of students who have been enrolled at AIM I for at least one 
year but less than two years and their progress towards graduation based on the passage of exams 
required for graduation. The measure requires that 50 percent of students who have been enrolled at 
AIM I for at least one year but less than two years score at or above proficiency, or at least 55 using the 
safety net option for eligible students, on at least one of the five exams required for graduation, which 
may include one of the NYSED-Approved Pathway Assessments in CDOS. 

As a result of the Board of Regents’ guidance regarding the cancellation of multiple administrations of 
the Regents exams in 2019-20, 2020-21, and 2021-22 schools should report the percentage of students 
who either passed or were exempted from at least one exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Seventy-one percent of students enrolled at AIM I for at least one year have scored at or above 
proficiency, or at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, or earned an exemption on at 
least one of the five exams required for graduation. AIM I met and exceeded this measure by 21 
percentage points. 

At the onset of the school year, AIM I instituted an assessment model that correlated with the AIM I 
instructional model which resulted in key curriculum modifications through a Mastery Learning 
Framework. The ELA and math team implemented the ANet Quiz tool to create ANet assessments 
aligned to the New Visions curriculum as the Mastery Assessment for each course. The ANet 
assessments provide students with rigorous assessments in order to prepare them for the Regents 
exams. The science and social studies team utilized prior Regents exams to create Mastery Assessments 
for each course that aligned to the New Visions curriculum. These assessments provided students the 
practice that they needed with the Regents exam content. 

The implementation of ANET this school year, includes the following accomplishments: 

● Oriented ELA and math teachers to ANET purpose and their quiz tool systems 
● ELA and math teachers utilized the ANET quiz tool to create and administer standards-aligned 

mastery checks for at least two units/ modules 
● ELA and math teachers met in departments with the ANET coach to analyze assessment data 

with ANET protocols 
● ELA and math teachers planned modules to show evidence of use of ANET assessment data to 

inform instruction 

Additionally AIM I incorporated a round of mock Regents in order to prepare students and staff for the 
Regents exams which have been cancelled for the past year a half. Teachers utilized the data from these 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

mock Regents to determine opportunities for growth for students and used this to determine the priority 
standards that needed to be focused on and to further inform their plans for instruction. 

Through the AIM I Accountability Model, each student received bi-weekly reports that aligned to their 
IDP goals. The accountability report provides students with progress and the coaches recommend 
interventions. For students who need specific Regents, they are referred to the Regents prep academy, 
to focus on alternative options towards preparing for the exams, beyond the classroom. 

Percent of Students Who Have Been Enrolled at AIM I for At Least One Year 
Passing One Exam Required for Graduation 

School Year 

Number of students 
who have been 

enrolled at AIM I for at 
least one year 

Percent Passing at 
Least One Exam 

(including exemptions) 

2021-22 55 71% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

AIM I engages in a state of the school address, led by the principal, each trimester. The purpose of this 
address is to provide current data and progress on the school's accountability plan measures, and enable 
teams to discuss strategic plans for forward progress. 

AIM I continued the data analysis and data interpretation process, Data Huddles, to utilize school-wide 
data that aligns to the school’s goals and accountability plan measures. Data Huddles are a strategic 
school-wide approach to diving deeply into data to create action plans that are measurable. Huddles are 
led by trained facilitators to lead a “huddle” around a focused dataset with a clear and guided protocol 
(review data, make observations, interpret, plan). Each data huddle enables teams of staff to reflect, 
review, and action plan around school-wide data each month. 

AIM I continues to use the House Model strategically to set supports in place for students with regards to 
Regents. All of the efforts above, helped AIM I meet this measure, and specifically through intentional 
planning, strategic data, and the implementation of a rigorous assessment. 

Goal 1: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 60 percent of students enrolled at AIM I for at least two years will score at or above 
proficiency, or at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on at least two of the five 
exams required for graduation, which may include one of the NYSED-Approved Pathway Assessments in 
CDOS. 

METHOD 

This measure examines the performance of students who have been enrolled at AIM I for at least two 
years but less than three years and their progress towards graduation based on the passage of exams 
required for graduation. The measure requires that 60 percent of students who have been enrolled at 
AIM I for at least two years but less than three years score at or above proficiency, or at least 55 using 
the safety net option for eligible students, on at least two of the five exams required for graduation, 
which may include one of the NYSED-Approved Pathway Assessments in CDOS. 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

As a result of the Board of Regents’ guidance regarding the cancellation of multiple administrations of 
the Regents exams in 2019-20, 2020-21, and 2021-22 schools should report the percentage of students 
who either passed or were exempted from at least two exams. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Forty-six percent of students enrolled at AIM I for at least two years have scored at or above proficiency, 
or at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, or earned an exemption on at least two of 
the five exams required for graduation, therefore not meeting this measure. 

AIM I fell short of meeting this metric by 14 percentage points. This is the first year we are reporting this 
data as this is a new metric on the school’s accountability plan. While we did not meet the goal, we 
focused students on closing the gaps between credit accumulation and Regents completion, given the 
exemptions allotted. Students that did not meet this goal struggled during the 2020-21 school year due 
to the effects of the pandemic, and thus spent the 2021-22 school year in remediation classes and 
intervention support. Although students increased their credit accumulation, they may not have met the 
requirements for the course sequence, therefore not meeting the exemption requirements for the 
Regents from the previous year. Thus, causing a gap that the school will further address in the coming 
school year with students within this subgroup. 

Percent of Students Who Have Been Enrolled at AIM I for At Least Two Years 
Passing Two Exams Required for Graduation 

Number of students Percent Passing at 

School Year 
who have been 

enrolled at AIM I for at 
least Two Exams 

(including 
least two years exemptions) 

2021-22 24 46% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The school is making progress towards this metric as referenced in the table below: 

Students Enrolled at least Two Years # % 

Passing 0 Regents 6 25% 

Passing 1 Regents 18 75% 

Passing 2+ Regents 11 46% 

During the upcoming school year, AIM I will put in place some practices that will result in future 
increases in this goal. The following are practices that the school will implement to target the students 
enrolled at least two years: 

● Success plans/agreement that the students will develop with their student advisor, to focus their 
growth in the upcoming school year. 

● Accountability conference with the students accountability coaches 
● Targeted Regents preparatory sessions 
● CDOS examination workshops, inclusive of pre and post assessments 
● Tutoring for upcoming Regents examinations 
● Continued and timely messaging around exemptions to students and families 
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Goal 1: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 67 percent of students enrolled at AIM for at least three years will score at or above 
proficiency, or at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on at least three of the five 
exams required for graduation, which may include one of the NYSED-Approved Pathway Assessments in 
CDOS. 

METHOD 

This measure examines the performance of students who have been enrolled at AIM I for at least three 
years or more and their progress towards graduation based on the passage of exams required for 
graduation. The measure requires that 67 percent of students who have been enrolled at AIM I for at 
least three years or more score at or above proficiency, or at least 55 using the safety net option for 
eligible students, on at least three of the five exams required for graduation, which may include one of 
the NYSED-Approved Pathway Assessments in CDOS. 

As a result of the Board of Regents’ guidance regarding the cancellation of multiple administrations of 
the Regents exams in 2019-20, 2020-21, and 2021-22 schools should report the percentage of students 
who either passed or were exempted from at least three exams. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Seventy-four percent of students enrolled at AIM I for at least three years have scored at or above 
proficiency, or at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, or earned an exemption on at 
least three of the five exams required for graduation. AIM I met and exceeded this measure by seven 
percentage points. 

AIM I exceeded this metric based on the following: 

● Generally students in their third year at AIM I, have completed at least three exams, as they 
approach the Summit house and graduation. 

● Based on the AIM I House model, students enter the Summit house, their final year with us, with 
at least three Regents exams and 27+ credits. Therefore, students that are in this category are 
approaching high school completion. 

● Students in this subset are students that exceeded their IDP goal, and overall house promotion 
getting them closer to graduation. 

● Students received accountability conferences, advisor check-in’s, and counseling support 
through advisory to focus them on this goal. 

● The school enacted all of the aforementioned interventions as well, including the following: 
○ Implementation of the ANET assessments towards mastery development 
○ Targeted outreach for students 
○ Instructional supports and personalized teaching strategies 
○ Providing study hall sessions, where they received the support that they individually 

needed. 
○ Alternative daily scheduling with an SEL check-in in every classroom 
○ Co-Advisory planning with the advisors, social workers, and counelors 
○ IDP for accountability coaching 
○ Advisory Model to support SEL, postsecondary, academic achievement, and personal 

development. 
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Percent of Students Who Have Been Enrolled at AIM I for At Least Three Years 
Passing Three Exams Required for Graduation 

School Year 

Number of students 
who have been 

enrolled at AIM I for at 
least three years 

Percent Passing at 
Least Three Exams 

(including 
exemptions) 

2021-22 23 74% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

AIM I engages in a State of the School address, led by the principal, each trimester to identify students 
that are on track, off track, not yet on track, or fast track. The school team engages in data huddles, 
house team meetings, and Teen talk meetings to focus the school on specific interventions for each 
student, resulting in action-oriented efforts. Teen Talk provides an opportunity for teachers, counselors, 
and advisors to share concerns and identify interventions within the classroom. Teen Talk is part of the 
support levels that ensure that students get what they need personally to make at least adequate 
progress. Students reviewed in Teen Talk meetings are monitored to determine next steps as 
appropriate. The data is tracked, implemented, observed, and reported out during the Teen Talk 
meetings. 

AIM I continues to use the House Model strategically to set supports in place for students with regards to 
Regents. All of the efforts above, helped AIM I exceed this measure, and specifically through intentional 
planning, strategic data, and the implementation of a rigorous assessment. 

Goal 1: Absolute Measures 

Each year, 67 percent of students in the sixth year high school Total Graduation Cohort will graduate. 

METHOD 

This measure examines students who entered the 9 grade as members of the 2015 cohort and 
graduated six years later. These data reflect early August graduation rates. At a minimum, these students 
have passed or been exempted from five Regents exams required for high school graduation in ELA, 
mathematics, science, U.S. History, and Global History or met the requirements for the 4+1 pathway to 
graduation.2 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Forty-three percent of students in AIM I’s 2016 cohort graduated after six years, therefore not meeting 
this measure and decreasing slightly from the previous year. 

Although AIM I did not meet this measure, the school has focused on sixth year graduates as an area of 
continued improvement. This year, sixth year graduates were placed in an alternate pathway, focusing 
them on graduation, HSE/GED enrollment, YABC (Young Adult Borough Center) enrollment, or an 
alternate path to success. Students that attend AIM I typically struggle with re-engagement to high 
school and some have barriers to achieving academic success such as parenting, court involvement, and 

2 The state’s gu dance for the 4+1 graduat on pathway can be found here: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/c a /mu t p e-pathways/. 
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foster care involvement. By the sixth year of high school, most students are experiencing a heightened 
level of responsibility, as they age, and progress. Our focus is to support students in their decision to 
graduate high school, and counsel them on their decisions beyond or in spite of. The following efforts 
maintain our approach and further it: 

● AIM I continues to refine the intake process and furthered its social emotional learning program. 
● AIM I continues to focus on conducting a social emotional assessment (to assess students’ 

overall well-being, capacity, self-motivation and resiliency), an embedded advisory program, and 
accountability plans for success. In addition to social emotional support, the school provided 
individualized and targeted support towards graduation, which included re-engagement, 
graduation, and transition plans. 

● As mentioned in previous measures, AIM I utilizes an accountability coach system, where 
coaches meet with their students on their caseload to review their attendance and credit 
accumulation data. This year, AIM I enhanced this model by refining the IDP that coaches use to 
conference with students. Students created goals at the beginning of the year and these were 
documented on the IDP and reflected upon during conferencing meetings with coaches. 

● In addition, AIM I continues to utilize leadership data huddles, which are structured sets of 
conversations at critical decision points in the school year to ensure that students receive the 
opportunities and supports they need to graduate. These conversations are anchored in 
real-time student data that is centralized, transparent, and actionable through data housed in 
the New Visions Data Portal. 

The implementation of the aforementioned interventions and routines had a positive impact on both 
student growth and school staff collaboration. AIM I will continue to target interventions for students int 
eh sixth year cohort, for their ultimate success. 

Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who have Graduated After Six Years 

School Year 
Cohort 

Designation 
Number in 

Cohort 
Percent 

Graduating 
2017-18 2012 91 13% 
2018-19 2013 72 35% 
2019-20 2014 99 38% 
2020-21 2015 84 45% 
2021-22 2016 80 43% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Although AIM I did not meet this measure, the decrease from the previous year is very slight (two 
percentage points) and is still much higher than the first three years. 

AIM I continues to attribute progress to targeted, personalized student supports added to the school’s 
program, a uniformed advisory model, the implementation of SEL competencies, barrier data collection 
and analysis, certifications/internship programs, and a blended, self-paced, mastery model. 
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School Year 
Annual Graduates 

(September 1-August 31) 
2017-18 20 
2018-19 24 
2019-20 51 
2020-21 40 
2021-22 17 

Goal 1: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the six-year high school Total Graduation Cohort graduating will 
exceed that of the Total Cohort from comparable transfer high schools.3 

METHOD 

The school compares the graduation rate of students completing their fourth year in the charter school’s 
Total Graduation Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison. 
Given that district results for the current year are generally not available at this time, for purposes of this 
report schools should include the district’s 2020-21 results as a temporary placeholder for the district’s 
2021-22 results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Forty-three percent of students in AIM I’s 2016 cohort graduated after six years compared to 43% of 
students in the 2015 cohort from comparable transfer high schools. Although the graduation rate for 
AIM I’s 2016 cohort was the same as the 2015 cohort for comparable schools, it did not exceed it and 
therefore did not meet this measure. School data for comparable transfer high school’s 2016 cohort was 
not available for comparison at the time of this report. 

Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who 
Graduate in Six Years Compared to Comparable Transfer High Schools 

School 
Year 

Cohort 
Designation 

Charter School 
Comparable Transfer 

High Schools 
Number in 

Cohort 
Percent 

Graduating 
Number in 

Cohort 
Percent 

Graduating 
2017-18 2012 98 13% 619 50% 
2018-19 2013 72 35% 1199 50% 
2019-20 2014 99 38% 1242 51% 
2020-21 2015 84 45% 807 43% 
2021-22 2016 80 43% TBD TBD 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

While AIM I has not met this measure, as mentioned above, the school has experienced an increase in 
percent of students in the total graduation cohort who graduate in six years from the first three years of 
the charter term. To the contrary, while comparable transfer schools have posted higher percentages of 

3 The NV data team has estab shed cr ter a to determ ne comparab e transfer h gh schoo s us ng an unsuperv sed c uster ng 
mode . The C uster Methodo ogy can be found here. 
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students graduating in six years, these schools have not experienced a gain over time. And last school 
year, AIM I surpassed comparable schools by two percentage points. 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION GOAL 

In school year 2021-22, AIM I met three of the ten measures with data available in the high school 
graduation goal. Data was not available for one measure in school year 2021-22. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 80 percent of students in their first year at AIM who were 
enrolled as of BEDS day will be retained through June 30th of the 
reporting year. 

Achieved 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 70 percent of all students at AIM who were enrolled as of 
BEDS day will be retained through June 30th of the reporting year. 

Not Achieved 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 65 percent of students will show significant improvement 
in their Self-Management Skills as measured by their change in 
T-score from pre to post-DESSA assessment.4 

Not Achieved 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 65 percent of students in their first year at AIM who were 
enrolled as of BEDS day and remain enrolled through June 30th of 
the reporting year will earn at least ten credits. 

Not Achieved 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 65 percent of students enrolled as of BEDS day and 
remain enrolled through June 30th of the reporting year, who have 
been at AIM for more than one year will earn at least eight credits. 

Not Achieved 

Leading 
Indicator 

By Year 5 (2025-26) of the accountability period, 67% of students 
will meet 67% of their goals outlined in their Individualized 
Development Plans (IDPs) for the current year. 

N/A 

Absolute 

Each year, 50 percent of students enrolled at AIM for at least one 
year will score at or above proficiency, or at least 55 using the safety 
net option for eligible students, on at least one of the five exams 
required for graduation, which may include one of the 
NYSED-Approved Pathway Assessments in CDOS. 

Achieved 

Absolute 

Each year, 60 percent of students enrolled at AIM for at least two 
years will score at or above proficiency, or at least 55 using the 
safety net option for eligible students, on at least two of the five 
exams required for graduation, which may include one of the 
NYSED-Approved Pathway Assessments in CDOS. 

Not Achieved 

Absolute 

Each year, 67 percent of students enrolled at AIM for at least three 
years will score at or above proficiency, or at least 55 using the 
safety net option for eligible students, on at least three of the five 
exams required for graduation, which may include one of the 
NYSED-Approved Pathway Assessments in CDOS. 

Achieved 

Absolute 
Each year, 67 percent of students in the sixth year high school Total 
Graduation Cohort will graduate. 

Not Achieved 

4 Standard error of pred ct on s used to ca cu ate the va ues needed to assess the s gn f cance of the pretest-posttests score 
d fference. Posttest conf dence ranges were ca cu ated for each DESSA sca e by Aperture and used to determ ne f a stat st ca y 
s gn f cant change had occurred for each student. 
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Each year, the percent of students in the six-year high school Total 
Comparative Graduation Cohort graduating will exceed that of the Total Cohort Not Achieved 

from comparable transfer high schools.5 

ACTION PLAN 

As mentioned previously, AIM I experienced a shift from remote to in-person learning this past year, and 
the after-effects of the pandemic, including mitigating learning loss, reengaging previously disengaged 
students, and resuming in a new school community. Overall, the 2021-22 school year was filled with 
challenges and yet, the school has managed to pick up the pieces to resume, even with a short shift to 
remote learning during the winter due to an increased number of COVID cases. We believe, over time, 
we will continue to see improvement in a greater percentage of students achieving the measures for the 
high school graduation goal. The following efforts we will implement, enhance, and refine to support the 
overall improvement and progress in the coming year: 

1. Blended Self-Paced Mastery Model. In all courses, teachers identify four-to-five performance targets 
derived from priority state standards to be covered for each course per trimester. These are further 
broken down into smaller modules of learning that students are able to navigate through at their 
own pace. Students are expected to demonstrate progress towards mastery of this targeted content 
and skills and must master content before moving from one unit to the next. AIM I continues to 
refine and enhance this model via a partnership with the Modern Classroom Project and outsourced 
technology coaching. 

2. Data Huddles. A cyclical gathering of leaders, teachers, and staff to implement deep data analysis 
and action planning. AIM I will continue to implement this school-wide data analysis process. Next 
year, AIM I will engage in deeper data analysis protocols with ANET, a Mock Regents data analysis 
process, and literacy and numeracy interventions, for teachers to review, analyze, and use data to 
provide differentiated content and instruction to students’ learning needs. 

3. Individualized Development Plan (IDP). We believe we will improve academic performance and 
credit accumulation by assessing students’ strengths and needs. AIM I will develop an IDP for each 
student, aligning engagement pathways and supports to the IDP, and monitor each student’s 
progress. Additionally, the IDP will be adjusted or revised on a regular basis to ensure the most 
fitting support is in place for each student. Implementing IDPs will improve academic performance 
and credit accumulation because it will increase student ownership of their own goals and learning 
process; increase the clarity and actionability of the partnerships between the student, family, and 
their counselor and other staff; match students with the best engagement pathway; and provide the 
mechanism for school staff to examine the effectiveness of the supports and interventions assigned 
to students at the level of trends and patterns in order to diagnose and address systemic challenges. 

4. House Model. AIM I’s House Model concept will be in its sixth year of implementation during the 
2022-23 school year. Three houses comprise the model including Base Camp, Peak, and Summit. 
Staff members of each house are expected to analyze student data within their respective houses, to 
use it for lesson planning and student check-ins. In addition, last year each house increased its focus 
on postsecondary planning, and the development of a college and career portfolio, which will 
continue in school year 2022-23. We believe that this led to greater student understanding and 

5 The NV data team has estab shed cr ter a to determ ne comparab e transfer h gh schoo s us ng an unsuperv sed c uster ng 
mode . The C uster Methodo ogy can be found here. 
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attention to graduation requirements, and an increase in first year students achieving at least ten 
credits during their first year and anticipate a greater increase in the upcoming school year. 

5. Primary Person Model. The AIM I Primary Person Model fulfills a key component of the youth 
development team, wherein, the student advisor is responsible for the attendance outreach, 
academic advisement, social emotional development, and post-secondary/college & career 
advisement. In the AIM I Primary Person Model, the student advisor acts as the student’s and their 
family’s first point of contact for any of the student’s needs. 

6. Enhanced Intake Process. AIM I will continue to deploy a more fast-paced student enrollment 
process than what is traditionally expected. This is to prevent student drop off from initial 
application to the first day of school and has proven to be a successful process for the school to get 
students into the building on their first day. AIM I has a rolling-admissions process for orienting 
students throughout the year. The intake process involves steps that support the student, collects 
vital information to guide the staff in meeting the student’s needs, and orients the student into our 
school community. 

7. SEL Advisory & Curriculum. AIM I will continue to improve upon the curriculum by implementing a 
21st Century skills advisory model for all advisories, thus resulting in students completing the pre 
and post assessment measuring communication, learning and teamwork, citizenship and social 
responsibility, and information technology communication proficiency. AIM I has been approved as a 
US Ambassador Fellowship Program school site for the upcoming school year. The School 
Ambassador Fellowship is a professional learning community designed to improve educational 
outcomes for students by leveraging the expertise of school-based practitioners in the creation, 
evaluation, and dissemination of information around national education initiatives. Ambassadors 
during their residency in the program complete a research study that is aligned with one or more of 
the secretary of state’s education core initiatives. As a school site, AIM I’s advisory curriculum will 
examine a 21st-century skills advisory model in an alternative high school setting for youth ages 16 
to 21 utilizing a 21st-century skills curriculum, “iDEAS Empowered by Youth®”. The “iDEAS 
Empowered by Youth®” is a project-based learning curriculum that teaches youth about 
entrepreneurship, digital literacy, and financial and social change. This study will use a 
pretest-posttest design utilizing the “bASE21 Assessment” measuring youth’s 21st-century skills 
(Gresse von Wangenheim, Degering, Mioto, Martins-Pacheco, Borgatto, & Petri, 2021). It is 
hypothesized that youth’s 21st-century skills scores will increase in the post-test following the 
12-week curriculum intervention indicating that participants have gained new knowledge of 
21st-century skills in the areas of communication, learning and teamwork, citizenship and social 
responsibility, and information communication technology proficiency. 

8. SEL Assessment. AIM I will continue to address the hiring issues as well as improving our SEL 
program. This includes strong summer planning for advisory for the fall to include a focus on self 
management lessons from School Connect to support meeting this target. Advisory will also include 
a specific module and pilot study on 21st century skills during trimester 2 to support with teaching 
self management skills as well. AIM I will continue to administer a SEL assessment at least twice a 
year to observe representations of the four social emotional competencies. This assessment will 
provide the school with data that will be used to enhance and further develop SEL through advisory, 
the primary person model, and school culture. The Devereux Student Strengths Assessment (DESSA) 
will be utilized to provide the school feedback in supporting each student’s area(s) of growth. Based 
on our experience this past year AIM I will be moving towards using the student self-rated DESSA in 
the upcoming year which will mitigate the consistency issues that we experienced with the 
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staff-rated assessment. The SEL team will utilize data to inform and strengthen the SEL program 
implementation in the following areas: 

○ To frame SEL scores as opportunities for staff to provide students with supports to improve 
their SEL competencies; 

○ Root SEL assessments in observed strength-based behaviors; 
○ Connect SEL assessment outcomes to the programs organized in the Program Matrix to 

better leverage existing supports, and to create any necessary programs that would serve 
gaps highlighted by the data; 

○ Adapt SEL direct instruction scope and sequences in response to SEL assessment outcomes; 
and 

○ Create opportunities for SEL assessment reflection by varying community stakeholders, 
including for students. 

9. Emphasis on Literacy and Numeracy. In order to ensure that our students successfully master 
academic content AIM I will continue to implement a targeted and tiered approach to literacy and 
numeracy, targeting the lowest performing students. These students will be provided with literacy 
and numeracy intervention, as well as using AIM I’s Literacy Across Departments derived literacy 
routines across the core content classes. We will also provide intervention courses through 
research-based software, such as Read 180, System 44, and Freckle Math. 

10. Creating a School-wide Assessment System. AIM I will extend its work with ANet to not only provide 
a suite of formative assessment tools and coaching support around the use of data to drive 
instructional decision-making, but also incorporate interim assessments. This will create a true 
academic assessment system resulting in timely and actionable data to help target instructional and 
SEL interventions as needed, and provide opportunities to accelerate student progress when 
appropriate. 

11. Trauma-Informed & Restorative Justice Approaches. AIM l has indicated a need for training and 
coaching support for teachers, admin, staff, and students with a focus on creating a trauma-informed 
school culture and climate. AIM I will engage in professional development training to support 
teachers, administrators, and staff become knowledgeable on trauma’s impact, gain skills for 
addressing the impact, and work collaboratively to integrate trauma-informed practices school-wide. 
Staff will receive training to empower students as partners in the creation of a trauma-informed 
school as well as in the planning of trauma-informed practices and restorative justice approaches. 
Selected groups of students will become familiar with specific components of a trauma-informed 
school as it relates to SEL, restorative justice, safety and prevention, and supportive environments by 
building skills in conflict resolution, peer mediation, and circle keeping. Selected teachers will receive 
coaching in Danielson Domain 2 Learning Environment; implementing trauma-informed practices to 
meet the SEL needs of students and establish an environment that enhances student success. 
Selected leaders will receive coaching in identifying priorities and creating action plans to address 
those areas including implementing trauma-informed practices to improve school culture and 
climate. 

12. Retention. We believe that this upcoming school year we will return to being successful in our 
retention based on the following actions that we have taken: 

○ Each student that did not maintain at least a 65% attendance rate in school year 2021-22 
received a home visit over the summer to discuss the barriers they faced and create an 
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action plan for the upcoming school year with goals to support the student in achievement 
and retention. 

○ AIM I has focused on marketing our EPIC (Empowerment, Pathways, Internships, & 
Certifications) programs to students to promote engagement and retention at the start of 
the school year to ensure students have selected their ideal program that will keep them 
focused throughout the year. 

○ AIM I continues to enhance the targeted and comprehensive approach to student and family 
orientation activities, and personalized student experience at the start of the school year. 

○ The school will continue to provide students with engaging opportunities, social emotional 
learning support, and postsecondary support. This comprehensive approach helps support 
students to focus on bridging gaps in their learning, connecting their educational journey, 
and preparing students for their postsecondary goals. 

○ AIM I will continue to enhance returning students’ engagement/school culture, trauma 
sensitive interventions, and the primary person model. AIM I is built on the Pillars of 
Transformation, with an emphasis on relationships and relationship building. AIM I 
establishes a warm, welcoming, and highly motivating learning environment for all students, 
thus contributing to our retention of returning students. 

○ AIM I will continue to develop specific approaches towards increasing attendance and 
retention, such as: attendance incentives, implementation of a rewards system and school 
store, and student events. 

○ Each staff member will continue to serve as an accountability coach to at least 5 to 7 
students to provide additional social/emotional and academic support towards retention 
and academic achievement. 

We believe that continued focus and implementation of the strategies outlined above, AIM I will 
continue to increase the percent of students who meet all measures under the high school graduation 
goal of our accountability plan. 
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GOAL 2: POSTSECONDARY OUTCOMES 

GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION 

Students will be prepared for and pursue postsecondary options 

The school offers postsecondary and employment skills programming and has worked to design and 
implement systems for tracking students’ postsecondary planning, applications, and decision-making 
processes. These initiatives and structures include: 

● Student graduation planning coaching with student advisors and entered into the NV Data Portal 
by the school counselor. 

● A postsecondary team that meets regularly with a standing agenda that includes: learning arc 
from New Visions’ Postsecondary Advising Model (PAM), best practice sharing on 
implementation of Xello, Postsecondary Portfolio and CDOS, data entry in New Visions’ Data 
Portal, and postsecondary data review. 

● A certification focus for students within the Vocational Pathway, and those interested focused 
on: 

o OSHA/Construction 
o Safety Training 
o Barbering Apprenticeship Licensing 
o Security Guard License 
o Cosmetology/Esthetician Specialities 

● The continued implementation of Xello, the aforementioned online software for career interest 
surveys, career research, and postsecondary planning. 

● A system for tracking CDOS hour completion and CDOS learning objectives. AIM I continues to 
implement a Postsecondary Portfolio in which milestones are tracked in the New Visions Data 
Portal and Google Classroom. The evidence of learning is supported through Xello and learning 
assignments saved in each students’ Google Drive folder. Courses that align to CDOS learning 
standards, such as advisory have all been CDOS coded and students are being awarded CDOS 
hours through course time in addition to postsecondary and career development activities that 
students participate in during school and after school hours. 

● The National Cares Mentoring Program for Student Council students to gain emotional, social 
and postsecondary skills. 

● The AIM to Lead Internship Program provides students with opportunities for internships and to 
develop workforce skills. 

Goal 2: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 100 percent of students planned to graduate in the reporting year, defined as all students with 
32+ credits and 2+ Regents at the start of Trimester 2, will complete a postsecondary portfolio containing 
a resume, career interest inventory, and postsecondary list. 

METHOD 

For each student, the school maintains a postsecondary portfolio that includes a resume, career interest 
inventory, and postsecondary list. 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Fifty-two percent of students who were planned to graduate completed a postsecondary portfolio 
containing a resume, career interest inventory, and postsecondary list, therefore not meeting this 
measure. 

The students planned to graduate that did not complete their portfolio, fall into one of the following 
categories: 

● Moved to another graduation year, due to poor academic performance, and continuing to work 
on their portfolio for their actual graduation year; 

● Encountered barriers and life circumstances which led to poor attendance and/or latenesses 
which caused them to not to complete their portfolio; 

● Struggled with the after-effects of COVID, thus hindering them from in-person learning; or 
● Struggled with mental health issues. 

Percent of Students Completing a Postsecondary Portfolio 

School Year 
Number of 

Students Planned 
to Graduate 

Percent of Students 
Completing a 

Postsecondary Portfolio 
2021-22 25 52% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

All students that graduated completed their portfolio, with the exception of one student, due to family 
challenges hindering completion. Conversely, all students that were planned to graduate, but have not 
yet graduated, will complete their portfolio in the year of their actual graduation, as is common with 
students that have fallen off-track. Eight of the 25 students planned to graduate are still active at AIM I. 
Of those eight students two have completed their portfolio and four have completed two of the three 
components. AIM I will continue to work towards increasing the percent of students completing their 
postsecondary portfolio through advisories aligned to Engagement Pathways and the use of the Xello 
curriculum as outlined above. 

The tables below provide a further breakdown of the number of planned graduates that completed each 
component of the postsecondary portfolio and the total number components of the portfolio completed 
by each planned graduate. 

Number of Planned Graduates Completing Each Component of the 
Postsecondary Portfolio 

Total # of Planned Graduates = 25 # % 
Planned Grads Completing the Resume 15 60% 
Planned Grads Completing Career Interest Inventory 21 84% 
Planned Grads Completing Postsecondary List 18 72% 
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Number of Postsecondary Portfolio Compnents 
Completed by Planned Graduates 

Total # of Planned Graduates = 25 # % 
Completed 0 of 3 Components 4 16% 
Completed 1 of 3 Components 1 4% 
Completed 2 of 3 Components 7 28% 
Completed 3 of 3 Components 13 52% 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

By Year 5 (2025-26) of the accountability period, 80 percent of students who graduate in the prior 
reporting year will have enrolled in a two- or four-year accredited college, military service, 
industry-aligned career training program, or gained employment6 within one year of their graduation. 

METHOD 

The ultimate measure of whether AIM I has lived up to its mission is whether students are prepared for 
and pursue postsecondary options. AIM I will track and report the percentage of students who graduate 
in the prior reporting year who enroll in a two or four year accredited college, military service, 
industry-aligned career training program, or gain employment within one year of their graduation. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Eight percent of AIM I students who graduated in the school year 2020-21 enrolled in a two or four-year 
accredited college, military service, industry-aligned career training program, or gained employment 
within one year of their graduation, therefore not meeting this measure. 

Matriculation data is collected from the National Student Clearinghouse and counselors collect other 
postsecondary outcomes including military service, technical/occupational institute, or employment. 

Percent of Graduates Enrolling in a Two or Four Year Accredited College, Military Service, 
Industry-Aligned Career Training Program, or Gain Employment 

School 
Year 

Year 
Student 

Graduated 

Number of 
Graduates 

Percent of Graduates Enrolling 
in a Two or Four Year Accredited 

College, Military Service, 
Instrudry-Aligned Career 

Training, or Gain Employment 
2018-19 2017-18 20 17% 
2019-20 2018-19 24 30% 
2020-21 2019-20 51 14% 
2021-22 2020-21 40 8% 

6Ga nfu  emp oyment s def ned by meet ng these 3 cr ter a: 1. PP/T - 24 hours; F/T - 35 hours; 2. Been emp oyed n the same job 
for 3 months (for 3 consecut ve months); 3. Mak ng at east m n mum wage. 
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ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Postsecondary preparedness and enrollment is an area of growth for AIM I. In SY 2020-21, the number of 
graduates declined as well as the number who enrolled in postsecondary institutions, entered military 
service, or secured employment within one year of graduation. We attribute the decrease in both areas 
from the after effects of COVID. 

Despite still being amidst a pandemic, this past year AIM I worked to ensure our seniors maintained a 
focus on making postsecondary plans and decisions before graduation. Each senior met with the college 
and career counselor and designated advisor with whom they had regular check-ins to support their 
emotional well being and to explore their postsecondary options. Once we transitioned back to 
in-person learning our college and career counselor conducted senior meetings monthly and discussed 
postsecondary planning and the importance of completing the portfolio. Seniors have been working on 
completing their postsecondary milestones which include: resume building, S.M.A.R.T. Goals, creating a 
LinkedIn profile, receiving letters of recommendations, and career assessments. Once a week our college 
and career counselor would touch base with our soon to be graduates to support them with their 
postsecondary planning and college and career portfolios. Our college and career counselor invited 
colleges and / or universities to AIM I. We also invited individuals to AIM I to do career presentations for 
all students to attend once a week. In person college tours were on hold at most schools during this 
school year but will resume as colleges allow visitors back on campus. Also, most colleges / universities 
asked that all visitors be vaccinated. 

Looking towards data for next year, in school year 2021-22 there were a total of 16 graduates and of 
those 16 graduates twelve made postsecondary commitments. Commitments for these students 
included attending a 2 or 4 year college or university, enlisting in the military, and seeking employment. 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the sixth year high school Accountability Cohort will demonstrate 
proficiency of CDOS learning standards as defined by NYS through Option 1 or Option 2. 

METHOD 

AIM I administers one of the nationally recognized work readiness credentialing assessments known as 
the SkillsUSA Career Essentials: Career-Ready Assessment. This 50-question, scenario-based, multiple 
choice assessment will help you quantifiably measure your ability to apply employability skills and 
knowledge as defined by the SkillsUSA Framework. AIM I also utilizes option 1 for CDOS credential where 
applicable, which requires students to complete 216 hours of activities aligned to the CDOS standards 
with a minimum of 54 of those hours completed in work-based learning activities in addition to the 
completion of a career plan and employability profile. Therefore, this measure examines the percent of 
the Accountability Cohort that score proficient on the SkillsUSA Career Essentials: Career-Ready 
Assessment by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort as well as students who demonstrated 
proficiency through CDOS-aligned activities. 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 2021-22 Accountability Plan Progress Report Page 32 of 66 



                

          

                            
  

                                
                          
                            
                          
                              
                            
                        
                                
                                  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  

  
  
  

        
        
        
        
        

        

                                      
                              
  

  

                                  
  

  

          

2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Twenty-nine percent of students in AIM I’s 2016 cohort demonstrated proficiency of CDOS learning 
standards, therefore not meeting this measure. 

AIM I provided CDOS opportunities to all potential graduates and ensured that all students had an 
opportunity to partake. These opportunities occurred during Advisory as students completed the Xello 
curriculum and additional support classes aligned to the CDOS assessment. Due to the Regents 
exemptions, many students completed their Regents requirements for a Regents diploma, and focused 
on portfolio completion. However, during this past year, AIM I continued to refine the postsecondary 
milestones students worked to achieve and the methods for monitoring the completion of their 
postsecondary portfolios which included tracking the work-based learning hours students complete. Due 
to this continued focus on building the CDOS program, preparing seniors for the CDOS exam, and 
ensuring that the CDOS standards are aligned to the advisory curriculum, is the focus for the upcoming 
school year. 

Proficiency Rate of CDOS Learning Standards by Sixth Year Accountability Cohort 

Cohort 
Designation 

Sixth Year 
Number in 

Cohort 

Percent Demonstrating 
Proficiency of CDOS 
Learning Standards 

2012 2017-18 17 12% 
2013 2018-19 29 34% 
2014 2019-20 43 53% 
2015 2020-21 50 48% 
2016 2021-22 51 29% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Although there was a decline this past school year, currently 48% of students in cohort 2017 and 28% of 
students in cohort 2018 have met this measure. This demonstrates an increase, driven by the 
aforementioned efforts, thus, a key area for AIM I to continue to refine. 

Goal 2: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school’s postsecondary enrollment rate by six months after high school for students in the 
sixth year Total Cohort will exceed that of the Total Cohort from comparable transfer high schools. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2021-22. 
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SUMMARY OF THE COLLEGE PREPARATION GOAL 

In school year 2021-22, AIM I did not achieve any of the three measures, with data available, in the 
postsecondary outcome goal. One measure was not applicable for school year 2021-22. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 100 percent of students planned to graduate in the 
reporting year, defined as all students with 32+ credits and 2+ 
Regents at the start of Trimester 2, will complete a 
postsecondary portfolio containing a resume, career interest 
inventory, and postsecondary list. 

Not Achieved 

Absolute 

By Year 5 (2025-26) of the accountability period, 80 percent of 
students who graduated in the prior reporting year will have 
enrolled in a two or four year accredited college, military 
service, industry-aligned career training program, or gained 
employment within one year of their graduation. 

Not Achieved 

Absolute 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the sixth year high school 
Accountability Cohort will demonstrate proficiency of CDOS 
learning standards as defined by NYS through Option 1 or 
Option 2. 

Not Achieved 

Comparative 

Each Year, the school's postsecondary enrollment rate by six 
months after high school for students in the sixth year Total 
Cohort will exceed that of the Total Cohort from comparable 
transfer high schools.7 

N/A 

ACTION PLAN 

AIM I will continue to provide all students with postsecondary pathways that they can engage in 
throughout their experience at the school. The Engagement Pathways have been developed to provide 
students with a clear path towards success. AIM I hired a college and counselor in January of 2022 to 
ensure AIM I students are enrolled in Engagement Pathway courses/enrichment programs to achieve 
academic success. Each student will continue to be expected to graduate with a high school diploma and 
a path towards postsecondary, including exposure in the following Engagement Pathways: 

● College Success: The College Success Pathway is designed to engage students who have the 
desire to attain a college degree upon graduation. Students will gain exposure and confidence on 
entering the university system through in and out of state campus tours, scholarship 
opportunities, hands-on financial aid assistance and standardized test tutoring. 

● Arts Career Pathway: This pathway is designed for students interested in a career in the areas of 
performing arts or visual arts including fashion. Students will graduate with an Engagement 
Pathway portfolio towards industry success and/or college enrollment. 

● 21st Century Workforce: The 21st Century Workforce pathway offers a variety of career 
exploration and job readiness programs for students interested in pursuing employment 

7 The NV data team has estab shed cr ter a to determ ne comparab e transfer h gh schoo s us ng an unsuperv sed c uster ng 
mode . The C uster Methodo ogy can be found here. 
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immediately after graduation opportunities are offered both in-school and out-of-school. The 
internship program provides an opportunity for students to explore, research and prepare for 
careers by gaining workplace skills through internship placements, resume building, and access 
to professional certifications. Students will graduate with a workforce portfolio to support their 
search for full-time employment. 

● Vocational & Certification: The Vocational and Certification pathway is geared towards students 
who possess an interest in gaining skills and industry certifications in the areas of culinary arts, 
barbering/cosmetology, graphic design, and much more. Students will participate in hands-on 
career focused curriculum taught by industry professionals, in addition to field trips and job 
shadowing opportunities. Students will graduate with industry credentials and opportunities for 
entry level employment. 

● Alternative Pathway: The alternative pathway is focused on High School Equivalency (HSE) and 
military. This pathway is for students interested in pursuing a HSE or a career in the military. 
Students will graduate with an Engagement Pathway portfolio towards industry success in the 
military. 

Career Development and Occupational Studies Credential (CDOS): AIM I will continue to provide 
students with the opportunity to earn the Career Development and Occupational Studies Credential. The 
CDOS credential is designed to prepare students with the knowledge and skills needed for entry-level 
work. By participating in work-based learning opportunities and career and technical education (CTE) 
workshops/classes, AIM I students can better prepare for life after high school. These experiences may 
help shape students’ future careers and interests and are often a key part of a high-quality academic 
program. All AIM I students will be enrolled in a work based learning class and/or program to complete 
both options of the CDOS for the purposes of postsecondary success. AIM I will continue to implement a 
pre-assessment for the CDOS exam as part of our fall assessments. If a student meets the completion 
criteria for the pre-assessment, they are scheduled to take the CDOS exam. If a student did not pass the 
completion criteria, they were provided with CDOS workshops to prepare for the exam, based on their 
house. All CDOS standards are aligned to the advisory curriculum to provide students with support 
towards mastery. 

Special Considerations: Students with IEPS: Because AIM I has many students with IEP needs and 
transitional services, the SPED postsecondary team members will focus on supporting students with IEPs 
and postsecondary planning through SPED caseload management. This includes but is not limited to 
partnerships with programs for individuals with disabilities and job readiness and collaboration with 
ACCESS-VR for those students who qualify for supportive employment and transitional plans for students 
with disabilities. 

EPIC: Empowerment, Pathways, Internships, & Certifications: AIM I staff will continue to help students 
become stronger and more confident individuals by building their self awareness, self management, 
social awareness and social management skills. The college and career counselor will continue to help 
the engagement pathways to thrive by encouraging students to participate in all activities that are 
offered in their specific pathway so that students have a specific postsecondary plan upon graduation. 
AIM I will continue to expand on their partnerships where we can help students obtain internships in 
their career interest. AIM I will expand on our certification programs by networking with different 
organizations that offer students a valuable certificate. 

SEL Advisory & Curriculum: As mentioned in the previous section’s action plan AIM I will continue to 
improve upon the curriculum by implementing a 21st century skills advisory model for all advisories, 
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thus resulting in students completing the pre and post assessment measuring communication, learning 
and teamwork, citizenship and social responsibility, and information technology communication 
proficiency. AIM I has been approved as a US Ambassador Fellowship Program school site. The School 
Ambassador Fellowship is a professional learning community designed to improve educational outcomes 
for students by leveraging the expertise of school-based practitioners in the creation, evaluation, and 
dissemination of information around national education initiatives. Ambassadors during their residency 
in the program complete a research study that is aligned with one or more of the secretary of state’s 
education core initiatives. As a school site, AIM I’s advisory curriculum will examine a 21st-century skills 
advisory model in an alternative high school setting for youth ages 16 to 21 utilizing a 21st-century skills 
curriculum, “iDEAS Empowered by Youth®”. The “iDEAS Empowered by Youth®” is a project-based 
learning curriculum that teaches youth about entrepreneurship, digital literacy, and financial and social 
change. This study will be using a pretest-posttest design utilizing the “bASE21 Assessment” measuring 
youth’s 21st-century skills (Gresse von Wangenheim, Degering, Mioto, Martins-Pacheco, Borgatto, & 
Petri, 2021). It is hypothesized that youth’s 21st-century skills scores will increase in the pre and 
post-following the 12-week curriculum intervention indicating the participants have gained new 
knowledge of 21st-century skills in the areas of learning and teamwork, citizenship and social 
responsibility, and information communication technology proficiency, and communication. 

Alumni Supports: In the 2021-22 school year, AIM I hired a College and Career Counselor (CCC) who 
supports students in their college and career readiness development. In addition, this team member will 
coordinate the efforts around alumni support. In the coming year, the CCC will facilitate multiple alumni 
events to ensure that the tracking of alumni efforts are enriched. Additionally, AIM I will continue to hire 
a part-time “Bridge Coach” to conduct regular outreach to alumni and connect them to available 
resources and programs as needed. Both of these efforts will be engineered to strengthen the alumni 
outreach and tracking efforts, in tandem with all of the IDP, postsecondary planning and enrichment 
activities students are afforded while enrolled at AIM I. 
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GOAL 3: ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 
GOAL 3: ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

Students will be proficient readers and writers of the English language. 

BACKGROUND 

AIM I uses New Visions’ high-quality instructional curriculum and resources that meet the highest 
learning standards. The New Visions ELA curriculum provides the following resources: 

● Common Scope and Sequence with content aligned to New York State Learning Standards and 
appropriate for courses terminating with New York State Regents Examinations. 

● Unit Plans outline the conceptual understandings and big ideas in each unit, along with content 
specifications and standards. 

● Teacher-Facing Resources including instructional guidance around use of activities such as group 
learning routines; and pacing calendars to guide daily classroom activities. 

● Student Tasks/Activities are sometimes differentiated and consist of vocabulary exercises, close 
reading, and content rich literacy activities. 

● Formative and Summative Assessments that offer students and teachers feedback on their 
progress. 

● Regents Resources include tools and curricular materials to support teachers making 
instructional decisions based on Regents and network-wide data. 

● Embedded Supports for Equal Access including support for students learning English as a new 
language and students with disabilities. 

The New Visions ELA curriculum is driven by an accessible, skills-based approach to literacy. Consisting of 
three year-long courses, the curricular units are organized by the conceptual lenses of the Individual, the 
Quest, and the American and spiral literacy skills across grades 9, 10, and 11. Within each course, unit 
plans provide assessments, resources, and strategies that unpack the skills needed to master the 
learning identified in the ELA Common Core Standards, as well as support the reading, writing, and 
thinking necessary for both the New York State Regents exams and postsecondary coursework. 

This year, AIM I implemented the ANET assessment system to build the appropriate assessment system 
that supports curriculum modifications, equitable instruction, and increased rigor associated with 
student achievement of appropriate grade level standards. ELA teachers received training on the ANET 
Quiz Tool, which provides rigorous assessment questions and tasks. AIM I ELA teachers also administered 
these assessments (formative & summative) to students, analyzed the data and utilized the analysis to 
refine student understanding to ensure student mastery of key standards. 

AIM I also administered mock Regents for practice and preparatory experiences to prepare students for 
academic success and to provide teachers with data to guide instructional practices. This preparation 
opportunity helped to decrease the level of test anxiety that students with trauma usually display during 
state exams. Furthermore, students are able to self-assess and determine where they stand with regards 
to Regents and thus help them prepare for the next rendition. These mock Regents were key this school 
year as students returned to the physical school setting after two years of not taking Regents exams; 
students and teachers both needed to see where there was the greatest opportunity for growth 
regarding students being prepared for success with Regents exams. 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 2021-22 Accountability Plan Progress Report Page 37 of 66 



                

                                  
                                
                              
                            
                          
                      
  

  

  

                                  
                                      
  

    

                                
                                    
                            
                                
                                  
  

                              
                                    
                              
                                
                                        
  

          

                                
                                    
                            
                                          
                                  
                              
                                  
  

                                      
                            
                              
                              
                                      

          

2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Finally, during school year 2021-22, AIM I worked with an external consultant to further develop the AIM 
I Blended Self-Paced Mastery Instructional Model. All AIM I teachers were required to take the Modern 
Classroom Project Free Online Course in order to further enhance the model with researched best 
practices regarding Mastery & Self-Paced Learning. Once teachers completed the PD, the consultant was 
able to refine teacher understanding of key components, specifically regarding Mastery Based Grading: 
Defined Mastery Checks & Assessments; Student Mastery Progress; Revision, Reassessment, Reflection 
& Mastery Cycle; Differentiated Mastery Checks & Assessments: and Student Self-Reflection. 

HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at or above 
Performance Level 3 or score at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on the Regents 
Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administers the Regents English exam that students must pass to graduate. The school scores 
Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently a score at or above 
Performance Level 3 (Partially meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents Exam in English 
Language Arts (Common Core) or scoring at least 55 for safety net eligible students. This measure 
examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 3 or 55 for 
safety net eligible students by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort. 

Due to the state’s cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019-20, 2020-21, 
and 2021-22 some students in the 2016 Cohort who had not previously sat for the exam but were 
scheduled to sit for this exam during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement. As such, the school should report both the number of students who were exempted from 
the exam as well as the percentage of students achieving at least Level 3 among the students who sat for 
the exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Thirty-eight percent of students in AIM I’s 2016 cohort (with valid scores) scored at or above 
Performance Level 3, or scored at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on the 
Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core), therefore not meeting this measure. Although 
AIM I fell short of meeting this measure by 12 percentage points it should be noted that a total of 24 
students, four with no valid score and 20 who had previously sat for the exam, earned Regents 
exemptions. Therefore 82% of students in cohort 2016 met the ELA Regents requirement for graduation. 
The decline can be attributed to cohort 2016 missing multiple opportunities to resit for the ELA Regents 
exam. 

Although AIM I was not able to meet this goal, we were able to take advantage of the Regents 
exemptions that were given during the cancellation of the January Regents exams and previous 
administrations. During this time, we utilized our accountability model to focus our attention and target 
students that needed to sit for the ELA exam. We scheduled accountability conferences bi-weekly and 
provided coaches with a priority list so that each coach could guide their students as to which course the 
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students needed to complete successfully in order to be able to become eligible for the Regents 
exemption. 

Unfortunately due to returning from a year and a half of being remote during the COVID pandemic, 
there were challenges with students resuming an in-person model including taking Regents exams. To 
offset the potential difficulties that we foresaw for students we administered a mock Regents prior to 
the June Regents administration to help students and staff prepare. Teachers were able to use the data 
to determine areas of strength and areas for growth for students so that teachers could adjust 
instruction to be responsive to their needs. Additionally, we continued to work towards enhancing our 
blended self-paced mastery-based instructional program, which we had initiated while remote the 
previous year. This was our first year conducting Blended Self-Pace Mastery Learning in a 
brick-and-mortar setting. 

Another initiative implemented this past year was incorporating ANet in order to increase the rigor of 
assessments in ELA. This year the ELA team was trained to utilize ANet’s Quiztool, which they used to 
create the Mastery Assessments for each Performance Target. This was an introduction to ANet and as 
such is in its early phases of implementation and has also displayed that there is a greater need for 
vertical alignment in the ELA department. 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 3 or 55 for Safety Net Eligible Students on 
Regents English Common Core Exam by Sixth Year Accountability Cohort8 

Cohort 

Sixth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 
(a) 

Number 
exempted 
with No 

Valid 
Score (b) 

Number 
Passing 
with at 
Least a 
65/55 

(c) 

Percent Passing Among 
Students with Valid 

Score 
(c)/(a-b) 

2012 2017-18 17 0 12 71% 
2013 2018-19 29 0 22 76% 
2014 2019-20 43 1 36 86% 
2015 2020-21 50 4 25 54% 
2016 2021-22 51 4 18 38% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Based on the AIM I Mastery Model, the ELA department, focused specifically on students within this 
cohort, to support them towards mastery in the ELA course, and on the ELA Regents exam. The Mastery 
Model incorporates a process where students must master specific core content, which is measured 
through Mastery Assessments. If a student is able to master the content, determined by scoring 80% or 
higher on a mastery assessment, they receive an extension lesson, which deepens their understanding of 
the core content. However, if a student is unable to master the content (receives less than 80%), then 
the ELA teacher gives the student an enrichment lesson, where the student is re-taught using a different 
teaching strategy. The student is then re-assessed and must meet 80% mastery. The cycle is repeated 
until the student achieves mastery and can move to the next ELA unit. 

This year, AIM I further refined and revised the Mastery Model to include elements of the Modern 
Classroom Project. Each passing year, there have been improvements. Most recently, teachers have 

8 Based on the h ghest score for each student on the Eng sh Regents exam 
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begun including student trackers for students to be able to self-monitor their own progress and including 
more rigor in assessments with the use of ANet. 

As indicated in the table below, 43% of students in the 2017 cohort (with valid scores) have passed the 
ELA Regents prior to entering their sixth year. Further, an additional 17 students earned Regents 
exemptions and one student earned a special appeal. Therefore, 90% of students in cohort 2017 have 
met the ELA Regents requirement for graduation prior to the start of their sixth year. In addition, 65% of 
students in cohort 2018 have passed, earned a Regents exemptions or special appeal for the ELA Regents 
required for graduation. 

Percent Achievi g at Least Level 3 or 55 fon r Safety Net Eligible Students by Cohort and Year 

Cohort 
Designation 

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

Number 
in 

Cohort 

Percent 
Passing9 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 0 

2016 60 33% 62 36% 51 38% 
2017 40 24% 54 24% 30 43% 
2018 33 12% 45 12% 46 38% 
2019 26 0% 33 0% 48 10% 
2020 24 0% 39 8% 
2021 27 4% 

Percent Passing / Exempted / Special Appeal by Cohort 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number 
in Cohort 

Total Number 
Exempted 

Number with 
Special Appeal 

Number 
Passing 

Percent Passing/Exempted 

2016 51 24 0 18 82% 
2017 30 17 1 9 90% 
2018 46 18 1 11 65% 
2019 48 9 0 4 27% 
2020 39 2 1 3 15% 
2021 27 2 0 1 11% 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) of 
students completing their sixth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet the school’s Measure of 
Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA accountability system. 

The Institute does not require charters to report on this measure for 2021-22. 

9 Percent pass ng among students w th va d score 
10 Percent pass ng among students w th va d score 
11 AIM’s PI s ca cu ated us ng the 6th year cohort and compared to the schoo ’s MIP wh ch the state sets based on the 4th year 
cohort. 
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Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) in Regents English of students in the sixth year of their high 
school Accountability Cohort will exceed the PI 2 of comparable transfer high schools. 3 

The Institute does not require charters to report on this measure for 2021-22. 

Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, 60 percent of students will grow from fall to spring according to their Lexile level using the 
Performance Series Reading diagnostic assessment. 4 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its English language arts program by enabling students to 
improve their Lexile measure from fall to spring. To achieve this measure, 60 percent of students who 
were enrolled during both the fall testing window and spring testing window will grow from fall to spring 
according to their Lexile measures using the Performance Series Reading diagnostic assessment. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Fifty-eight percent of students who were tested in both the fall and spring, showed growth according to 
their Lexile measures based on the Performance Series reading diagnostic assessment. Although AIM I 
did not meet this measure, AIM I continues to make progress with this measure, more specifically there 
was a one percentage point increase from last year. 

The following key factors have contributed to our continued growth towards meeting this measure: 
utilizing the mastery model where students interacted with more types of text within small group 
instruction, sharing these results back with the Literacy Across the Disciplines (LAD) team to see the 
impact of their work around identifying data-driven strategies to support developing readers, the use of 
more rigorous texts by tier 1 readers, and assessment alignment with ANET. 

Percent of Students with Fall to Spring Growth Based on Lexile 

School Year 

Number of Students 
Enrolled During Fall 
and Spring Testing 

Window 

Number of 
Students 

Tested in Fall 
and Spring 

Percent of Students with 
Lexile Growth 

2017-18 158 54 52% 
2018-19 152 89 40% 
2019-20 N/A N/A N/A 
2020-21 172 35 57% 
2021-22 125 84 58% 

12 AIM’s PI s ca cu ated us ng the 6th year cohort, the PI for comparab e transfer h gh schoo s s ca cu ated us ng the 4th year 
cohort as th s s the on y pub c ava ab e data. 
13 The NV data team has estab shed cr ter a to determ ne comparab e transfer h gh schoo s us ng an unsuperv sed c uster ng 
mode . The C uster Methodo ogy can be found here. 
14 The New V s ons data team has estab shed cr ter a to determ ne comparab e transfer h gh schoo s us ng an unsuperv sed 
c uster ng mode . 
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ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The continued use of Performance Series year after year demonstrates that the majority of AIM I’s 
student population reads well below grade level and primarily need support with fluency. This 
information has helped us to identify literacy strategies to use in the core to support all students, as well 
as through the Read 180 program. The LAD team has continued its work focusing on literacy across the 
disciplines to better understand literacy data, as well as identify strategies to support reading 
development. 

Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students programmed for reading intervention will meet or exceed their 
expected Lexile growth goal based on SRI research. 5 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its literacy intervention program by enabling students who 
were programmed for reading intervention to meet or exceed their expected Lexile growth goal. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Forty-four percent of students programmed for reading intervention, who were tested in both the fall 
and the spring, met or exceeded their expected Lexile growth goal, therefore falling short of meeting this 
measure by six percentage points. 

The AIM I Blended Self-Paced mastery Learning Model lends itself to providing supporting students in 
the ELA classroom. Teachers are able to proactively build in supports for students with Lexile levels 
below 1000L and then are able to enrich students who struggled to show mastery on classroom 
assessments. AIM I also traditionally has provided Read 180 Universal as a literacy intervention to 
developing readers. This dual approach should ensure that students are not missed regardless of where 
they land and are given the academic scaffolding needed for them to be successful. However, this past 
year was tough on the ELA department as two of our newest teachers left abruptly at the beginning of 
the school year. One of the two teachers who left had been identified to lead AIM I’s reading 
intervention, Read 180 and an ELA core class. This left gaps in staffing for ELA core classes and 
intervention. AIM I was able to fill one of the two ELA vacancies before the middle of the school year, but 
the second teacher was not added until after midyear. Getting new teachers (which represent 50% of the 
ELA department) up and running with Read 180, the AIM I Blended Self-Paced Mastery Learning, and 
ANet partnership while trying to resume in-person learning was challenging and directly impacted our 
ability to effectively reach our goal for Lexile growth in interventions. 

15 Expected growth s ca cu ated based on research conducted by Scho ast c and MetaMetr cs. These growth targets set h gh 
ga n expectat ons for students who start off w th a ower enter ng Lex e. 
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Percent of Students Programmed for Reading Intervention 
Who Met or Exceeded their Expected Lexile Growth 

Year 
Number of Students 

Programmed for Reading 
Intervention 

Number of Students 
Programed for Reading 
Intervention and Tested 

in Fall and Spring 

Percent of Students who 
Met or Exceeded their 

Expected Lexile Growth 

2017-18 40 16 25% 
2018-19 29 23 22% 
2019-20 30 N/A N/A 
2020-21 27 6 50% 
2021-22 18 16 44% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

AIM I was able to begin the year focused on ensuring that literacy interventions were provided for 
students according to their Lexile and based on need. In the fall the school identified students who were 
tier 2 or 3 readers and placed them into Read 180 following a review of students’ credits and attendance. 
Read 180 is a tier 2 blended learning program that primarily focuses on reading comprehension but also 
supports fluency, writing skills, and vocabulary. As mentioned above, a staffing issue resulted in not 
being able to progress as we would have liked. Please note that the model AIM I used in the previous 
year, when we met the target, was the same model to be used this year. Furthermore, the work done by 
the LAD team helped to support our accomplishment of 44% of students programmed for an 
intervention meeting or exceeding their expected Lexile growth. We are confident that if we had not had 
the staffing issue this number would have surpassed the previous year sending us on an upward trend. 

Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, the school will reduce by one half the gap between 50 percent and the percentage of students 
from the prior year’s high school Accountability Cohort who scored at or above Performance Level 3 on 
the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core), or scored at least 55 using the safety net 
option for eligible students. After reaching 50 percent proficiency, each subsequent Accountability 
Cohort will continue to demonstrate growth. 

METHOD 

The school administers a Regents English exam that students must pass to graduate. The school scores 
Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently defines the cut off for 
passing and meeting the requirement for graduation as scoring at or above Performance Level 3 
(partially meeting Common Core expectations), or scoring at least 55 for safety net eligible students, on 
the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core). This measure examines the percent of the 
Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 3 or scoring 55 for safety net eligible 
students by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort in comparison to the previous year’s 
Accountability Cohort. 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

AIM I cohort 2016’s ELA pass rate of 38% is lower than cohort 2015’s ELA pass rate of 54%, therefore not 
meeting this measure. As previously mentioned, due to COVID-19 and the cancellation of Regents, 
cohort 2016 had fewer opportunities to sit and pass the ELA Regents than previous cohorts. 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 3 or 55 for Safety Net Eligible Students on 

Regents English Common Core Exam by Sixth Year Accountability Cohort16 

Cohort 
Sixth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 
(a) 

Number 
exempted 
with No 

Valid Score 
(b) 

Number 
Passing with 

at Least a 
65/55 

(c) 

Percent Passing Among 
Students with Valid 

Score 
(c)/(a-b) 

2012 2017-18 17 0 12 71% 
2013 2018-19 29 0 22 76% 
2014 2019-20 43 1 36 86% 
2015 2020-21 50 4 25 54% 
2016 2021-22 51 4 18 38% 

ADDITIONAL CONTEXT AND EVIDENCE 

In looking at this data it is evident that the COVID-19 pandemic impacted AIM I’s effectiveness. Prior to 
the pandemic, our school was increasing the rate at which students were successfully sitting and passing 
the ELA Common Core Regents Exam (71% - 86%). However, after this point there was a rapid decline. 
This decline is in part due to the fact that students had no or limited opportunities to sit for th exam. 

One initiative implemented in the past year to help increase student success in ELA is the training of 
teachers to utilize ANet’s Quiz Tool to create Mastery Assessment in order to increase the rigor of 
assessments. This was the first phase in partnering with ANet - this upcoming year AIM I will be 
incorporating ANet’s Interim Assessments. In doing so, ELA teachers will be able to analyze data to better 
tailor instruction to skills and concepts that students need to strengthen in order to be successful on the 
ELA Regents exams. 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL 

In school year 2021-22, AIM I did not achieved any of the four measures, with data available, in the high 
school English language arts goal. Two measures were not applicable for school year 2021-22. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will score at or above Performance Level 3 or score at least 55 using the 
safety net option for eligible students, on the Regents Exam in English 
Language Arts (Common Core) by the completion of their sixth year in the 
cohort. 

Not Achieved 

Absolute 
Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) on the Regents English exam of 
students completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet 
the state’s Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system 

N/A 

16 Based on the h ghest score for each student on the Eng sh Regents exam 
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Comparative 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English 
Language Arts (Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable 
students in the district meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations. 

N/A 

Growth 
Each year, 60 percent of students will grow from fall to spring according to 
their Lexile level using the Performance Series Reading diagnostic 
assessment 

Not Achieved 

Growth 
Each year, 50 percent of students programmed for reading intervention will 
meet or exceed their expected Lexile growth goal base on SRI research. 

Not Achieved 

Growth 

Each year, the school will reduce by one half the gap between 50 percent 
and the percentage of students from the prior year’s high school 
Accountability Cohort who scored at or above Performance Level 3 on the 
Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core), or scored at least 55 
using the safety net option for eligible students. After reaching 50 percent 
proficiency, each subsequent Accountability Cohort will continue to 
demonstrate growth. 

Not Achieved 

ACTION PLAN 

In the 2022-23 school year, AIM I will continue to focus on achieving and exceeding all measures in the 
English language arts goal. Our instructional priority will continue to be focused on using assessment 
data to drive instruction. AIM I continues to revise and refine the Blended Self-Paced Mastery Model by 
incorporating best practices from the Modern Classroom Project and partnering with them to provide 
quality PD for the AIM I instructional team. Furthermore, AIM I will enhance its partnership with ANet to 
build instructional leader and teacher capacity to use regular formative assessment data to monitor 
student progress and design instruction to meet the needs of students by incorporating ANet interim 
assessments. 

Key Components of class instruction: 
● Teachers teach in an ICT Model 
● Courses are housed in Google Site/Google Classroom with Google slide lessons and teacher 

videos with guided notes 
● Teacher pre-assess students at beginning of course and the beginning of units (Performance 

Targets) 
● Teachers teach 5 Performance Target which are aligned with priority NYS standards for the 

course 
● Content is differentiated utilizing tiered/small group/stations 
● Students are formatively assessed via multiple mastery checks (for understanding) 
● Students are summatively assessed via Mastery Assessments at the end of each Performance 

Target 
● Formative and summative assessments are graded utilizing department and school-wide rubrics 
● Students are provided feedback using a standard protocol 
● Students must attain Mastery, therefore there is a built in process for refining understanding 
● Teachers conference with students frequently 

Teachers will receive support from the AIM I instructional leadership team (ILT), consisting of the 
principal, assistant principal, and assistant director of special education. Each ILT member will have one 
or two departments that they will be responsible for facilitating PD, supporting, and coaching. The two 
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department leads, humanities lead and STEM lead, will be responsible for daily facilitation of 
department common planning meetings. In addition, our new teachers will be assigned mentors from 
the teaching staff as an additional support. 

Beginning in school year 2022-23 AIM I is transitioning to the Renaissance Star Reading assessment due 
to Scantron’s discontinuation of the Performance Series Reading assessment at the end of school year 
2021-22. AIM I will continue to improve in ensuring all active students take the Star Reading diagnostic 
assessment during the first trimester to provide teachers, administrators, and students with a Lexile 
level. Lexile levels will continue to be used to identify students who are in need of additional diagnostic 
testing through the use of nationally normed assessments designed to determine if the student’s 
primary reading support needs are comprehension, fluency or decoding. This program will enable all 
students to focus on reading as part of each content area, and to devote a fluency approach to learning. 

As in previous years, the Star Reading data will help us to identify struggling readers and determine if 
they will benefit from an ELA credit bearing READ 180 course. In SY 2022-23, we will focus the Read 180 
course on students that have severe learning deficits, as well as look at overall attendance, credit needs, 
and data on their ability to decode, to appropriately match students to the program. Further, Lexile 
levels will be used by classroom teachers to appropriately match readers to texts and will use the 
student’s Lexile level to determine if they are making progress towards college readiness reading levels. 
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GOAL 4: MATHEMATICS 

Goal 4: MATHEMATICS 

Students will become proficient in the application of mathematical skills and concepts. 

BACKGROUND 

AIM I uses New Visions’ high-quality instructional curriculum and resources that meet the highest 
learning standards. The New Visions math curriculum provides the following resources: 

● Common Scope and Sequence with content aligned to New York State Learning Standards and 
appropriate for courses terminating with New York State Regents Examinations. 

● Unit Plans outline the conceptual understandings and big ideas in each unit, along with content 
specifications and standards. 

● Teacher-Facing Resources including instructional guidance around use of activities such as group 
learning routines; and pacing calendars to guide daily classroom activities. 

● Student Tasks/Activities are sometimes differentiated and consist of vocabulary exercises, close 
reading, and content rich literacy activities. 

● Formative and Summative Assessments that offer students and teachers feedback on their 
progress. 

● Regents Resources include tools and curricular materials to support teachers making 
instructional decisions based on Regents and network-wide data. 

● Embedded Supports for Equal Access including support for students learning English as a new 
language and students with disabilities. 

This year, AIM I implemented the ANET assessment system to build the appropriate assessment system 
that supports curriculum modifications, equitable instruction, and increased rigor associated with 
student achievement of appropriate grade level standards. Math teachers received training on the ANET 
Quiz Tool, which provides rigorous assessment questions and tasks. AIM I math teachers also 
administered these assessments (formative & summative) to students, analyze the data and utilize the 
analysis to refine student understanding to ensure student mastery of key standards. 

AIM I administered mock Regents for practice and preparatory experiences to prepare students for 
academic success and to provide teachers with data to guide instructional practices. This preparation 
opportunity helped to decrease the level of test anxiety that students with trauma usually display during 
state exams. Furthermore, students are able to self-assess and determine where they stand with regards 
to Regents and thus help them prepare for the next rendition. These mock Regents were key this school 
year as students returned to the physical school setting after two years of not taking Regents exams; 
students and teachers both needed to see where there was the greatest opportunity for growth 
regarding students being prepared for success with Regents exams. 

Finally, during school year 2021-22, AIM I worked with an external consultant to further develop the AIM 
I Blended Self-Paced Mastery Instructional Model. All AIM I teachers were required to take the Modern 
Classroom Project Free Online Course in order to further enhance the model with researched best 
practices regarding Mastery & Self-Paced Learning. Once teachers completed the PD, the consultant was 
able to refine teacher understanding of key components, specifically regarding Mastery Based Grading: 
Defined Mastery Checks & Assessments; Student Mastery Progress; Revision, Reassessment, Reflection 
& Mastery Cycle; Differentiated Mastery Checks & Assessments: and Student Self-Reflection. 
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HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS 

Goal 4: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at or above 
Performance Level 3 or score at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on a Regents 
mathematics exam by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents mathematics exam(s) that students must pass to graduate. The 
school scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently defines the 
cut off for passing and meeting the requirement for graduation as scoring at or above performance Level 
3 (partially meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents mathematics exams or scoring at least 
55 for safety net eligible students. This measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that 
achieved at least Performance Level 3, or 55 for safety net eligible students, by the completion of their 
sixth year in the cohort. 

Due to the state’s cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019-20, 2020-21, 
and 2021-22, some students in the 2016 Cohort who had not previously sat for any mathematics exam 
but were scheduled to sit for one during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement. As such, the school should report both the number of students who were exempted from 
the exam requirement as well as the percentage of students achieving at least Level 3 among the 
students who sat for any exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Thirty-nine percent of students in AIM I’s 2016 cohort (with valid scores) scored at or above Performance 
Level 3, or scored at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on a Regents mathematics 
exam, therefore not meeting this measure. It should be noted that a total of 26 students, 2 with no valid 
score and 24 who had previously sat for the exam, earned Regents exemptions. Therefore, 88% of 
students in cohort 2016 met the math Regents requirement for graduation. 

Although AIM I was not able to meet this goal, we were able to take advantage of the Regents 
exemptions that were given during the cancellation of the January Regents exams and previous 
administrations. During this time, we utilized our accountability model to focus our attention and target 
students that needed to sit for the math exam. We scheduled accountability conferences bi-weekly and 
provided coaches with a priority list so that each coach could guide their students as to which course the 
students needed to complete successfully in order to be able to become eligible for the Regents 
exemption. 

Unfortunately due to returning from a year and a half of being remote during the COVID pandemic, 
there were challenges with students resuming an in-person model including taking Regents exams. To 
offset the potential difficulties that we foresaw for students we administered a mock Regents prior to 
the June Regents administration to help students and staff prepare. Teachers were able to use the data 
to determine areas of strength and areas for growth for students so that teachers could adjust 
instruction to be responsive to their needs. Additionally, we continued to work towards enhancing our 
blended self-paced mastery-based instructional program, which we had initiated while remote the 
previous year. This was our first year conducting Blended Self-Pace Mastery Learning in a 
brick-and-mortar setting. 
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Another initiative implemented this past year was incorporating ANet in order to increase the rigor of 
assessments in math. This year the math team was trained to utilize ANet’s Quiztool, which they used to 
create the Mastery Assessments for each Performance Target. This was an introduction to ANet and as 
such is in its early phases of implementation and has also displayed that there is a greater need for a 
better understanding of the priority standards for the math curriculum. 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 3 or 55 for Safety Net Eligible Students on a 
Regents Mathematics Common Core Exam by Sixth Year Accountability Cohort17 

Cohort 
Sixth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 
(a) 

Number 
exempted 
with No 

Valid Score 
(b) 

Number 
Passing with 

at Least a 
65/55 

(c) 

Percent Passing Among 
Students with Valid 

Score 
(c)/(a-b) 

2012 2017-18 17 0 13 77% 
2013 2018-19 29 0 23 79% 
2014 2019-20 43 0 28 65% 
2015 2020-21 50 1 19 39% 
2016 2021-22 51 2 19 39% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

As indicated in the table below, 36% of students in the 2017 cohort (with valid scores) have passed a 
math Regents prior to entering their sixth year. Further, an additional 21 students earned Regents 
exemptions. Therefore, 100% of students in cohort 2017 have met the math Regents requirement for 
graduation prior to the start of their sixth year. In addition, 83% of students in cohort 2018 have passed 
or earned Regents exemptions for the math Regents requirement for graduation. 

Based on the AIM I Mastery Model, the math department focused specifically on students within this 
cohort, to support them towards mastery in the math course, and on the math Regents exam. The 
Mastery Model incorporates a process where students must master specific core content, which is 
measured through Mastery Assessments. If a student is able to master the content, determined by 
scoring 80% or higher on a mastery assessment, they receive an extension lesson, which deepens their 
understanding of the core content. However, if a student is unable to master the content (receives less 
than 80%), then the math teacher gives the student an enrichment lesson, where the student is 
re-taught using a different teaching strategy. The student is then re-assessed and must meet 80% 
mastery. The cycle is repeated until the student achieves mastery and can move to the next math unit. 

This year, AIM I further refined and revised the Mastery Model to include elements of the Modern 
Classroom Project. Each passing year, there have been improvements. Most recently, teachers have 
begun including student trackers for students to be able to self-monitor their own progress and including 
more rigor in assessments with the use of ANet. 

17 Based on the h ghest score for each student on a mathemat cs Regents exam 
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Percent Achieving at Least Level 3 or 55 for Safety Net Eligible Students by Cohort and Year 

Cohort 
Designation 

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 
Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing18 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing19 

2016 60 40% 62 38% 51 39% 
2017 40 24% 54 26% 30 36% 
2018 33 19% 45 18% 46 40% 
2019 26 13% 33 8% 48 18% 
2020 24 0% 39 6% 
2021 27 4% 

Percent Passing / Exempted / Special Appeal by Cohort 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number 
in Cohort 

Total Number 
Exempted 

Number with 
Special Appeal 

Number Passing Percent Passing/Exempted 

2016 51 26 0 19 88% 
2017 30 21 0 9 100% 
2018 46 22 0 16 83% 
2019 48 26 0 5 65% 
2020 39 13 1 2 41% 
2021 27 3 1 1 19% 

Goal 4: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) on the Regents mathematics exam of students completing their 
sixth in the Accountability Cohort will meet the school’s Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in 
the state’s ESSA accountability system.20 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2021-22. 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) in Regents mathematics of students in the sixth of their high 
school Accountability Cohort will exceed the PI2 of comparable transfer high schools.22 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2021-22. 

18 Percent pass ng among students w th va d score 
19 Percent pass ng among students w th va d score 
20 AIM’s PI s ca cu ated us ng the 6th year cohort and compared to the schoo ’s MIP wh ch the state sets based on the 4th year 
cohort. 
21 AIM’s PI s ca cu ated us ng the 6th year cohort, the PI for comparab e a ternat ve charter schoo s s ca cu ated us ng the 4th 
year cohort as th s s the on y pub ca  ava ab e data. 
22The NV data team has estab shed cr ter a to determ ne comparab e transfer h gh schoo s us ng an unsuperv sed c uster ng 
mode . The C uster Methodo ogy can be found here. 
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Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, 60 percent of students will increase their scaled score from fall to spring using StarMath. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students to improve 
their scaled score from fall to spring. To achieve this measure, 60 percent of students who were enrolled 
during both the fall testing window and spring testing window will grow from fall to spring according to 
their scaled score using Star Math. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Sixty-eight percent of students who were tested during both testing windows, increased their scaled 
score from fall to spring based on the Star Math assessment, therefore meeting and exceeding this 
measure by eight percentage points. 

Math interventions were embedded in the classroom this school year, via our Blended, Self-paced, 
Mastery Learning model. Therefore, all students programmed for a math class were provided universal 
intervention via our Mastery Model. In this model, students are grouped based on their Star Math grade 
level equivalency and provided the appropriate support in small group instruction. Students received 
ongoing formative assessment via Mastery Checks and Mastery Assessments. Furthermore, the data 
from these assessments are used to further support students in refining their understanding of the 
concepts that they did not master. Additionally, through the AIM I partnership with ANet, the Mastery 
Assessments were created via ANet’s Quiz Tool, resulting in more rigorous assessments, which further 
pushed students skill levels within math classes. 

Percent of Students with Increased Scaled Score from Fall to Spring 

School Year 

Number of Students 
Enrolled During Fall 
and Spring Testing 

Window 

Number of 
Students 

Tested in Fall 
and Spring 

Percent of Students with 
Increased Scaled Scores 

2017-18 N/A N/A N/A 
2018-19 152 76 51% 
2019-20 N/A N/A N/A 
2020-21 172 37 52% 
2021-22 125 75 68% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The continued use of Star Math year after year demonstrates that the majority of AIM I’s student 
population needs support with basic numeracy skills. This information has helped us to identify 
numeracy strategies to use in our core math courses to support all students via the Blended Self-Paced 
Mastery Model. We implemented more rigorous assessments within the math department via our 
partnership with ANet and will continue this work on numeracy alignment in the core through the 
implementation of ANet’s Interim Assessments this upcoming school year. We will also further the math 
department’s use of Freckle Math to continue to provide personalized learning opportunities for 
students, aligned to math standards. 
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Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students programmed for mathematics intervention will meet or exceed their 
norm-referenced growth goal from fall to spring. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics intervention program by enabling 
students who were programmed for mathematics intervention to meet or exceed their norm-referenced 
growth goal. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Sixty percent of students programmed for math intervention, who were tested during both testing 
windows, met or exceeded their norm-referenced growth goal from fall to spring, therefore meeting this 
measure and exceeding it by 10 percentage points. 

The AIM I Blended Self-Paced Mastery Learning Model, lends itself to providing support to all students in 
math class. Teachers are able to proactively build in supports for students who scored below grade level 
on the Star Math assessment and then are able to enrich students who struggled to show mastery on 
classroom assessments. This dual level approach ensures that students are not missed regardless of 
where they land and are given the academic scaffolding that is needed for them to be successful. 

Percent of Students Programmed for Mathematics Intervention Who Met or Exceeded their 
Norm-Referenced Growth Goal from Fall to Spring 

School 
Year 

Number of Students 
Programed for 
Mathematics 
Intervention 

Number of Students 
Programed for Mathematics 
Intervention and Tested in 

Fall and Spring 

Percent of Students who Met 
or Exceeded their Growth 

Goal 

2017-18 N/A N/A N/A 
2018-19 111 70 30% 
2019-20 N/A N/A N/A 
2020-21 172 37 52% 
2021-22 97 62 60% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

AIM I continues to work on numeracy support for all students in developing foundational algebraic skills 
that were needed to build students' mathematical understanding. Math educators map performance 
targets based on the key core content that students need to master to become successful in the Regents 
culminating course. AIM I partnered with ANet to ensure that math teachers were utilizing the 
appropriate grade level standards. Teachers also built in the foundational skills within modules (smaller 
bite sized lessons that are part of a performance target). 

AIM I’s further refinement of the AIM I Blended Self-Paced Learning Model will also support progress in 
the upcoming year to improve in this area. AIM I has partnered with the Modern Classroom Project to 
ensure that instructional best practices are incorporated to ensure student success. 
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Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, the school will reduce by one half the gap between 50 percent and the percentage of students 
from the prior year’s high school accountability cohort who scored at or above Performance Level 3, or 
scored at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students on the Regents mathematics exam. 
After reaching 50 percent proficiency, each subsequent Accountability Cohort will continue to 
demonstrate growth. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents mathematics exam(s) that students must pass to graduate. The 
school scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently defines the 
cut off for passing and meeting the requirement for graduation as scoring at or above Performance Level 
3 (partially meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents mathematics exams, or scoring at least 
55 for safety net eligible students. This measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that 
achieved at least Performance Level 3, or 55 for safety net eligible students, by the completion of their 
sixth year in the cohort in comparison to the previous year’s Accountability Cohort. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

AIM I cohort 2016’s math passage rate of 39% is the same as cohort 2015’s math passage rate of 39%, 
therefore not meeting this measure. As previously mentioned, due COVID-19 and the cancellation of 
Regents cohort 2016 had fewer opportunities to sit and pass a math Regents than previous cohorts. 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 3 or 55 for Safety Net Eligible Students on a 
Regents Mathematics Common Core Exam by Sixth Year Accountability Cohort23 

Cohort 
Sixth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 
(a) 

Number 
exempted 
with No 

Valid Score 
(b) 

Number 
Passing with 

at Least a 
65/55 

(c) 

Percent Passing Among 
Students with Valid 

Score 
(c)/(a-b) 

2012 2017-18 17 0 13 77% 
2013 2018-19 29 0 23 79% 
2014 2019-20 43 0 28 65% 
2015 2020-21 50 1 19 39% 
2016 2021-22 51 2 19 39% 

ADDITIONAL CONTEXT AND EVIDENCE 

In looking at this data it is clear that the COVID-19 pandemic clearly impacted AIM I’s effectiveness. Prior 
to the pandemic, our school was increasing the rate at which students were successfully sittings and 
passingthe Algebra I Regents exam (77% - 79%). However, after this point there is a rapid decline. This 
decline is in part due to the fact that students had no or limited opportunities to sit for th exam. 

One initiative implemented in the past year to help increase student success in math is the training of 
teachers to utilize ANet’s Quiz Tool to create Mastery Assessment in order to increase the rigor of 
assessments. This was the first phase in partnering with ANet - this upcoming year AIM I will be 

23 Based on the h ghest score for each student on a mathemat cs Regents exam 
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incorporating ANet’s Interim Assessments. In doing so, math teachers will be able to analyze data to 
better tailor instruction to skills and concepts that students need to strengthen in order to be successful 
on a math Regents exams. 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS GOAL 

In school year 2021-22, AIM I achieved two of the four measures with data available in the high school 
mathematics goal. Two measures were not applicable for school year 2021-22. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will score at or above Performance Level 3 or score at least 55 using the 
safety net option for eligible students, on a Regents mathematics exam by 
the completion of their sixth year in the cohort. 

Not Acheived 

Absolute 
Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) on the Regents mathematics exam of 
students completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet 
the state’s Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

N/A 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exams will 
exceed the percentage of comparable students in the district meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations. 

N/A 

Growth 
Each year, 60 percent of students will increase their scaled score from fall to 
spring using STAR Math. 

Achieved 

Growth 
Each year, 50 percent of students programmed for mathematics intervention 
will meet or exceed their norm-referenced growth goal from fall to spring. 

Achieved 

Growth 

Each year, the school will reduce by one half the gap between 50 percent 
and the percentage of students from the prior year’s high school 
accountability cohort who scored at or above Performance Level 3, or scored 
at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students on the Regents 
mathematics exam. After reaching 50 percent proficiency, each subsequent 
Accountability Cohort will continue to demonstrate growth. 

Not Achieved 

ACTION PLAN 

During the 2022-23 school year, AIM I will continue to focus on its mathematics education program to 
ensure students achieve and exceed all measures in the mathematics goal. Our instructional priority will 
continue to center on the use of assessment data to drive instruction. AIM I continues to revise and 
refine the Blended Self-Paced Mastery Model by incorporating best practices from the Modern 
Classroom Project and partnering with them to provide quality PD for the AIM I instructional team. 
Furthermore, AIM I will enhance its partnership with ANet to build instructional leader and teacher 
capacity to use regular formative assessments to monitor student progress and design instruction to 
meet the needs of students by incorporating ANet interim assessments. 

Key Components of class instruction: 
● Math teachers teach in an ICT model 
● Courses are housed in Google Site/Google Classroom with Google Slide lessons and teacher 

videos with guided notes. 
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● Math teacher pre-assess students at beginning of course and the beginning of units 
(Performance Targets) 

● Math teachers teach 5 Performance Targets which are aligned with priority NYS Standards for 
the course 

● Content is differentiated utilizing tiered/small group/stations 
● Students are formatively assessed via mastery check (for understanding) 
● Students are summatively assessed via Mastery Assessments at the end of each Performance 

Target 
● Formatives and summatives are graded utilizing department and school-wide rubrics 
● Students are provided feedback using a standard protocol 
● Students must attain Mastery, therefore there is an inbuilt process for Refining Understanding 
● Math teachers conference with students frequently 

Math teachers will receive support from the AIM I ILT, consisting of the principal, assistant principal, and 
assistant director of special education. Each team member will have one or two departments that they 
will be responsible for facilitating PD, supporting and coaching. The two department leads, humanities 
lead and STEM lead, will be responsible for daily facilitation of department common planning meetings. 
In addition, our new teachers will be assigned mentors from the teaching staff as an additional support. 

AIM I will continue to improve in ensuring all active students take the STAR Math diagnostic assessment 
during the first trimester to provide teachers, administrators, and students with a math grade proficiency 
level. AIM I will utilize accountability coaches, previously discussed, to meet on zoom with their 
accountability caseload of students to complete the Star Math assessments. This will be conducted the 
first week of instruction with the entire school focused in the afternoon towards ensuring that all 
students have been assessed. The math grade proficiency levels obtained from Star Math will continue 
to be used to identify students who are in need of additional diagnostic testing through the use of 
nationally normed assessments designed to determine the student’s primary math support needs. 
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GOAL 5: SCIENCE 
Goal 5: SCIENCE 

Students will meet state standards for mastery of skills and content knowledge in science. 

BACKGROUND 

AIM I uses New Visions’ high-quality instructional curriculum and resources that meet the highest 
learning standards. The New Visions Science curriculum provides the following resources: 

● Common Scope and Sequence with content aligned to New York State Learning Standards and 
appropriate for courses terminating with New York State Regents Examinations. 

● Unit Plans outline the conceptual understandings and big ideas in each unit, along with content 
specifications and standards. 

● Teacher-Facing Resources including instructional guidance around use of activities such as group 
learning routines; and pacing calendars to guide daily classroom activities. 

● Student Tasks/Activities are sometimes differentiated and consist of vocabulary exercises, close 
reading, and content rich literacy activities. 

● Formative and Summative Assessments that offer students and teachers feedback on their 
progress. 

● Regents Resources include tools and curricular materials to support teachers making 
instructional decisions based on Regents and network-wide data. 

● Embedded Supports for Equal Access including support for students learning English as a new 
language and students with disabilities. 

Upon returning this year to in-person instruction, the science department undertook the task of 
ensuring that students were prepared to master key living environment and earth science standards. 
Science teachers met to discuss the standards and design their curriculum around the key standards. 
Formative and summative assessments administered to students were aligned to these standards with 
the added resource of professional development and instructional coaching geared towards analyzing 
data to inform instruction. AIM I staff also attended ongoing instructional PD hosted by New Visions 
throughout the year. 

AIM I administered mock Regents for practice and preparatory experiences to prepare students for 
academic success and to provide teachers with data to guide instructional practices. This preparation 
opportunity helped to decrease the level of test anxiety that students with trauma usually display during 
state exams. Furthermore, students are able to self-assess and determine where they stand with regards 
to Regents and thus help them prepare for the next rendition. These mock Regents were key this school 
year as students returned to the physical school setting after two years of not taking Regents exams; 
students and teachers both needed to see where there was the greatest opportunity for growth 
regarding students being prepared for success with Regents exams. 

Finally, during the school year 2021-22, AIM I worked with an external consultant to further develop the 
AIM I Blended Self-Paced Mastery Instructional Model. All AIM I teachers were required to take the 
Modern Classroom Project Free Online Course in order to further enhance the model with researched 
best practices regarding Mastery & Self-Paced Learning. Once teachers completed the PD, the consultant 
was able to refine teacher understanding of key components, specifically regarding Mastery Based 
Grading: Defined Mastery Checks & Assessments; Student Mastery Progress; Revision, Reassessment, 
Reflection & Mastery Cycle; Differentiated Mastery Checks & Assessments: and Student Self-Reflection. 
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HIGH SCHOOL SCIENCE 

Goal 5: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on a New 
York State Regents science exam, or score at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, by 
the completion of their sixth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents science exam(s) that students must pass to graduate. The school 
scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently defines the cut off 
for passing and meeting the requirement for graduation as scoring at or above performance Level 3 
(partially meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents science exams or scoring at least 55 for 
safety net eligible students. This measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that 
achieved at least Performance Level 3, or 55 for safety net eligible students, by the completion of their 
sixth year in the cohort. 

Due to the state’s cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019-20, 2020-21, 
and 2021-22, some students in the 2016 Cohort who had not previously sat for the exam but were 
scheduled to sit for this exam during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement. As such, the school should report both the number of students who were exempted from 
the exam as well as the percentage of students passing among the students who sat for the exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Thirty percent of students in AIM I’s 2016 cohort (with valid scores) scored at least 65 on a Regents 
science exam, or scored at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, therefore not 
meeting this measure. In addition, it should be noted that a total of 35 students, 4 with no valid score 
and 31 who had previously sat for the exam, earned Regents exemptions. Therefore 96% of students in 
cohort 2016 met the science Regents requirement for graduation. 

Although AIM I was not able to meet this goal, we were able to take advantage of the Regents 
exemptions that were given during the cancellation of the January Regents exams and previous 
administrations. During this time, we utilized our accountability model to focus our attention and target 
students that needed to sit for a science Regents exam. We scheduled accountability conferences 
bi-weekly and provided coaches with a priority list so that each coach could guide their students as to 
which course the students needed to complete successfully in order to be able to become eligible for the 
Regents exemption. 

Unfortunately due to returning from a year and a half of being remote during the COVID pandemic, 
there were challenges with students resuming an in-person model including taking Regents exams. To 
offset the potential difficulties that we foresaw for students we administered a mock Regents prior to 
the June Regents administration to help students and staff prepare. Teachers were able to use the data 
to determine areas of strength and areas for growth for students so that teachers could adjust 
instruction to be responsive to their needs. Additionally, we continued to work towards enhancing our 
blended self-paced mastery-based instructional program, which we had initiated while remote the 
previous year. This was our first year conducting Blended Self-Pace Mastery Learning in a 
brick-and-mortar setting. 
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Science Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65 or 55 for Safety Net Eligible Students 
by Sixth Year Accountability Cohort24 

Cohort 
Sixth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 
(a) 

Number 
exempted 
with No 

Valid Score 
(b) 

Number 
Passing with 

at Least a 
65/55 

(c) 

Percent Passing Among 
Students with Valid 

Score 
(c)/(a-b) 

2012 2017-18 17 0 9 53% 
2013 2018-19 29 0 22 76% 
2014 2019-20 43 1 29 69% 
2015 2020-21 50 6 20 45% 
2016 2021-22 51 4 14 30% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

As indicated in the table below, 35% of students in the 2017 cohort (with valid scores) have passed a 
science Regents prior to entering their sixth year. Further, an additional 18 students earned Regents 
exemptions. Therefore, 90% of students in cohort 2017 have met the science Regents requirement for 
graduation prior to the start of their sixth year. In addition, 83% of students in cohort 2018 have passed 
or earned Regents exemptions for the science Regents requirement for graduation. 

Science Regents Passing Rate with a score of 65 or 55 for Safety Net Eligible Students by Cohort and Year 

Cohort 
Designation 

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing25 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing26 

2016 60 31% 62 33% 51 30% 
2017 40 21% 54 20% 30 35% 
2018 33 10% 45 8% 46 25% 
2019 26 0% 33 0% 48 5% 
2020 24 0% 39 3% 
2021 27 4% 

Percent Passing / Exempted / Special Appeal by Cohort 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number 
in Cohort 

Total Number 
Exempted 

Number with 
Special Appeal 

Number Passing Percent Passing/Exempted 

2016 51 35 0 14 96% 
2017 30 18 0 9 90% 
2018 46 30 0 8 83% 
2019 48 31 0 1 67% 
2020 39 16 1 1 46% 
2021 27 1 0 1 7% 

24 Based on the h ghest score for each student on any sc ence Regents exam 
25 Percent pass ng among students w th va d score 
26 Percent pass ng among students w th va d score 
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Goal 5: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the fourth year high school Total Cohort passing a Regents science 
exam with a score of 65 or above will exceed that of the students in the high school Total Cohort from 
comparable transfer high schools.27 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2021-22. 

ADDITIONAL CONTEXT AND EVIDENCE 

In looking at this data it is clear that the cancellation of Regents exams due to the COVID-19 pandemic 
has been beneficial for students - many of our older students have been able to obtain Regents 
exemptions based on their ability or having previously passed the corresponding courses. Now that 
Regents exams are back, science is an area of focus for AIM I. The science team is working to identify 
priority standards and align these to the five Performance Targets that they will teach students. Although 
our partnership with ANet does not support science, AIM I’s ILT will be utilizing the same processes that 
ANet uses for ELA and math with the support of New Visions Curriculum & Instruction Team. 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL SCIENCE GOAL 

In school year 2021-22, AIM I did not achieve the one measure, with data available, in the high school 
science goal. One measure was not applicable for school year 2021-22. 

ACTION PLAN 

In the 2022-23 school year, AIM I will continue to focus on achieving and exceeding all measures in the 
Science goal. Our instructional priority will continue to be focused on using assessment data to drive 
instruction. AIM I continues to revise and refine the Blended Self-Paced Mastery Model by incorporating 
best practices from the Modern Classroom Project and partnering with them to provide quality PD. 
Although, AIM I will not be able to utilize the partnership with ANet, we will be incorporating 
Renaissance’s product Freckle to utilize their assessments in the same way the ANet Interim Assessments 
will be used for math and ELA. AIM I ILT and NV Curriculum & Instruction will partner to further build the 
science team’s skill in analyzing data to better tailor instruction to skills and concepts that students need 
to strengthen in order to be successful on the science Regents. 

Key Components of class instruction: 
● Teachers Teach in an ICT Model 
● Courses are housed in Google Site/Google Classroom with Google Slide lessons and teacher 

videos with guided notes 
● Teacher pre-assess students at beginning of course and the beginning of units (Performance 

Targets) 
● Teachers teach 5 Performance Target aligned to priority NYS standards for the coarse 
● Content is differentiated utilizing tiered/small group/stations 
● Students are formatively assessed via multiple check for understanding 
● Students are summatively assessed via Mastery Assessments at the end of each Performance 

Target 
● Formatives and summatives are graded utilizing department and school-wide rubrics 
● Students are provided feedback using a standard protocol 

27The NV data team has estab shed cr ter a to determ ne comparab e transfer h gh schoo s us ng an unsuperv sed c uster ng 
mode . The C uster Methodo ogy can be found here. 
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● Students must attain Mastery, therefore there is an inbuilt process for refining understanding 
● Teachers conference with students frequently 

Teachers will receive support from the AIM I ILT, consisting of the principal, assistant principal, and 
assistant director of special education. Each ILT member will have one or two departments that they will 
be responsible for facilitating PD, supporting and coaching. The two department leads, humanities lead 
and STEM lead, will be responsible for daily facilitation of department common planning meetings. In 
addition, our new teachers will be assigned mentors from the teaching staff as an additional support. 

AIM I will continue to improve in ensuring all active students take the Renaissance Star Reading reading 
diagnostic assessment during the first trimester to provide teachers, administrators, and students with a 
Lexile level. Lexile levels will continue to be used to identify students who are in need of additional 
diagnostic testing through the use of nationally normed assessments designed to determine if the 
student’s primary reading support needs are comprehension, fluency or decoding. This program will 
enable all students to focus on reading as part of each content area, and to devote a fluency approach to 
learning. 
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GOAL 6: SOCIAL STUDIES 

Goal 6: Social Studies 

Students will meet state standards for mastery of skills and content knowledge in social studies. 

BACKGROUND 

AIM I uses New Visions’ high-quality instructional curriculum and resources that meet the highest 
learning standards. The New Visions Social Studies curriculum provides the following resources: 

● Common Scope and Sequence with content aligned to New York State Learning Standards and 
appropriate for courses terminating with New York State Regents Examinations. 

● Unit Plans outline the conceptual understandings and big ideas in each unit, along with content 
specifications and standards. 

● Teacher-Facing Resources including instructional guidance around use of activities such as group 
learning routines; and pacing calendars to guide daily classroom activities. 

● Student Tasks/Activities are sometimes differentiated and consist of vocabulary exercises, close 
reading, and content rich literacy activities. 

● Formative and Summative Assessments that offer students and teachers feedback on their 
progress. 

● Regents Resources include tools and curricular materials to support teachers making 
instructional decisions based on Regents and network-wide data. 

● Embedded Supports for Equal Access including support for students learning English as a new 
language and students with disabilities. 

The curriculum integrates rich primary and secondary texts, maps, images, videos, and other online 
sources into materials that meet the New York State K-12 Social Studies Framework’s objectives and 
provides students an opportunity to improve literacy skills by focusing on thinking critically while 
reading, writing, and speaking like historians. 

Upon returning this year to in-person instruction, the social studies department undertook the task of 
ensuring that students were being prepared to master key social studies standards. Teachers met to 
discuss the standards and design their curriculum around the key standards. Formative and summative 
assessments administered were aligned to these standards with the added resource of professional 
development and instructional coaching geared towards analyzing data to inform instruction. AIM I staff 
also attended ongoing instructional PD hosted by New Visions throughout the year. 

AIM I administered mock Regents for practice and preparatory experiences to prepare students for 
academic success and to provide teachers with data to guide instructional practices. This preparation 
opportunity helps to decrease the level of test anxiety that students with trauma usually display during 
state exams. Furthermore, students are able to self-assess and determine where they stand with regards 
to Regents and thus help them prepare for the next rendition. 

Finally, during the school year 2021-22, AIM I worked with an external consultant to further develop the 
AIM I Blended Self-Paced Mastery Instructional Model. All AIM I teachers were required to take the 
Modern Classroom Project Free Online Course in order to further enhance the model with researched 
best practices regarding Mastery & Self-Paced Learning. Once teachers completed the PD, the consultant 
was able to refine teacher understanding of key components, specifically regarding Mastery Based 
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Grading: Defined Mastery Checks & Assessments; Student Mastery Progress; Revision, Reassessment, 
Reflection & Mastery Cycle; Differentiated Mastery Checks & Assessments: and Student Self-Reflection. 

Goal 6: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on the 
New York State Regents social studies exam, or at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible 
students, by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents social studies exam(s) that students must pass to graduate. The 
school scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently defines the 
cut off for passing and meeting the requirement for graduation as scoring at or above performance Level 
3 (partially meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents social studies exams or scoring at least 
55 for safety net eligible students. This measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that 
achieved at least Performance Level 3, or 55 for safety net eligible students, by the completion of their 
sixth year in the cohort. 

Due to the state’s cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019-20, 2020-21, 
and 2021-22, some students in the 2016 Cohort who had not previously sat for the exam but were 
scheduled to sit for this exam during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement. As such, the school should report both the number of students who were exempted from 
the exam as well as the percentage of students passing among the students who sat for the exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Nine percent of students in AIM I’s 2016 cohort (with valid scores) scored at least 65 on a Regents social 
studies exam, or scored at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, therefore not 
meeting this measure. It should be noted that a total of 29 students, eight with no valid score and 21 
who had previously sat for the exam, earned Regents exemptions. Therefore 84% of students in cohort 
2016 met the social studies Regents requirement for graduation. 

Although AIM I was not able to meet this goal, we were able to take advantage of the Regents 
exemptions that were given during the cancellation of the January Regents exams and previous 
administrations. During this time, we utilized our accountability model to focus our attention and target 
students that needed to sit for a social studies exam. We scheduled accountability conferences bi-weekly 
and provided coaches with a priority list so that each coach could guide their students as to which course 
the students needed to complete successfully in order to be able to become eligible for the Regents 
exemption. 

Unfortunately due to returning from a year and a half of being remote during the COVID pandemic, 
there were challenges with students resuming an in-person model including taking Regents exams. To 
offset the potential difficulties that we foresaw for students we administered a mock Regents prior to 
the June Regents administration to help students and staff prepare. Teachers were able to use the data 
to determine areas of strength and areas for growth for students so that teachers could adjust 
instruction to be responsive to their needs. Additionally, we continued to work towards enhancing our 
blended self-paced mastery-based instructional program, which we had initiated while remote the 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

previous year. This was our first year conducting Blended Self-Pace Mastery Learning in a 
brick-and-mortar setting. 

Social Studies Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65 or 55 for Safety Net Eligible Students 
By Sixth Year Accountability Cohort28 

Cohort 
Sixth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 
(a) 

Number 
exempted 
with No 

Valid Score 
(b) 

Number 
Passing with 

at Least a 
65/55 

(c) 

Percent Passing Among 
Students with Valid 

Score 
(c)/(a-b) 

2012 2017-18 17 0 13 77% 
2013 2018-19 29 0 19 66% 
2014 2019-20 43 1 24 57% 
2015 2020-21 50 5 14 31% 
2016 2021-22 51 8 4 9% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

As indicated in the table below, 40% of students in the 2017 cohort (with valid scores) have passed a 
social studies Regents prior to entering their sixth year. Further, an additional 20 students earned 
Regents exemptions. Therefore, 93% of students in cohort 2017 have met the social studies Regents 
requirement for graduation prior to the start of their sixth year. 

Social Studies Regents Passing Rate with a score of 65 or 55 for Safety Net Eligible Students 
by Cohort and Year 

Cohort 
Designation 

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing29 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing30 

2016 60 23% 62 25% 51 33% 
2017 40 15% 54 16% 30 40% 
2018 33 0% 45 2% 46 4% 
2019 26 0% 33 0% 48 6% 
2020 24 0% 39 3% 
2021 27 0% 

28 Based on the h ghest score for each student on a soc a  stud es Regents exam 
29 Percent pass ng among students w th va d score 
30 Percent pass ng among students w th va d score 
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Percent Passing / Exempted / Special Appeal by Cohort 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number 
in Cohort 

Total Number 
Exempted 

Number with 
Special Appeal 

Number Passing Percent Passing/Exempted 

2016 51 29 0 14 84% 
2017 30 20 0 8 93% 
2018 46 25 0 1 57% 
2019 48 14 0 2 33% 
2020 39 4 0 1 13% 
2021 27 3 0 0 11% 

Goal 6: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the fourth year high school Total Cohort passing a Regents social 
studies exam with a score of 65 or above will exceed that of the students in the high school Total Cohort 
from comparable transfer high schools.3 

The Institute does not require charters to report on this measure for 2021-22. 

ADDITIONAL CONTEXT AND EVIDENCE 

In looking at this data it is clear that the cancellation of Regents exams due to the COVID-19 pandemic 
has been beneficial for students - many of our older students have been able to obtain Regents 
exemptions based on their ability or having previously passed the corresponding courses. Now that 
Regents exams are back, social studies is an area where AIM I needs targeted work in ensuring that the 
social studies team works to identify priority standards and align these to the five Performance Targets 
that they will teach students. Although our partnership with ANet does not support social studies, AIM 
I’s ILT will be utilizing the same processes that ANet uses for ELA and math with the support of New 
Visions Curriculum & Instruction Team. 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL SOCIAL STUDIES GOAL 

In school year 2021-22, AIM I did not achieve the one measure, with data available, in the high school 
social studies goal. One measure was not applicable for school year 2021-22. 

ACTION PLAN 

In the 2022-23 school year, AIM I will continue to focus on achieving and exceeding all measures in the 
social studies goal. Our instructional priority will continue to be focused on using assessment data to 
drive instruction. AIM I continues to revise and refine the Blended Self-Paced Mastery Model by 
incorporating best practices from the Modern Classroom Project and partnering with them to provide 
quality PD. Although, AIM I will not be able to utilize the partnership with ANet, we will be incorporating 
Renaissance’s product Freckle to utilize their assessments in the same way the ANet Interim Assessments 
will be used for math and ELA. AIM I ILT and NV Curriculum & Instruction will partner to further build the 
social studies team’s skills in analyzing data to better tailor instruction to skills and concepts that 
students need to strengthen in order to be successful on the social studies Regents. 

31The NV data team has estab shed cr ter a to determ ne comparab e transfer h gh schoo s us ng an unsuperv sed c uster ng 
mode . The C uster Methodo ogy can be found here. 
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Key Components of class instruction: 
● Teachers Teach in an ICT Model 
● Courses are housed in Google Site/Google Classroom with Google Slide lessons and teacher 

videos with guided notes 
● Teacher pre-assess students at beginning of course and the beginning of units (Performance 

Targets) 
● Teachers teach 5 Performance Target aligned to priority NYS standards for the coarse 
● Content is differentiated utilizing tiered/small group/stations 
● Students are formatively assessed via multiple check for understanding 
● Students are summatively assessed via Mastery Assessments at the end of each Performance 

Target 
● Formatives and summatives are graded utilizing department and school-wide rubrics 
● Students are provided feedback using a standard protocol 
● Students must attain Mastery, therefore there is an inbuilt process for refining understanding 
● Teachers conference with students frequently 

Teachers will receive support from the AIM I ILT, consisting of the principal, assistant principal, and 
assistant director of special education. Each ILT member will have one or two departments that they will 
be responsible for facilitating PD, supporting and coaching. The two department leads, humanities lead 
and STEM lead, will be responsible for daily facilitation of department common planning meetings. In 
addition, our new teachers will be assigned mentors from the teaching staff as an additional support. 

AIM I will continue to improve in ensuring all active students take the Renaissance Star Reading reading 
diagnostic assessment during the first trimester to provide teachers, administrators, and students with a 
Lexile level. Lexile levels will continue to be used to identify students who are in need of additional 
diagnostic testing through the use of nationally normed assessments designed to determine if the 
student’s primary reading support needs are comprehension, fluency or decoding. This program will 
enable all students to focus on reading as part of each content area, and to devote a fluency approach to 
learning. 
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2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

GOAL 7: ESSA 

Due to COVID-19 and the subsequent changes to the state’s testing, accountability, and federal reporting 
requirements, the 2021-22 school accountability statuses are the same as those assigned for the 
2020-21 school year. Assigned accountability designations and further context can be found here. 

Goal 7: Absolute Measure 

Under the state’s ESSA accountability system, the school is in good standing: the state has not 
identified the school for comprehensive or targeted improvement. 

METHOD 

Because all students are expected to meet the state's performance standards, the federal statute 
stipulates that various sub-populations and demographic categories of students among all tested 
students must meet the state standard in and of themselves aside from the overall school results. As 
New York State, like all states, is required to establish a specific system for making these determinations 
for its public schools, charter schools do not have latitude in establishing their own performance levels 
or criteria of success for meeting the ESSA accountability requirements. Each year, the state issues 
School Report Cards that indicate a school’s status under the state accountability system. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

AIM I’s ESSA accountability status for 2020-21 was in Good Standing, therefore meeting this measure. 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

AIM I completed its first year of its current accountability period and is in good standing and was in good 
standing every year in the previous accountability period. 

Accountability Status by Year 
Year Status 

2019-20 Good Standing 
2020-21 Good Standing 
2021-22 Good Standing 
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Tel: 212-371-4446 622 Third Ave, Suite 3100 
Fax: 212-371-9374 New York, NY 10017 
www.bdo.com 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Board of Trustees 
New Visions AIM Charter High School 
New York, New York 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of New Visions AIM Charter High School I (the “School”), 
which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related 
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the School as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its net assets 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent 
of the School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and 
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the School’s 
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements 
are issued or available to be issued. 

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the 
international BDO network of independent member firms. 

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, 
no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 
26, 2022 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

New York, NY 
October 26, 2022 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Statements of Financial Position 

June 30, 2022 2021 

Assets 

Cash $ 
Cash - restricted 
Grants receivable 
Due from NYC Department of Education 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Equipment, net 

92,755 
76,500 

316,366 
-

11,878 
9,270 

$ 340,668 
76,466 

146,041 
158,987 

4,887 
21,277 

Total Assets $ 506,769 $ 748,326 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 
Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses 
Due to related entities 
Due to NYC Department of Education 

86,679 
152,889 

60,326 
114,793 

$ 35,180 
213,424 
83,686 

-

Total Liabilities 414,687 332,290 

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 2, 3, 4, 7, 8, and 10) 

Net Assets 
Net assets - without donor restrictions 92,082 416,036 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 506,769 $ 748,326 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Statements of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 2021 

Operating Revenue without Donor Restrictions 

State and local per pupil operating revenue 
Government grants and contracts 

$ 2,987,188 
521,894 

$ 3,733,485 
339,533 

Total Operating Revenue without Donor Restrictions 3,509,082 4,073,018 

Expenses 

Program services: 
General education 
Special education 

Management and general 

2,231,600 
1,453,616 

354,177 

2,109,068 
1,833,901 

612,301 

Total Expenses 4,039,393 4,555,270 

Support and Other Income 
Contributions and other income 
Interest income 

206,048 
309 

257,027 
532 

Total Support and Other Income 206,357 257,559 

Change in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions (323,954) (224,693) 

Net Assets, beginning of the year 416,036 640,729 

Net Assets, end of the year $ 92,082 $ 416,036 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Statement of Functional Expenses for the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

No. of 

Positions 

Program Services 

General Special 

Education Education Total 

Supporting 
Services 

Management 

and General 2022 

Personnel Service Costs 

Administrative staff personnel 

Instructional personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 

13 

16 

29 

$ 532,861 $ 278,059 $ 810,920 $ 232,110 $ 1,043,030 

606,812 591,907 1,198,719 - 1,198,719 

-

1,139,673 869,966 2,009,639 232,110 2,241,749 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 

Retirement 

Management company fee 

Legal services 

Accounting and audit services 

Other purchases of professional and consulting services 

Repairs and maintenance 

Insurance 

Utilities 

Equipment and furnishings 

Staff development 

Marketing and recruitment 

Technology 

Food service 

Student services 

Office expense 

Depreciation 

Other 

215,732 

36,050 

199,519 

654 

-

324,853 

3,144 

30,202 

34,356 

829 

787 

11,218 

118,477 

26,631 

33,406 

30,163 

8,020 

17,886 

178,741 

27,518 

89,631 

292 

-

144,027 

1,412 

13,568 

15,672 

367 

545 

6,869 

53,072 

12,124 

14,699 

13,496 

3,603 

8,014 

394,473 

63,568 

289,150 

946 

-

468,880 

4,556 

43,770 

50,028 

1,196 

1,332 

18,087 

171,549 

38,755 

48,105 

43,659 

11,623 

25,900 

52,497 

7,342 

9,568 

23 

22,100 

17,422 

520 

1,448 

1,782 

12 

21 

569 

2,847 

1,215 

-

2,910 

384 

1,407 

446,970 

70,910 

298,718 

969 

22,100 

486,302 

5,076 

45,218 

51,810 

1,208 

1,353 

18,656 

174,396 

39,970 

48,105 

46,569 

12,007 

27,307 

$ 2,231,600 $ 1,453,616 $ 3,685,216 $ 354,177 $ 4,039,393 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Statement of Functional Expenses for the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Program Services 
Supporting 
Services 

No. of 
Positions 

General 
Education 

Special 
Education Total 

Management 
and General 2022 

Personnel Service Costs 
Administrative staff personnel 
Instructional personnel 

16 
22 

$ 525,812 $ 389,816 $ 915,628 $ 445,203 $ 1,360,831 
728,457 756,080 1,484,537 - 1,484,537 

Total Salaries and Staff 38 1,254,269 1,145,896 2,400,165 445,203 2,845,368 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 
Retirement 
Management company fee 
Accounting and audit services 
Other purchases of professional and consulting services 
Repairs and maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Instructional supplies and materials 
Equipment and furnishings 
Staff development 
Marketing and recruitment 
Technology 
Food service 
Student services 
Office expense 
Depreciation 
Other 

232,494 
83,222 

205,651 
7,719 

116,377 
3,837 

21,498 
25,311 
1,363 

375 
1,287 
1,812 

75,050 
1,925 

13,904 
34,411 
6,820 

21,743 

229,066 
76,031 

146,433 
5,497 

84,420 
2,732 

15,307 
18,223 

866 
315 

1,174 
1,173 

52,656 
1,261 
9,539 

23,849 
4,857 

14,606 

461,560 
159,253 
352,084 
13,216 

200,797 
6,569 

36,805 
43,534 
2,229 

690 
2,461 
2,985 

127,706 
3,186 

23,443 
58,260 
11,677 
36,349 

76,587 
29,539 
20,885 
8,469 

11,995 
390 

2,183 
3,084 

-
167 
317 
499 

6,297 
89 

-
4,432 

693 
1,472 

538,147 
188,792 
372,969 
21,685 

212,792 
6,959 

38,988 
46,618 
2,229 

857 
2,778 
3,484 

134,003 
3,275 

23,443 
62,692 
12,370 
37,821 

$ 2,109,068 $ 1,833,901 $ 3,942,969 $ 612,301 $ 4,555,270 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Statements of Cash Flows 

June 30, 2022 2021 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 

Cash received from operating revenue 
Other cash received 
Cash paid to employees and suppliers 

$ 3,497,744 
206,357 

(3,951,980) 

$ 3,890,730 
257,559 

(4,601,964) 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (247,879) (453,675) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Purchase of equipment - (5,694) 

Net Decrease in Cash (247,879) (459,369) 

Cash and Cash - Restricted, beginning of year 417,134 876,503 

Cash and Cash - Restricted, end of year $ 169,255 $ 417,134 

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash 
used in operating activities: 

Change in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net 
cash used in operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Grants receivable 
Due from NYC Department of Education 
Due from related entities 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses 
Refundable advance from Paycheck Protection Program 
Due to related entities 
Due to NYC Department of Education 

$ (323,954) 

12,007 

(170,325) 
158,987 

-
(6,991) 
51,499 

(60,535) 
-

(23,360) 
114,793 

$ (224,693) 

12,370 

(23,497) 
(158,987) 

196 
4,838 

10,254 
55,927 

(76,999) 
(8,340) 

(44,744) 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities $ (247,879) $ (453,675) 

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information: 

Cash and Cash - Restricted consist of: 

Cash 
Restricted cash 

$ 92,755 
76,500 

$ 340,668 
76,466 

Cash and Cash - Restricted, end of year $ 169,255 $ 417,134 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Nature of the Organization 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I (the “School”) is a New York State not-for-profit educational 
corporation that was incorporated on April 5, 2011 to operate a charter school pursuant to Article 
56 of the Educational Law of the State of New York. The School was granted a provisional charter 
on April 5, 2011, valid for a term of five years and renewable by the Board of Regents of the 
University of the State of New York. The School’s charter was renewed and restructured for an 
additional five years, expiring in July 2027. 

The School opened its doors in the fall of 2012 in Brooklyn with a rigorous academic program and a 
highly structured and supportive school culture. While the School is comprised of students from 
many backgrounds, it is uniquely designed to meet the needs of at-risk students who are currently 
in the foster care and child welfare system. 

The School, as determined by the Internal Revenue Service, is exempt from federal income tax 
under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) as an organization described in Section 
501(c)(3) of the IRC. It is also exempt under a similar provision under New York State income tax 
laws. The School has also been classified as an entity that is not a private foundation within the 
meaning of Section 509(a) of the IRC and qualifies for deductible contributions as provided in Section 
170(b)(1)(A)(ii) of the IRC. 

In fiscal year 2022 and 2021, the School operated classes for students in ninth through twelfth grade. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The School’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. 
GAAP”). 

The classification of the School’s net assets and its support, revenues, and expenses is based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. It requires that the amounts for each of the 
two classes of net assets – with donor restrictions or without donor restrictions – be displayed in a 
statement of financial position and that the amount of the change in each of those classes of net 
assets be displayed in a statement of activities. 

These classes are defined as follows: 

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions consist of contributions and other inflows of assets whose 
use is subject to donor-imposed restrictions that are more specific than broad limits reflecting 
the nature of the not-for-profit entity, the environment in which it operates, and the purposes 
specified in its articles of incorporation or bylaws or comparable documents. Donor-imposed 
restrictions may be temporary in nature, such as stipulating that resources may be used only 
after a specified date or limited to specific programs or services. Certain donor-imposed 
restrictions are perpetual in nature. 

11 



  
 

 
 
 

 

       
    

     
  

 
  

 
   

 
        

     
  

 
 

 
 

   
   
      

       
    

     
    

 
 

 
     

   
  

     
    

    
  

    
   

    
  

 
  

   
 

      
   

  
   

  

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions consist of contributions and other inflows of assets whose 
use is not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. This net asset category includes both 
contributions not subject to donor restrictions and exchange transactions, and are, therefore, 
available for general operations. 

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the School had no assets with donor restrictions. 

Cash - Restricted 

An escrow account in the amount of $76,500 and $76,466 was held aside under the provisions of the 
School’s charter to pay for legal and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution 
should it occur, as required by the New York State Education Department for the years ended June 
30, 2022 and 2021. 

Grants Receivable 

Grants receivable represent federal and state entitlements and grants. Grants receivable are 
expected to be collected within one year, are recorded at net realizable value, and amount to 
$316,366 and $146,041 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The School evaluates the 
collectability of the receivables and employs the allowance method. The School has determined 
that no allowance for uncollectible accounts is necessary at June 30, 2022 and 2021.Such estimate 
is based on management’s assessment of the aged basis of its receivables, as well as current 
economic conditions and historical information. 

Contributions 

Transfers of cash or other assets or settlement of liabilities that are both voluntary and 
nonreciprocal are recognized as contributions. 

Contributions may either be conditional or unconditional. A contribution is considered conditional 
when the donor imposes both a measurable barrier and a right of return. Conditional contributions 
are recognized as revenue on the date all donor-imposed barriers are overcome or explicitly waived 
by the donor. Barriers may include specific and measurable outcomes, limitations on the 
performance of an activity and other stipulations related to the contribution. A donor has a right of 
return of any assets transferred or a right of release of its obligation to transfer any assets in the 
event the School fails to overcome one or more barriers. Assets received before the barrier is 
overcome are accounted for as refundable advances. 

Unconditional contributions may or may not be subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Donor-
imposed restrictions limit the use of the donated assets as to time or purpose restrictions. 

Contributions subject to donor restrictions are recognized in changes in net assets with donor 
restrictions. When a purpose restriction is satisfied or when a time restriction expires, the 
contribution is reported as net assets released from restrictions and is recognized in changes in net 
assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Revenue Recognition 

Per-Pupil Revenue 

The School recognizes revenues from per-pupil funding in the fiscal year in which the academic 
programs are provided. Per-pupil revenue is billed and received based on the total number of full-
time equivalent (“FTE”) students and the basic charter school tuition rate for the school district of 
residence of the students attending the School in any given fiscal year for general education and 
special education. The FTE is formula-driven and based on the number of days the student has been 
with the School as a proportion of the number of days in the entire school year (the calculation is 
done by using the New York State calculator online). The School’s total student population includes 
general education and special education students. The School has determined that revenue from its 
students has the same performance obligations, types of contract, and services rendered. As a 
result, the student body is viewed as one customer base for revenue purposes. The School uses a 
portfolio approach to account for per-pupil contracts as a collective group rather than recognizing 
revenue on an individual-contract basis. The School believes that revenue recognized by utilizing 
the portfolio approach approximates the revenue that would have been recognized if an individual 
contract approach were used. 

Per-pupil invoicing is managed on a bi-monthly basis to the funding source (local school district). 
Billing is a function of student enrollment for the upcoming fiscal year, which is the basis for the 
first two invoices per-pupil due June 1st and July 31st, which is a projection. Subsequent invoices 
are due bi-monthly. With the implementation of an automated-invoicing process through a 
dedicated website, the submission of each invoice is done online. After the year is complete, the 
School submits the FTE per-pupil reconciliation, listing every student who attended any part of the 
year, and the FTE each represents. Based on this final count, it calculates how much should have 
been paid to the School and included in the reconciliation will be any amounts due from the funding 
source included in grants and other receivables on the statement of financial position at year end, 
or any amounts payable to the funding source included as a liability on the statement of financial 
position at year end, as amounts are trued up to actual based on actual numbers submitted at year 
end. 

Additional funding is also provided to support special education services. All students who are 
identified to need special education services or settings have an Individualized Education Program 
(“IEP”), formalized for his or her unique needs. Based on this IEP, the student is categorized into 
one of three levels of service: 0-20% service, 20-60% service, or 60% or more service required and 
provided by the School. For a student receiving less than 20% in services, no additional funding is 
received. For a student receiving services between 20% and 60% and 60% or more services of the 
school day, additional funding per FTE is received. Billing for this support is incorporated into the 
per-pupil invoices and is also settled in the same FTE per-pupil reconciliation process. 

As the students receive the benefit of these services simultaneously as the School is providing them, 
the School recognizes per-pupil revenue from these services over time. The School believes that 
this method provides a reasonable depiction of the transfer of services over the term of the 
performance obligation based on the services needed to satisfy the obligation. Generally, 
performance obligations satisfied over time relate to students receiving academic or school services. 
The School measures the performance obligation from admission or enrollment into the School to 
the point when the student is discharged or the end of the school year where it is no longer required 
to provide services to the student, which is generally at the time of discharge or the completion of 
the school year. All of these services are bundled and considered a single-performance obligation, 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

and as such, the School accounts for these bundled-performance obligations under state and local 
per pupil operating revenue in the statement of activities and recognizes the per-pupil revenue over 
time. 

Government Grants 

Revenue from federal, state, and local government grants and contracts is recognized by the School 
when qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable to the government, or when required services 
have been provided. 
Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities 

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards 
Codification (“ASC”) 606, contract assets are to be recognized when an entity has the right to 
receive consideration in exchange for goods or services that have been transferred to a customer 
when that right is conditional on something other than the passage of time. The School does not 
recognize contract assets, as the right to receive consideration is unconditional in accordance with 
the passage of time criteria. Also, in accordance with ASC 606, contract liabilities are to be 
recognized when an entity is obligated to transfer goods or services for which consideration has 
already been received. The School does not receive consideration prior to the transfer of goods or 
services and, therefore, does not recognize contract liabilities. 

Contributions of Nonfinancial Assets 

The School may receive contributed services that are an integral part of its operations. Such services 
are only recorded as contributions of nonfinancial assets, at their fair value, provided the services 
create or enhance nonfinancial assets, require specified skills provided by individuals possessing 
those skills, and typically need to be purchased, if not provided by donation. 

The School receives donated space from the New York City Department of Education (“NYCDOE”) 
that it shares with a New York City public school (Note 8). The donated space will be used for 
operating, general, and administrative activities. In valuing the donated space, which is located in 
Brooklyn, New York, the School estimated the fair value on the basis of recent comparable sales 
prices in Brooklyn, New York’s real estate market, taking into account the restriction on use of the 
space. 

Equipment, net 

Purchased equipment is recorded at cost. Equipment acquired with certain government funding are 
recorded as expenses pursuant to the terms of the contract in which ownership of such equipment 
is retained by the funding source. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as they occur. The School 
has established a $3,000 threshold above which assets are evaluated to be capitalized. The School 
expenses leasehold improvements because it has no lease and is uncertain that the space will be 
available beyond the close of the current fiscal year. Removable equipment that can be transferred 
to new space, if necessary, is capitalized, based on the established threshold. Depreciation is 
provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, which is three years for 
computer equipment. 

14 



  
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

    
     

     
            

      
 

  
 

      
     

    
 

   
 

      
    

            
  

 
     

   
   

 
     

    
 

 
  
 
    

   
  

     
 

  
            

 
    

               
     

            
      

  

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Impairment 

The School reviews long-lived assets to determine whether there has been any permanent 
impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be 
recoverable. If the sum of the expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying 
amount of the assets, the School recognizes an impairment loss. No impairment losses were 
recognized for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

Advertising 

The School expenses advertising costs as incurred. The School incurred $18,656 and $3,484 of 
advertising costs for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, which is included in the 
accompanying statements of functional expenses under marketing and recruitment. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The costs of providing programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis 
and by natural classification in the accompanying statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs 
have been allocated among the respective programs and activities according to the functional 
categories, as follows: 

Program Services – This category represents expenses related to general education and special 
education for certain students requiring additional attention and guidance. These costs are 
allocated based on the FTE allocation method. 

Management and General – This category represents expenses related to the overall 
administration and operation of the School that are not specific to any program services or 
development. These costs are allocated based on the FTE allocation method. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Income Taxes 

The School is exempt from federal, state and local income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code (the “IRC”) and, therefore, has made no provision for income taxes in the 
accompanying financial statements. In addition, the School has been determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service not to be a “private foundation” within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the IRC. 
There was no unrelated business income for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Under U.S. GAAP, an organization must recognize the tax benefit associate with tax positions taken 
for tax-return purposes when it is more likely than not that the position will not be sustained upon 
examination by a taxing authority. The School does not believe it has taken any material uncertain 
tax positions and, accordingly, it has not recorded any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The 
School is subject to routine audits by a taxing authority. As of June 30, 2022, the School was not 
subject to any examination by a taxing authority. 

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 

Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets 

In September 2020, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2020-07, Presentation 
and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets (Topic 958). The 
update requires not-for-profits to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item 
on the statement of activities, and to disclose information regarding each type of contributed 
nonfinancial assets. The update is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2021. The School adopted this ASU as of July 1, 2021. The adoption of this ASU did 
not have a material impact on the financial statements. See note 8 for additional information. 

Recently Issued but not yet Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 

Lease Accounting 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which will require lessees to recognize a 
lease liability, which is a lessee’s obligation to make lease payments arising from a lease, measured 
on a discounted basis; and a right-of-use asset, which is an asset that represents the lessee’s right 
to use, or control the use of, a specified asset for the lease term. The FASB also issued ASU 2020-
05, which deferred the effective date for the School until annual periods beginning after December 
15, 2021. The School is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of ASU 2016-02. 

Financial Instruments – Credit Losses 

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326): 
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial on Financial Instruments. The new credit losses standard 
changes impairment model for most financial assets and certain other instruments. For trade and 
other receivables, contract assets recognized as a result of applying ASC 606, loans and certain 
other instruments, entities will be required to use new forward looking “expected loss” model that 
generally will result in earlier recognition of credit losses than under today’s incurred loss model. 
ASU 2016-13 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 31, 2022. The School is 
currently evaluating the impact of this ASU on its financial statements. 

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

3. Liquidity and Availability of Resources 

The School maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general 
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. The School strives to maintain a cash 
reserve equal to a minimum of three months of operating expenses, with a target of three to six 
months. Cash is kept in interest-bearing bank accounts to maximize returns. 

The School’s financial assets available within one year of the statements of financial position date 
for general expenditures are as follows: 

June 30, 2022 2021 

Cash 
Cash - restricted 
Grants receivable 
Due from NYC Department of Education 

$ 92,755 
76,500 

316,366 
-

$ 340,668 
76,466 

146,041 
158,987 

Total Financial Assets 485,621 722,162 

Less : Amounts unavailable for general expenditures 
within one year due to: 

Restricted by contract (76,500) (76,466) 

Total Financial Assets Available to Management for 
General Expenditures within One Year $ 409,121 $ 645,696 

4. Related Party Transactions 

Due from/to related entities 

New Visions for Public Schools (“New Visions”) is a not-for-profit organization dedicated to 
supporting public schools and helping start and manage charter schools. Pursuant to the terms of 
the educational services agreement by and between the School and New Visions beginning in fiscal 
year 2018, New Visions provides educational management, operational, and fundraising services to 
the School. As compensation to New Visions for these services rendered, the School pays 10% of per-
pupil revenues, received by the School during the year. 

The balance due to New Visions from the School at June 30, 2022 and 2021 amounted to $54,515 
and $82,921, respectively, which is comprised of management fees. Total management fees 
incurred by the School for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 totaled $298,718 and $372,969, 
respectively. 

For operational efficiency and purchasing power, the School also shares expenses with other charter 
schools related by common management. There was no balance due from other charter schools at 
June 30, 2022 and 2021. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the balance due to other charter schools was 
$5,811 and $765, respectively. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Contribution from related entity 

New Visions awarded the School a $200,000 contribution to support general operations for the 
current fiscal year, which is included in contributions and other income on the statements of 
activities. New Visions is committed to provide financial support through November 2023. 

5. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consist of the following: 

June 30, 2022 2021 

Computer equipment $ 40,306 $ 40,306 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (31,036) (19,029) 

$ 9,270 $ 21,277 

Depreciation expense was $12,007 and $12,370 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. 

6. Grants Receivable 

Grants receivable consist of federal and state entitlements and grants. The School expects to collect 
these receivables within one year. Grants receivable consist of the following: 

June 30, 2022 2021 

E-Rate Reimbursement $ 33,677 $ 24,181 
Title I 52,042 43,262 
Title II 7,248 1,335 
Title IV 6,300 6,000 
ESSER I - CARES 14,051 42,152 
ESSER II - CRRSA 103,947 -
ESSER III - ARP 71,094 -
CSP 25,800 25,800 
Other 2,207 3,311 

$ 316,366 $ 146,041 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

7. Pension Plan 

The School has adopted the New Visions for Public Schools’ pension plan (the “Plan”) which is 
qualified under Internal Revenue Code 403(b) for the benefit of its eligible employees. The Plan is 
an elective contribution plan. Employees are eligible to enroll in the Plan once they have completed 
at least one full year of service and completion of 1,000 work hours, and are also eligible for 
discretionary employer contributions. The School’s contribution becomes fully vested after the sixth 
year of the employee’s service. Pension expense amounted to $70,910 and $188,792, net of 
forfeitures, for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and is included in retirement 
in the accompanying statements of functional expenses. 

8. Agreement with School Facility 

The School shares space with a New York City public school, located at 1150 East New York Avenue, 
Brooklyn, New York 11212. As part of the New York City Chancellor’s Charter School Initiative, the 
NYCDOE has provided this space to the School at no charge. The services provided by the NYCDOE 
to the charter school, such as rent, utilities, custodial services, maintenance and school safety 
services are provided at no cost. 

The School is using a relative valuation model to measure the fair value of the donated space. The 
NYCDOE has not provided a value for the space and there is no lease agreement in place. In applying 
the valuation model, significant inputs include the total square footage allocated the School, the 
average cost per square foot based on comparable sales prices in Brooklyn, New York, and the 
estimated discount factor applied to the cost per square foot to account for the restricted use of 
the space. Based on such assumptions, the School applies a relative cost per square foot calculated 
using all available market information in Brooklyn, New York. 

Square footage totaling 7,620 feet is allocated to the School. The value of the space and related 
utilities and services calculated by applying the relative valuation model is not significant and, 
therefore, is not recorded in the financial statements. 

9. Risk Management 

The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The School maintains commercial insurance 
to help protect itself from such risks. The School also intends to defend its positions on these 
matters. As of June 30, 2022, there are no matters for which the School believes the ultimate 
outcome would have a material adverse effect on the School’s financial position. 

The School entered into contractual relationships with certain governmental funding sources. The 
governmental agencies may request return of funds as a result of noncompliance by the School, as 
well as additional funds for the use of facilities. The accompanying financial statements make no 
provision for the possible disallowance or refund. The School is of the opinion that such cost 
disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect in the School’s financial statements and will 
record them in the fiscal year they become known. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

10. Commitments 

The School leases office equipment and copiers under non-cancellable operating leases which will 
expire at various times during the next three years. The leasing expense for the years ended June 
30, 2022 and 2021 was $4,344 and $5,552, respectively, which is included in the accompanying 
statements of functional expenses under office expense. Future minimum lease payments are as 
follows: 

June 30, Amount 

2023 
2024 
2025 

$ 5,184 
4,788 
1,995 

Total $ 11,967 

11. Concentration Risks 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to a concentration of credit risk include 
cash accounts at a major financial institution that, at times, exceeded the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation insured limits of $250,000. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts 
and does not believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash accounts. 

The School received approximately 80% and 86% of its total revenue from per pupil funding from the 
NYCDOE for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

The School’s grants receivable consists of two major grantors accounting for approximately 99% and 
98% at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

The School’s payables consist of three major vendors accounting for approximately 57% at June 30, 
2022 and four major vendors accounting for approximately 79% at June 30, 2021. 

12. Subsequent Events 

The School’s management has performed subsequent event procedures through October 26, 2022, 
which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and there were no 
subsequent events requiring adjustment to the financial statements or disclosures as stated herein. 
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Tel: 212-371-4446 622 Third Ave, Suite 3100 
Fax: 212-371-9374 New York, NY 10017 
www.bdo.com 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Trustees 
New Visions AIM Charter High School I 
New York, New York 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New 
Visions AIM Charter High School I (the “School”), which comprise the School’s statements of financial 
position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, 
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2022. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School's internal 
control over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the 
international BDO network of independent member firms. 

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the School’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

New York, New York 
October 26, 2022 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

1. Summary of Auditor’s Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of report the auditor issued on whether Unmodified 
the financial statements audited were prepared 
in accordance with U.S. GAAP: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no 

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no 

2. Financial Statements Findings 

There were no findings related to the financial statements that are required to be reported in 
accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards. 
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Financial Statements 
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Tel: 212-371-4446 622 Third Ave, Suite 3100 
Fax: 212-371-9374 New York, NY 10017 
www.bdo.com 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Board of Trustees 
New Visions AIM Charter High School 
New York, New York 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of New Visions AIM Charter High School I (the “School”), 
which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related 
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the School as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its net assets 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent 
of the School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and 
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the School’s 
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements 
are issued or available to be issued. 

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the 
international BDO network of independent member firms. 

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, 
no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 
26, 2022 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

New York, NY 
October 26, 2022 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Statements of Financial Position 

June 30, 2022 2021 

Assets 

Cash $ 
Cash - restricted 
Grants receivable 
Due from NYC Department of Education 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Equipment, net 

92,755 
76,500 

316,366 
-

11,878 
9,270 

$ 340,668 
76,466 

146,041 
158,987 

4,887 
21,277 

Total Assets $ 506,769 $ 748,326 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 
Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses 
Due to related entities 
Due to NYC Department of Education 

86,679 
152,889 

60,326 
114,793 

$ 35,180 
213,424 
83,686 

-

Total Liabilities 414,687 332,290 

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 2, 3, 4, 7, 8, and 10) 

Net Assets 
Net assets - without donor restrictions 92,082 416,036 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 506,769 $ 748,326 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Statements of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 2021 

Operating Revenue without Donor Restrictions 

State and local per pupil operating revenue 
Government grants and contracts 

$ 2,987,188 
521,894 

$ 3,733,485 
339,533 

Total Operating Revenue without Donor Restrictions 3,509,082 4,073,018 

Expenses 

Program services: 
General education 
Special education 

Management and general 

2,231,600 
1,453,616 

354,177 

2,109,068 
1,833,901 

612,301 

Total Expenses 4,039,393 4,555,270 

Support and Other Income 
Contributions and other income 
Interest income 

206,048 
309 

257,027 
532 

Total Support and Other Income 206,357 257,559 

Change in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions (323,954) (224,693) 

Net Assets, beginning of the year 416,036 640,729 

Net Assets, end of the year $ 92,082 $ 416,036 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

7 



  
 

   
 

 

   

 

  

                             
                                                

                 
                                       

                                                  

                                                         
                                                     

                                                                                   
                                                                            

                                                     
                                                                      

                                                         

                                                         
                                                                              

                                                                             
                                                                

                                                   
                                                          

                                                              

                                                         

                                                                

                                                           

                  

 

  
 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Statement of Functional Expenses for the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

No. of 

Positions 

Program Services 

General Special 

Education Education Total 

Supporting 
Services 

Management 

and General 2022 

Personnel Service Costs 

Administrative staff personnel 

Instructional personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 

13 

16 

29 

$ 532,861 $ 278,059 $ 810,920 $ 232,110 $ 1,043,030 

606,812 591,907 1,198,719 - 1,198,719 

-

1,139,673 869,966 2,009,639 232,110 2,241,749 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 

Retirement 

Management company fee 

Legal services 

Accounting and audit services 

Other purchases of professional and consulting services 

Repairs and maintenance 

Insurance 

Utilities 

Equipment and furnishings 

Staff development 

Marketing and recruitment 

Technology 

Food service 

Student services 

Office expense 

Depreciation 

Other 

215,732 

36,050 

199,519 

654 

-

324,853 

3,144 

30,202 

34,356 

829 

787 

11,218 

118,477 

26,631 

33,406 

30,163 

8,020 

17,886 

178,741 

27,518 

89,631 

292 

-

144,027 

1,412 

13,568 

15,672 

367 

545 

6,869 

53,072 

12,124 

14,699 

13,496 

3,603 

8,014 

394,473 

63,568 

289,150 

946 

-

468,880 

4,556 

43,770 

50,028 

1,196 

1,332 

18,087 

171,549 

38,755 

48,105 

43,659 

11,623 

25,900 

52,497 

7,342 

9,568 

23 

22,100 

17,422 

520 

1,448 

1,782 

12 

21 

569 

2,847 

1,215 

-

2,910 

384 

1,407 

446,970 

70,910 

298,718 

969 

22,100 

486,302 

5,076 

45,218 

51,810 

1,208 

1,353 

18,656 

174,396 

39,970 

48,105 

46,569 

12,007 

27,307 

$ 2,231,600 $ 1,453,616 $ 3,685,216 $ 354,177 $ 4,039,393 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Statement of Functional Expenses for the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Program Services 
Supporting 
Services 

No. of 
Positions 

General 
Education 

Special 
Education Total 

Management 
and General 2022 

Personnel Service Costs 
Administrative staff personnel 
Instructional personnel 

16 
22 

$ 525,812 $ 389,816 $ 915,628 $ 445,203 $ 1,360,831 
728,457 756,080 1,484,537 - 1,484,537 

Total Salaries and Staff 38 1,254,269 1,145,896 2,400,165 445,203 2,845,368 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 
Retirement 
Management company fee 
Accounting and audit services 
Other purchases of professional and consulting services 
Repairs and maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Instructional supplies and materials 
Equipment and furnishings 
Staff development 
Marketing and recruitment 
Technology 
Food service 
Student services 
Office expense 
Depreciation 
Other 

232,494 
83,222 

205,651 
7,719 

116,377 
3,837 

21,498 
25,311 
1,363 

375 
1,287 
1,812 

75,050 
1,925 

13,904 
34,411 
6,820 

21,743 

229,066 
76,031 

146,433 
5,497 

84,420 
2,732 

15,307 
18,223 

866 
315 

1,174 
1,173 

52,656 
1,261 
9,539 

23,849 
4,857 

14,606 

461,560 
159,253 
352,084 
13,216 

200,797 
6,569 

36,805 
43,534 
2,229 

690 
2,461 
2,985 

127,706 
3,186 

23,443 
58,260 
11,677 
36,349 

76,587 
29,539 
20,885 
8,469 

11,995 
390 

2,183 
3,084 

-
167 
317 
499 

6,297 
89 

-
4,432 

693 
1,472 

538,147 
188,792 
372,969 
21,685 

212,792 
6,959 

38,988 
46,618 
2,229 

857 
2,778 
3,484 

134,003 
3,275 

23,443 
62,692 
12,370 
37,821 

$ 2,109,068 $ 1,833,901 $ 3,942,969 $ 612,301 $ 4,555,270 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Statements of Cash Flows 

June 30, 2022 2021 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 

Cash received from operating revenue 
Other cash received 
Cash paid to employees and suppliers 

$ 3,497,744 
206,357 

(3,951,980) 

$ 3,890,730 
257,559 

(4,601,964) 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (247,879) (453,675) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Purchase of equipment - (5,694) 

Net Decrease in Cash (247,879) (459,369) 

Cash and Cash - Restricted, beginning of year 417,134 876,503 

Cash and Cash - Restricted, end of year $ 169,255 $ 417,134 

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash 
used in operating activities: 

Change in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net 
cash used in operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Grants receivable 
Due from NYC Department of Education 
Due from related entities 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses 
Refundable advance from Paycheck Protection Program 
Due to related entities 
Due to NYC Department of Education 

$ (323,954) 

12,007 

(170,325) 
158,987 

-
(6,991) 
51,499 

(60,535) 
-

(23,360) 
114,793 

$ (224,693) 

12,370 

(23,497) 
(158,987) 

196 
4,838 

10,254 
55,927 

(76,999) 
(8,340) 

(44,744) 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities $ (247,879) $ (453,675) 

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information: 

Cash and Cash - Restricted consist of: 

Cash 
Restricted cash 

$ 92,755 
76,500 

$ 340,668 
76,466 

Cash and Cash - Restricted, end of year $ 169,255 $ 417,134 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Nature of the Organization 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I (the “School”) is a New York State not-for-profit educational 
corporation that was incorporated on April 5, 2011 to operate a charter school pursuant to Article 
56 of the Educational Law of the State of New York. The School was granted a provisional charter 
on April 5, 2011, valid for a term of five years and renewable by the Board of Regents of the 
University of the State of New York. The School’s charter was renewed and restructured for an 
additional five years, expiring in July 2027. 

The School opened its doors in the fall of 2012 in Brooklyn with a rigorous academic program and a 
highly structured and supportive school culture. While the School is comprised of students from 
many backgrounds, it is uniquely designed to meet the needs of at-risk students who are currently 
in the foster care and child welfare system. 

The School, as determined by the Internal Revenue Service, is exempt from federal income tax 
under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) as an organization described in Section 
501(c)(3) of the IRC. It is also exempt under a similar provision under New York State income tax 
laws. The School has also been classified as an entity that is not a private foundation within the 
meaning of Section 509(a) of the IRC and qualifies for deductible contributions as provided in Section 
170(b)(1)(A)(ii) of the IRC. 

In fiscal year 2022 and 2021, the School operated classes for students in ninth through twelfth grade. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The School’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. 
GAAP”). 

The classification of the School’s net assets and its support, revenues, and expenses is based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. It requires that the amounts for each of the 
two classes of net assets – with donor restrictions or without donor restrictions – be displayed in a 
statement of financial position and that the amount of the change in each of those classes of net 
assets be displayed in a statement of activities. 

These classes are defined as follows: 

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions consist of contributions and other inflows of assets whose 
use is subject to donor-imposed restrictions that are more specific than broad limits reflecting 
the nature of the not-for-profit entity, the environment in which it operates, and the purposes 
specified in its articles of incorporation or bylaws or comparable documents. Donor-imposed 
restrictions may be temporary in nature, such as stipulating that resources may be used only 
after a specified date or limited to specific programs or services. Certain donor-imposed 
restrictions are perpetual in nature. 

11 



  
 

 
 
 

 

       
    

     
  

 
  

 
   

 
        

     
  

 
 

 
 

   
   
      

       
    

     
    

 
 

 
     

   
  

     
    

    
  

    
   

    
  

 
  

   
 

      
   

  
   

  

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions consist of contributions and other inflows of assets whose 
use is not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. This net asset category includes both 
contributions not subject to donor restrictions and exchange transactions, and are, therefore, 
available for general operations. 

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the School had no assets with donor restrictions. 

Cash - Restricted 

An escrow account in the amount of $76,500 and $76,466 was held aside under the provisions of the 
School’s charter to pay for legal and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution 
should it occur, as required by the New York State Education Department for the years ended June 
30, 2022 and 2021. 

Grants Receivable 

Grants receivable represent federal and state entitlements and grants. Grants receivable are 
expected to be collected within one year, are recorded at net realizable value, and amount to 
$316,366 and $146,041 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The School evaluates the 
collectability of the receivables and employs the allowance method. The School has determined 
that no allowance for uncollectible accounts is necessary at June 30, 2022 and 2021.Such estimate 
is based on management’s assessment of the aged basis of its receivables, as well as current 
economic conditions and historical information. 

Contributions 

Transfers of cash or other assets or settlement of liabilities that are both voluntary and 
nonreciprocal are recognized as contributions. 

Contributions may either be conditional or unconditional. A contribution is considered conditional 
when the donor imposes both a measurable barrier and a right of return. Conditional contributions 
are recognized as revenue on the date all donor-imposed barriers are overcome or explicitly waived 
by the donor. Barriers may include specific and measurable outcomes, limitations on the 
performance of an activity and other stipulations related to the contribution. A donor has a right of 
return of any assets transferred or a right of release of its obligation to transfer any assets in the 
event the School fails to overcome one or more barriers. Assets received before the barrier is 
overcome are accounted for as refundable advances. 

Unconditional contributions may or may not be subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Donor-
imposed restrictions limit the use of the donated assets as to time or purpose restrictions. 

Contributions subject to donor restrictions are recognized in changes in net assets with donor 
restrictions. When a purpose restriction is satisfied or when a time restriction expires, the 
contribution is reported as net assets released from restrictions and is recognized in changes in net 
assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Revenue Recognition 

Per-Pupil Revenue 

The School recognizes revenues from per-pupil funding in the fiscal year in which the academic 
programs are provided. Per-pupil revenue is billed and received based on the total number of full-
time equivalent (“FTE”) students and the basic charter school tuition rate for the school district of 
residence of the students attending the School in any given fiscal year for general education and 
special education. The FTE is formula-driven and based on the number of days the student has been 
with the School as a proportion of the number of days in the entire school year (the calculation is 
done by using the New York State calculator online). The School’s total student population includes 
general education and special education students. The School has determined that revenue from its 
students has the same performance obligations, types of contract, and services rendered. As a 
result, the student body is viewed as one customer base for revenue purposes. The School uses a 
portfolio approach to account for per-pupil contracts as a collective group rather than recognizing 
revenue on an individual-contract basis. The School believes that revenue recognized by utilizing 
the portfolio approach approximates the revenue that would have been recognized if an individual 
contract approach were used. 

Per-pupil invoicing is managed on a bi-monthly basis to the funding source (local school district). 
Billing is a function of student enrollment for the upcoming fiscal year, which is the basis for the 
first two invoices per-pupil due June 1st and July 31st, which is a projection. Subsequent invoices 
are due bi-monthly. With the implementation of an automated-invoicing process through a 
dedicated website, the submission of each invoice is done online. After the year is complete, the 
School submits the FTE per-pupil reconciliation, listing every student who attended any part of the 
year, and the FTE each represents. Based on this final count, it calculates how much should have 
been paid to the School and included in the reconciliation will be any amounts due from the funding 
source included in grants and other receivables on the statement of financial position at year end, 
or any amounts payable to the funding source included as a liability on the statement of financial 
position at year end, as amounts are trued up to actual based on actual numbers submitted at year 
end. 

Additional funding is also provided to support special education services. All students who are 
identified to need special education services or settings have an Individualized Education Program 
(“IEP”), formalized for his or her unique needs. Based on this IEP, the student is categorized into 
one of three levels of service: 0-20% service, 20-60% service, or 60% or more service required and 
provided by the School. For a student receiving less than 20% in services, no additional funding is 
received. For a student receiving services between 20% and 60% and 60% or more services of the 
school day, additional funding per FTE is received. Billing for this support is incorporated into the 
per-pupil invoices and is also settled in the same FTE per-pupil reconciliation process. 

As the students receive the benefit of these services simultaneously as the School is providing them, 
the School recognizes per-pupil revenue from these services over time. The School believes that 
this method provides a reasonable depiction of the transfer of services over the term of the 
performance obligation based on the services needed to satisfy the obligation. Generally, 
performance obligations satisfied over time relate to students receiving academic or school services. 
The School measures the performance obligation from admission or enrollment into the School to 
the point when the student is discharged or the end of the school year where it is no longer required 
to provide services to the student, which is generally at the time of discharge or the completion of 
the school year. All of these services are bundled and considered a single-performance obligation, 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

and as such, the School accounts for these bundled-performance obligations under state and local 
per pupil operating revenue in the statement of activities and recognizes the per-pupil revenue over 
time. 

Government Grants 

Revenue from federal, state, and local government grants and contracts is recognized by the School 
when qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable to the government, or when required services 
have been provided. 
Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities 

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards 
Codification (“ASC”) 606, contract assets are to be recognized when an entity has the right to 
receive consideration in exchange for goods or services that have been transferred to a customer 
when that right is conditional on something other than the passage of time. The School does not 
recognize contract assets, as the right to receive consideration is unconditional in accordance with 
the passage of time criteria. Also, in accordance with ASC 606, contract liabilities are to be 
recognized when an entity is obligated to transfer goods or services for which consideration has 
already been received. The School does not receive consideration prior to the transfer of goods or 
services and, therefore, does not recognize contract liabilities. 

Contributions of Nonfinancial Assets 

The School may receive contributed services that are an integral part of its operations. Such services 
are only recorded as contributions of nonfinancial assets, at their fair value, provided the services 
create or enhance nonfinancial assets, require specified skills provided by individuals possessing 
those skills, and typically need to be purchased, if not provided by donation. 

The School receives donated space from the New York City Department of Education (“NYCDOE”) 
that it shares with a New York City public school (Note 8). The donated space will be used for 
operating, general, and administrative activities. In valuing the donated space, which is located in 
Brooklyn, New York, the School estimated the fair value on the basis of recent comparable sales 
prices in Brooklyn, New York’s real estate market, taking into account the restriction on use of the 
space. 

Equipment, net 

Purchased equipment is recorded at cost. Equipment acquired with certain government funding are 
recorded as expenses pursuant to the terms of the contract in which ownership of such equipment 
is retained by the funding source. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as they occur. The School 
has established a $3,000 threshold above which assets are evaluated to be capitalized. The School 
expenses leasehold improvements because it has no lease and is uncertain that the space will be 
available beyond the close of the current fiscal year. Removable equipment that can be transferred 
to new space, if necessary, is capitalized, based on the established threshold. Depreciation is 
provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, which is three years for 
computer equipment. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Impairment 

The School reviews long-lived assets to determine whether there has been any permanent 
impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be 
recoverable. If the sum of the expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying 
amount of the assets, the School recognizes an impairment loss. No impairment losses were 
recognized for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

Advertising 

The School expenses advertising costs as incurred. The School incurred $18,656 and $3,484 of 
advertising costs for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, which is included in the 
accompanying statements of functional expenses under marketing and recruitment. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The costs of providing programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis 
and by natural classification in the accompanying statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs 
have been allocated among the respective programs and activities according to the functional 
categories, as follows: 

Program Services – This category represents expenses related to general education and special 
education for certain students requiring additional attention and guidance. These costs are 
allocated based on the FTE allocation method. 

Management and General – This category represents expenses related to the overall 
administration and operation of the School that are not specific to any program services or 
development. These costs are allocated based on the FTE allocation method. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Income Taxes 

The School is exempt from federal, state and local income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code (the “IRC”) and, therefore, has made no provision for income taxes in the 
accompanying financial statements. In addition, the School has been determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service not to be a “private foundation” within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the IRC. 
There was no unrelated business income for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Under U.S. GAAP, an organization must recognize the tax benefit associate with tax positions taken 
for tax-return purposes when it is more likely than not that the position will not be sustained upon 
examination by a taxing authority. The School does not believe it has taken any material uncertain 
tax positions and, accordingly, it has not recorded any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The 
School is subject to routine audits by a taxing authority. As of June 30, 2022, the School was not 
subject to any examination by a taxing authority. 

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 

Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets 

In September 2020, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2020-07, Presentation 
and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets (Topic 958). The 
update requires not-for-profits to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item 
on the statement of activities, and to disclose information regarding each type of contributed 
nonfinancial assets. The update is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2021. The School adopted this ASU as of July 1, 2021. The adoption of this ASU did 
not have a material impact on the financial statements. See note 8 for additional information. 

Recently Issued but not yet Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 

Lease Accounting 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which will require lessees to recognize a 
lease liability, which is a lessee’s obligation to make lease payments arising from a lease, measured 
on a discounted basis; and a right-of-use asset, which is an asset that represents the lessee’s right 
to use, or control the use of, a specified asset for the lease term. The FASB also issued ASU 2020-
05, which deferred the effective date for the School until annual periods beginning after December 
15, 2021. The School is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of ASU 2016-02. 

Financial Instruments – Credit Losses 

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326): 
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial on Financial Instruments. The new credit losses standard 
changes impairment model for most financial assets and certain other instruments. For trade and 
other receivables, contract assets recognized as a result of applying ASC 606, loans and certain 
other instruments, entities will be required to use new forward looking “expected loss” model that 
generally will result in earlier recognition of credit losses than under today’s incurred loss model. 
ASU 2016-13 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 31, 2022. The School is 
currently evaluating the impact of this ASU on its financial statements. 

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

3. Liquidity and Availability of Resources 

The School maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general 
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. The School strives to maintain a cash 
reserve equal to a minimum of three months of operating expenses, with a target of three to six 
months. Cash is kept in interest-bearing bank accounts to maximize returns. 

The School’s financial assets available within one year of the statements of financial position date 
for general expenditures are as follows: 

June 30, 2022 2021 

Cash 
Cash - restricted 
Grants receivable 
Due from NYC Department of Education 

$ 92,755 
76,500 

316,366 
-

$ 340,668 
76,466 

146,041 
158,987 

Total Financial Assets 485,621 722,162 

Less : Amounts unavailable for general expenditures 
within one year due to: 

Restricted by contract (76,500) (76,466) 

Total Financial Assets Available to Management for 
General Expenditures within One Year $ 409,121 $ 645,696 

4. Related Party Transactions 

Due from/to related entities 

New Visions for Public Schools (“New Visions”) is a not-for-profit organization dedicated to 
supporting public schools and helping start and manage charter schools. Pursuant to the terms of 
the educational services agreement by and between the School and New Visions beginning in fiscal 
year 2018, New Visions provides educational management, operational, and fundraising services to 
the School. As compensation to New Visions for these services rendered, the School pays 10% of per-
pupil revenues, received by the School during the year. 

The balance due to New Visions from the School at June 30, 2022 and 2021 amounted to $54,515 
and $82,921, respectively, which is comprised of management fees. Total management fees 
incurred by the School for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 totaled $298,718 and $372,969, 
respectively. 

For operational efficiency and purchasing power, the School also shares expenses with other charter 
schools related by common management. There was no balance due from other charter schools at 
June 30, 2022 and 2021. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the balance due to other charter schools was 
$5,811 and $765, respectively. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Contribution from related entity 

New Visions awarded the School a $200,000 contribution to support general operations for the 
current fiscal year, which is included in contributions and other income on the statements of 
activities. New Visions is committed to provide financial support through November 2023. 

5. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consist of the following: 

June 30, 2022 2021 

Computer equipment $ 40,306 $ 40,306 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (31,036) (19,029) 

$ 9,270 $ 21,277 

Depreciation expense was $12,007 and $12,370 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. 

6. Grants Receivable 

Grants receivable consist of federal and state entitlements and grants. The School expects to collect 
these receivables within one year. Grants receivable consist of the following: 

June 30, 2022 2021 

E-Rate Reimbursement $ 33,677 $ 24,181 
Title I 52,042 43,262 
Title II 7,248 1,335 
Title IV 6,300 6,000 
ESSER I - CARES 14,051 42,152 
ESSER II - CRRSA 103,947 -
ESSER III - ARP 71,094 -
CSP 25,800 25,800 
Other 2,207 3,311 

$ 316,366 $ 146,041 

18 



  
 

 
 
 

 

   
 

           
          

 
      

    
         

     
   

 
      

 
      

      
    

            
  

 
     

     
             

    
            

    
     

 
      
          

    
 

   
  

    
    

      
      

    
 

     
        

             
    

   
     

  
  

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

7. Pension Plan 

The School has adopted the New Visions for Public Schools’ pension plan (the “Plan”) which is 
qualified under Internal Revenue Code 403(b) for the benefit of its eligible employees. The Plan is 
an elective contribution plan. Employees are eligible to enroll in the Plan once they have completed 
at least one full year of service and completion of 1,000 work hours, and are also eligible for 
discretionary employer contributions. The School’s contribution becomes fully vested after the sixth 
year of the employee’s service. Pension expense amounted to $70,910 and $188,792, net of 
forfeitures, for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and is included in retirement 
in the accompanying statements of functional expenses. 

8. Agreement with School Facility 

The School shares space with a New York City public school, located at 1150 East New York Avenue, 
Brooklyn, New York 11212. As part of the New York City Chancellor’s Charter School Initiative, the 
NYCDOE has provided this space to the School at no charge. The services provided by the NYCDOE 
to the charter school, such as rent, utilities, custodial services, maintenance and school safety 
services are provided at no cost. 

The School is using a relative valuation model to measure the fair value of the donated space. The 
NYCDOE has not provided a value for the space and there is no lease agreement in place. In applying 
the valuation model, significant inputs include the total square footage allocated the School, the 
average cost per square foot based on comparable sales prices in Brooklyn, New York, and the 
estimated discount factor applied to the cost per square foot to account for the restricted use of 
the space. Based on such assumptions, the School applies a relative cost per square foot calculated 
using all available market information in Brooklyn, New York. 

Square footage totaling 7,620 feet is allocated to the School. The value of the space and related 
utilities and services calculated by applying the relative valuation model is not significant and, 
therefore, is not recorded in the financial statements. 

9. Risk Management 

The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The School maintains commercial insurance 
to help protect itself from such risks. The School also intends to defend its positions on these 
matters. As of June 30, 2022, there are no matters for which the School believes the ultimate 
outcome would have a material adverse effect on the School’s financial position. 

The School entered into contractual relationships with certain governmental funding sources. The 
governmental agencies may request return of funds as a result of noncompliance by the School, as 
well as additional funds for the use of facilities. The accompanying financial statements make no 
provision for the possible disallowance or refund. The School is of the opinion that such cost 
disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect in the School’s financial statements and will 
record them in the fiscal year they become known. 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Notes to Financial Statements 

10. Commitments 

The School leases office equipment and copiers under non-cancellable operating leases which will 
expire at various times during the next three years. The leasing expense for the years ended June 
30, 2022 and 2021 was $4,344 and $5,552, respectively, which is included in the accompanying 
statements of functional expenses under office expense. Future minimum lease payments are as 
follows: 

June 30, Amount 

2023 
2024 
2025 

$ 5,184 
4,788 
1,995 

Total $ 11,967 

11. Concentration Risks 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to a concentration of credit risk include 
cash accounts at a major financial institution that, at times, exceeded the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation insured limits of $250,000. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts 
and does not believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash accounts. 

The School received approximately 80% and 86% of its total revenue from per pupil funding from the 
NYCDOE for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

The School’s grants receivable consists of two major grantors accounting for approximately 99% and 
98% at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

The School’s payables consist of three major vendors accounting for approximately 57% at June 30, 
2022 and four major vendors accounting for approximately 79% at June 30, 2021. 

12. Subsequent Events 

The School’s management has performed subsequent event procedures through October 26, 2022, 
which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and there were no 
subsequent events requiring adjustment to the financial statements or disclosures as stated herein. 
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Tel: 212-371-4446 622 Third Ave, Suite 3100 
Fax: 212-371-9374 New York, NY 10017 
www.bdo.com 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Trustees 
New Visions AIM Charter High School I 
New York, New York 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New 
Visions AIM Charter High School I (the “School”), which comprise the School’s statements of financial 
position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, 
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2022. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School's internal 
control over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the 
international BDO network of independent member firms. 

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the School’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

New York, New York 
October 26, 2022 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

1. Summary of Auditor’s Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of report the auditor issued on whether Unmodified 
the financial statements audited were prepared 
in accordance with U.S. GAAP: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no 

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no 

2. Financial Statements Findings 

There were no findings related to the financial statements that are required to be reported in 
accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards. 
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Appendix D: FILL IN GRAY CELLS 
NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 

Statement of Financial Position 
as of June 30, 2022 

ASSETS 2021-22 2020-21 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents  $  92,755  $  340,668 
Grants and contracts receivable 316,366 305,028 
Accounts receivables - -
Prepaid expenses                                   11,878                                         4,887 
Contributions and other receivables                                             -                                                 - 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS                                420,999                                    650,583 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net                                     9,270                                       21,277 

OTHER ASSETS                                   76,500                                       76,466 

TOTAL ASSETS 506,769 748,326 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $  86,679  $  35,180 
Accrued payroll and benefits                                152,889                                    213,424 
Deferred Revenue 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable 
Other                                175,119                                       83,686 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES                                414,687                                    332,290 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Deferred Rent                                             -                                                 - 
All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturities                                             -                                                 - 

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES                                             -                                                 - 

TOTAL LIABILITIES                                414,687                                    332,290 

NET ASSETS 
Without Donor Restrictions                                   92,082                                    416,036 
With Donor Ristrictions                                             -                                                 - 

TOTAL NET ASSETS                                   92,082                                    416,036 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET 
ASSETS                                506,769                                    748,326 

CK - Should be zero - -













































































































 

   
 

   
     

    
  

                                                                           
                                                                                                

  
                                                                                                           
                                                                                                  
                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                               

                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                   

 
                                                                          
                                                                                      
                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                     
                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                         
                                                                                   

                                                                                   

   

                                                                                     
                                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                             

                                                                                            

                                                                                   

                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                           

   
      

  
    

     

  

     

    

   







    

    
                                                          

    
 

                                                               
                                                                  

                              
  

                                 
                                                                          

                                                                       
 
                                                                    

   
                                 

                                                                  
 

                                                                   
                                                                                        
                                                      

    
                                                                                    

                                                                                              
                                                                             

    
                                                                                                  

                                                                                              
                                                                                          

                                                      
                                                                      

                                                            

       

       

      
   

    

     

     

     







    

     
  

 
  

           
                                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                   
                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                         

                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                         

                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                                               

                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                                             

                                                                                                          

  

      
   

    











Charter Funding Alphabetical By NYS School District 
* (Sum of Charter School Basic Tuition and Supplemental Basic Tuition) 
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ANNUAL BUDGET & QUARTERLY REPORT TEMPLATE 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

SCHOOL 
Name: New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
Contact Name: Cynthia Rietscha 
Contact Title: Chief Operating Officer 
Contact Email: crietscha@newvisions.org 
Contact Phone: 646-486-6307 

REPORT PERIOD 
Current Academic Year: 2022-23 
Prior Academic Year: 2021-22 
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NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 
2022-23 

ENROLLMENT BY GRADES 

GRADES K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
INITIAL BUDGETED ENROLLMENT 56 61 32 17 
TOTAL ENROLLMENT = 166 

1 
2 

ENROLLMENT BY DISTRICT 

PRIOR YEAR
 ANNUAL BUDGET 

TOTAL DISTRICTS/ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 
 ACTUAL QUARTERLY 

TOTAL DISTRICTS/ENROLLMENT 
ACTUAL QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

Original Revised Original Revised Original Revised Original Revised Actual Actual Actual Actual 
NUMBER OF SCHOOL DISTRICTS ENROLLED: 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 
NUMBER OF STUDENTS ENROLLED: 0 166 0 166 0 166 0 166 0 0 0 0 0 

PRIOR YEAR 
ANNUAL BUDGET 

ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 
2021-22 QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

PRIMARY/OTHER DISTRICT NAME(S) 
Actual 

Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 

Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 

Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 

Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 

Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment 
Actual 

Enrollment 
Actual 

Enrollment 
Actual 

Enrollment 
Actual 

Enrollment 
PRIMARY District NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 166 166 166 166 
SECONDARY District (Select from drop-down list) → 

*NOTE: If there are NO budget revisions at the time of quarterly submittal leave the 'REVISED' Column(s) 
COMPLETELY BLANK.  If budget revisions ARE made, the entire "REVISED" budget columns for the affected 
quarter(s) must be completed on tabs 2, 3 and 4. 
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PRIMARY/OTHER DISTRICT NAME(S) 

PRIOR YEAR 
2021-22 

Actual 
Enrollment 

ANNUAL BUDGET 
ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 

QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 
Original 

Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 

Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 

Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 

Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 

Enrollment 

ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 
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NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 
2022-23 

STAFFING PLAN - FULL TIME EQUIVALENT ("FTE")

 *NOTE:   Enter the number of FTE positions 
in the "blue" cells. 

*NOTE:   State the assumptions that are being 
made for personnel FTE levels. 

ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL FTE PRIOR YEAR ANNUAL BUDGETED FTE ACTUAL QUARTERLY FTE Description of Assumptions 
2021-22 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
ACTUAL Original Revised Original Revised Original Revised Original Revised Actual Actual Actual Actual 

Executive Management 1 1 1 1 Principal 
Instructional Management 2 2 2 2 Assistant Principal, Associate Director of Special 

Education 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 8 8 8 8 Student Advisor (4), Coordinator (3), Restorative 

Approaches Associate (1) 
CFO / Director of Finance 
Operation / Business Manager 1 1 1 1 Deputy Director of School Operations 
Administrative Staff 1 1 1 1 Administrative Assistant 
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 0.0 13 0 13 0 13 0 13 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL FTE PRIOR YEAR ANNUAL BUDGETED FTE ACTUAL QUARTERLY FTE Description of Assumptions 
2021-22 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
ACTUAL Original Revised Original Revised Original Revised Original Revised Actual Actual Actual Actual 

Teachers - Regular 8 8 8 8 
Teachers - SPED 8 8 8 8 
Substitute Teachers 
Teaching Assistants 
Specialty Teachers 2 2 2 2 ELL, Physical Education 
Aides 
Therapists & Counselors 5 5 5 5 Social Worker (3), School Counselor (2) 
Other 
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 0.0 23 0 23 0 23 0 23 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL FTE PRIOR YEAR ANNUAL BUDGETED FTE ACTUAL QUARTERLY FTE Description of Assumptions 
2021-22 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
ACTUAL Original Revised Original Revised Original Revised Original Revised Actual Actual Actual Actual 

Nurse 
Librarian 
Custodian 
Security 
Other 
TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE FTE 0.0 36 0 36 0 36 0 36 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

*NOTE: Each quarter, the actual FTE should be input. *NOTE:   If there are NO budget revisions at the time of quarterly submittal leave the 'REVISED' Column(s) COMPLETELY BLANK. 
If budget revisions ARE made, the entire "REVISED" budget columns for the affected quarter(s) must be completed on tabs 2, 3 and 4. 
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NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 
BALANCE SHEET 

2022-23 

Prior Year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

2021-22 As of 9/30 As of 12/31 As of 3/31 As of 6/30 
ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents
Grants and contracts receivable
Accounts receivables
Prepaid Expenses
Contributions and other receivables

                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 

                             -                              -                              -                              - 
                             -                              -                              -                              - 
                             -                              -                              -                              - 
                             -                              -                              -                              - 
                             -                              -                              -                              - 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net                              -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

                             - OTHER ASSETS                              -                              -                              -                              - 

TOTAL ASSETS - - - - -

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and benefits
Deferred Revenue
Current maturities of long-term debt
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable
Other

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

LONG-TERM DEBT and NOTES PAYABLE, net current maturities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 

                             -                              -                              -                              - 
                             -                              -                              -                              - 
                             -                              -                              -                              - 
                             -                              -                              -                              - 
                             -                              -                              -                              - 
                             -                              -                              -                              - 

                             -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

                             -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

                             -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

                             - 
                             - 

                             -                              -                              -                              - 
                             -                              -                              -                              - 

                             -                              -                              -                              -                              - 

                             -                              -                              -                              -                              - 
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 Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustees 

Trustee Name: 
Garrett Lynch 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation: 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”) 
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.). 

Former Chair 

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school 
and/or education corporation? 

 Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's 
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school. 

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any 
student currently enrolled in the school and/or education corporation? 

 Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the 
student could benefit from your participation. 
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AIM I & AIM II - Garrett Lynch 

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation? 

Yes  No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could 
benefit from your participation. 

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or 
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest 
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract 
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO, 
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real 
or personal property to the said entities? 

 Yes No 
If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 
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AIM I & AIM II - Garrett Lynch 

6. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside 
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the 
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the 
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or 
transaction, check None. 

 None 

Date(s) Nature of 
financial 
interest /

transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, did 

not participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest 
or engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 
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AIM I & AIM II - Garrett Lynch 

7. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are 
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services 
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in 
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the 
school(s). If there was no financial interest, check None. 

 None 
Organization
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of

household holding an 
interest in the 
organization

conducting business 
with the school(s)

and the nature of the 
interest 

Steps 
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 
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AIM I & AIM II - Garrett Lynch 

Acceptable signature formats include: 
• Digitally certified PDF signature 
• Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF 

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available 
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The 
personal contact information provided below will be redacted. 

last revised 04/2022 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current
or Former Trustee 

Trustee Name: 
Edgar Rodriguez 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation: 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”) 
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.). 
Secretary 

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school 
and/or education corporation? 

Yes • No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and the person's 
position, job description, and other responsibilities with the school. 

3. Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any 
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation? 

Yes • No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if the 
student could benefit from your participation. 
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New Visions Charter High School for Advanced Math and Science - Edgar Rodriguez 

4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of the education corporation? 

Yes. • No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and if this person could 
benefit from your participation. 

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, education 
corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive management 
services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which contracts, or may 
contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or do you serve as an 
employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest in, a business or 
entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract or do business 
with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO, whether for-profit 
or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real or personal property 
to the said entities? 

• Yes No 

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

Position Held: I serve as the Superintendent of Charter Schools for New 
Visions for Public Schools, the Charter Management Organization. 
Responsibilities include supervision of the principal and the CMO team. 
Salary: $228,125 
Start Date: July 15, 2021 
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New Visions Charter High School for Advanced Math and Science - Edgar Rodriguez 

6. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you, any of your immediate family members, and/or any persons who you reside 
with have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) operated by the 
education corporation during the time you have served on the Board, and in the 
six months prior to such service. If there has been no such interest or 
transaction, check None. 

None 

Date(s) Nature of 
financial 
interest /

transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, did 

not participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest 
or engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 
July 15, 2021 Employment at 

the CMO, New 
Visions for 
Public Schools 

Will abstain from 
voting, as necessary. 

Edgar 
Rodriguez 
(myself) 
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New Visions Charter High School for Advanced Math and Science - Edgar Rodriguez 

7. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) you reside with had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business 
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please 
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization, 
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was 
no financial interest, check None. 

None 
Organizatio 

n 
conducting 
business 
with the 

school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximat
e value of 

the 
business 

conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate
family member of

household holding an 
interest in the 
organization

conducting business 
with the school(s)

and the nature of the 
interest 

Steps 
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 

New Visions 
for Public 
Schools 

Edgar 
Rodriguez 
serves as 
Superintendent

 of the 
Charter 
Schools at 
the CMO 

See salary 
above 

Edgar Rodriguez Abstain from 
voting where 
necessary 
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New Visions Charter High School for Advanced Math and Science - Edgar Rodriguez 

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available 
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The 
personal contact information provided below will be redacted. 

July 14, 2022 

Signature Date 

Acceptable signature formats include: 
 Digitally certified PDF signature 
 Print form, manually sign, scan to PDF 

last revised 04/2022 
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New Visions AIM Charter High School I  Renee Skolaski 
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